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GROUP OVERVIEW 

The Group operates three divisions: UK Services, 
US Services and Global Products; this enables us 
to leverage our expertise, technology, customer 
relationships and business development skills effectively. 

Our services businesses, which account for more 
than 75% of total sales, are focused on providing 
expertise and knowledge in national markets. 
Our products business focuses on the provision 
of product-based solutions to meet customer 
requirements, complemented by contract-funded 
research and development on a global basis. 

D1v1s1on Revenue 

UK Services £610.lm 
(2011 £652 7m)' 

Underlying operating profit• 

£63.0m 
(2011 £47 4m)' 

D1v1s1on Revenue 

US Services £534.5m 
(2011 £607 3m)' 

Underlying operating profit• 

£32.lm 
(2011 £45 9m)' 

D1v1s1on Revenue 

Global Products £325.0m 
(2011 £442 6m)' 

Underl'f'ng operating profit• 

£66.2m 
(2011 £52 lm)' 

• Defimtions of underlying measures of performance are m the glossary on page 107 

Revenue by business 
Em 

UK Services 

US Services 

Global Products 

Total 

Employees 

5,157 
(2011 5,337)' 

Employees 

3,940 
(2011 4,686)' 

Employees 

1,083 
(2011 1,185)' 

2012 
Em 

6101 

534 5 

325.0 

1,469 6 

t Restated to reflect the transfer of businesses from Global Products to UK Services and US Services at the begmnmg of the 2012 finanoal year 

2011• 
Em 

652 7 

607 3 

442 6 

1,702 6 



Underlying operating profit by business• 
£m 

UK Services 

US Services 

Global Products 

Total 

Capab1ht1es 
• Acqu1s1non services 

Air eng1neenng 
C41SR 

Cyber solunons 

2012 
£m 

63 0 

321 

66 2 

161 3 

Force and base protecnon 

2011• 
£m 

474 

45 9 

521 

145 4 

Programme and procurement support 
lnformanon and rntell1gence 
Test and evaluanon 
Tra1n1ng and simulation 

Capabil1t1es 
C41SR 

Cloud computing 
Cyber solunons 
Data analysis 
IT systems, software engineering 
and 1ntegranon 
Log1st\cs 
M1ss1on assurance 
Mob1l1ty solutions 
Modelhng 
Training and simulation 

Capab1hnes 
Pyrolysis (Energy from waste) 
Sensor networks 
Surv1vab1l1ty systems 
Vehicle power management 
Unmanned systems 

Revenue by maJOr customer type 
£m 

2012 
£m 

2011 
£m 

UK Government 482 8 526 5 

US Government 730 5 894 3 

Other 256 3 2818 

Total 1,469 6 1,702 6 

Developments during the year 
Reorgan1sanon of d1v1s1on into 
strategic business units 
Award of four-year £38m Naval 
Combat Systems lntegranon 
Support Services contract 
Award of £22m mu In-year test 
and evaluanon A400M contract 

Developments during the year 
Restructunng programme undertaken, 
reducing indirect costs by US$2Sm 
Award of US$36 Sm IDIQ sc1ennhc and 
analytlc support contract for the Patnck 
Air Force Base, Florida 

Developments during the year 
E-X-Onve• selected for the technology 
development phase of the US Army's 
Ground Combat Vehicle Program 
OptaSense• incorporated as an 
independent global business 
Disposal of Spectra 

Revenue by geography 
£m 

United Kingdom 

North America 

Other 

2012 
£m 

5701 

788 7 

1108 

Total 1,469 6 

Customers 
Ministry of Defence (MOD) 
D5TL 
The Highways Agency 
UK secunty agencies 
Australian Department 
of Defence 

Customers 
NASA 
US Department of Homeland 
5ecunty (OHS) 

2011 
£m 

623 7 

949 2 

1297 

1,702 6 

US Department of Defense (DoD) 
US Department of State (DoS) 

Customers 
US Department of Defense (DoD) 
Ministry of Defence (MOD) 
UK and North American 
security agencies 
Shell 
European Space Agency 
Astnum 

• BAE Systems 



PERFORMANCE 
HIGHLIGHTS 

Revenue 

£1,469.6m 

Underlying operating profit• 

£161.3m 

Underlying operating cash conversion• 

146% 

Underlying operating margin• 

11% 

• Defimtlons of underfymg measures of performance are m the glossary 
onpage107 

t The geanng ratio 1s net debt to adJusted EBITDA and the deflmtJon is in the 
glossary on page 107 

Net debt 

£122.2m 

Underlying earnings per share• 

14.Gp 

Gearing rabot 

O.Sx 

Total d1v1dend 

2.90p 

Cover image 
Gemma Dore, Flight Test Engineer, Fhght Physics team, 
at MOD Bascombe Down, Wiltshire 
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AN OVERVIEW 

OUR MISSION 

Our business is based on technical expertise, knowledge and advice to 
solve some of the world's most challenging problems. Our most prized 
possession is trust. Customers around the world rely on the ideas, 
innovations and drive of our people to help them meet their goals -
often in environments where their mission has no second chance 
for success. 

Whether we are supplying technical services support to the defence 
industry or helping a bank to keep its customer records safe -
we aim to deliver solutions that work first time and every time. 

• Defm1tions of underlyrng measures of performance are rn the glossary on page 107 

t The gearing ratio 1s net debt to ad1usted EBITDA and the defm1non 1s in the glossary on page 107 
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Business n!Vlew Corporate governance Finanaal statements 

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT 

DELIVERING VALUE 

Mark Elliott, Chairman 

This was another uncertain year for 
businesses worldwide The effects of global 
economu: pressures and national budgetary 
constraints had an impact on companies 
across all geographies and the markets 1n 
which Q1net1Q operates were not immune 
However, I am very pleased to report that 
against this backdrop, Q1netiQ delivered 
results for 2011/12 of which our employees 
and leaders can nghtly be proud 

Results 
Group revenue was £1,469 6m (2011 
£1,702 Gm) and underlying operating profit• 
rose 11% to £1Gl 3m (2011 £145 4m), 
resulting 1n an underlying profit before tax• 
for the Group of £118 3m (2011 £114 Gm) 
Underlying operating cash conversion• 
remained very strong at 146% (2011 183%) 
Full year underlying earnings per share• 
were 14 Gp (2011 14 2p) 

Balance sheet 
S1gn1ficant progress on strengthening the 
balance sheet continued this year Closing 
net debt at 31 March 2012 was £122 2m 
(£260 9m at 31 March 2011) with a resulting 
net debt EBITOA geanng ratio' of 0 Sx 
(2011 14x) In addition to the reduction 
of debt, Q1net1Q was also able to reach an 
agreement with the Trustees of the defined 
benefit pension scheme, which reduced 
the deficit and increased the stab1hty 
of the scheme The Group now has the 
financial stab1hty to develop its businesses 
1n step with its customers' changing needs, 
as well as explonng carefully selected 
opportunities 

D1V1dend 
The Board proposes a final d1v1dend 
of 2 OOp per share for the year ended 
31 March 2012 (31 March 2011 1 GOp), 
reflecting the achievement of the self-help 
programme and confidence 1n the medium 
term The final d1v1dend will be paid, subject 
to shareholder approval, on 7 September 
2012 to shareholders on the register at 
10 August 2012 

Transformation programme 
Q1nenQ's 24-month self-help programme 
had three strands focus, cultural 
transformation and strengthening the 
balance sheet Management made 
determined advances on all fronts 
throughout the programme and will 
continue to embed these gains 1n the 
current and coming years 

A key step 1n the year was the M1n1stry of 
Defence's agreement to proposed changes 
to its Special Shareholder nghts 1n Q1netiQ, 
subject to shareholder approval at the 
Group's next AGM These changes include 
the removal of the MOD's nght to veto any 
transaction or activity and the introduction 
of a less onerous compliance system, 
s1m1lar to those of comparable companies 
This welcome modernisation will enable 
us to operate more competitively and 
commercially, 1n hne with our peer group 

With the 24-month self-help programme 
successfully achieved and the plans for 
its next stage of development 1n place, 
your Board believes that Q1netiQ now 
has a strong base for longer-term 
profitable growth 

Board changes 
At the end of January 2012, Sir David Lees, 
who had been Deputy Chairman and Senior 
Independent Director since 2005, retired 
from the QrnetiQ Board On behalf of the 
Board, I thank Sir David for his s1gn1ficant 
contribution to the Company, particularly 1n 
its early years of development In November 
2011, Michael Harper Joined the Q1netiQ 
Board as a Non-executive Director and, 
following Sir David's retirement, became 
the Group's Deputy Chairman and Senior 
Independent Director An engineer by 
tra1n1ng, Michael was previously the Chief 
Executive Officer of Kidde pie He 1s 
Chairman of SBA Aviation pie, the 
V1tec Group pie and Ricardo pie 

People who know how 
Q1net1Q 1s rightly proud of the quality of its 
people Our teams are committed to our 
customers, committed to the mission and 
trusted to deliver They combine innovation, 
ag1l1ty and responsiveness while working 
towards a common objective Customers 
around the world rely on the expertise and 
capab1hty of our people to help them meet 
their goals- often 1n environments where 
their mission has no second chance of 
success Over a year of considerable change, 
our people have continued to dehver for our 
customers The Board and I thank them for 
their support 

Outlook 
Given the continuing uncertainty and lower 
than normal v1s1b1hty 1n defence markets, 
the Board's expectations for trading 
performance 1n the current year remain 
unchanged However, underlYJng earnings 
per share will benefit from early repayment 
of pnvate placement debt and the reduction 
1n the deficit of the UK defined benefit 
pension scheme following the change 
to CPI as the inflation index 

The success of the self-help programme 
1n restoring both the balance sheet and 
portfolio to strength gives the Board 
confidence 1n Q1nenQ's ab1hty to build 
s1gn1ficant value over the next phase 
of its development 

Mark Elhott 
Chairman 
24 May 2012 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT 

WE'VE BUILT A STRONG 
FOUNDATION ON WHICH 
TO GROW 

Leo Quinn, Chief Executive Officer 

"The Group is now 
managed as a strong 
defensible core, well­
positioned for growth 
once markets stabilise, 
with a number of 
further potentially 
scalable businesses." 

Self.help programme achieved 
Group margin uphft dnven by UK Services 
and Global Products, 

US Services restructuring completed, 

Connnwng strong cash generation reduces 
net debt to £122 2m, geanng rano• 0 Sx, 

Early repayment of US$177m private 
placement debt leading to accelerated 
interest of £27m, 

Pension deficit reduced to £31 Sm 
(31 March 2011 £124 Gm) following the 
change to CPI as the 1nflanon index and 
£40m cash 1nJecnon, 

MOD agreement to modernise Special 
Shareholder nghts 

Next phase of development launched 
First phase has 1dennfled strong core, 
new businesses and value opportunines, 

Segmented portfolio will be actively 
managed to deliver ns1ng sustainable 
earnings, 

Organic-Plus approach investing m 
organic growth plus partnerships, 
alliances and selective acqu1s1nons 

t The geanng raho 1s net debt to ad Justed EBIIDA and the defimhon 1s in the glossary on page 107 
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First phase Self-help 
Transforming Q1net1Q began 1n May 2010 
with a 24-month self-help programme 
This addressed the Group's 1mmed1ate 
financial situation, but also targeted three 
areas for fundamental change focus, 
cultural transformation and strengthen1ng 
the balance sheet This programme 
achieved its ob1ecnves, meeting key 
goals well ahead of schedule 

1 Focus 
The Group 1s now managed as a strong 
defensible core, well-pos1noned for growth 
once markets stab1hse, with a number of 
further potentially scalable businesses 
Dunng the self-help programme, the 
portfoho was realigned to ensure a full 
understanding of where profits were 
made and lost, and segmented by the 
susta1nab1hty of each business This has 
resulted 1n distinct mvestable businesses, 
each representing one of the Group's key 
areas of capab1hty, with a clear route-map 
for the future Loss-making businesses are 
being addressed, divested or closed 

Specific progress dunng the year included 

Following on from the restructunng of 
the UK business last year, the current year 
saw the reshaping of US Services into a 
single integrated business under a new 
President, 

Completion of an internal review of every 
business unit's potential to dnve value, 

Ongoing disposals Spectre, a supplier 
of 011 and fuel analysis instrumentation 
based 1n Massachusetts, and the UK fuel 
and lubricants business, generating total 
net proceeds of £11 2m 



Business review 

"Building on the detailed understanding 
acquired in phase one, the Group will manage 
its portfolio actively by investing in organic 
growth supplemented, where appropriate, by 
partnerships, alliances and selective acquisitions." 
2 Cultural transformanon 
The goal of building a more competrtive, 
customer-focused culture began with 
a leaning out of processes and a w1de­
rang1ng upgrade 1n leadership to ensure 
every business has clear end-to-end 
accountab1hty At the same nme, measures 
to engage employees directly 1n raising 
productivity and customer satisfaction 
were underpinned by the My Contribution 
programme and widespread commercial 
training These changes were implemented 
1n the UK dunng the first 12 months of the 
self-help programme and removed £50m 
from the cost base S1m1lar steps followed 1n 
the US during the past 12 months, when US 
Services was integrated, reducing 1nd1rect 
costs by US$25m 

Customer satisfaction - a key goal of the 
transformation programme - continues 
to nse strongly 1n both the UK and the US 
Q1net1Q's satisfaction ranking with the 
UK MOD improved from 17th to 3rd 
position overall, and 1n the US, NASA 
performance scores ran at well over 90% 
throughout the year on both new and 
estabhshed contracts 

Specific progress dunng the year included 

An 8 percentage point nse 1n competed 
win rates 1n the UK, and the creation of 
a centralised proposal function 1n US 
Services, 1ncreas1ng the number and 
quahty of bids, 

The My Contnbutlon productivity 
programme completed its second year, 
with more than 9,000 proposed projects, 
these included US and global 1n1t1at1ves, 
such as a Group-wide IT procurement 
deal with potential benefits of £1 Sm, and 

The creation of an elected Employee 
Engagement Group (EEG) to give all 
UK employees a voice 1n the Company 

In March 2012, the MOD recognised 
Q1net1Q's progress when 1t agreed to change 
its Special Shareholder nghts, so that the 
Group can operate more competltlvely 
and commercially These changes, which 
are subject to shareholder approval at the 
Group's AGM, will help modernise Q1net1Q 
through the removal of the MO D's nght 
to veto any transaction or activity and the 
introduction of a less onerous compltance 
system The matenal shareholder 
thresholds are unchanged 

"Customer satisfaction 
- a key goal of the 
transformation 
programme­
continues to rise 
strongly in both the 
UK and the US." 

Corporate governance Anandal statements 

Q&A with Leo Quinn 

What have been the h1ghhghts of the year? 
Seeing the first real signs of QlnenQ's 
success 1n transforming its UK business was 
very satisfying. Our UK operations started 
their change programme earlier than those 
1nthe US, so it's no surpnse that they are 
showing signs of recovery sooner, but the 
US restructunng 1s now complete and it's 
good to see a strong team shaping up under 
the new President of US Services Both our 
UK and US businesses are see1ng1mproved 
levels of customer sansfactlon, which has 
to be the single most important proof 

VVhatdoesfocusmean1n 
a Q1nebQ context? 
It's about understand mg which parts of the 
company are making money, and which 
have been losing 1t VVe know we have a 
very strong core 1n Q1net1Q-bus1nesses 
which account for around 90% of our 
revenue Most of them fall within our UK 
and US Services d1v1s1ons -where our 
people's technological know·how helps 
create deep customer relat1onsh1ps The 
profits and cash flows of these businesses 
are relanvely stable the challenge 1s that 
many of these businesses operate 1n the 
defence market and, at the moment, 
that's facing severe budgetary pressures 
In those circumstances our first task 1s to 
retain our market share, and then to use 
our strength to grow further 

VVhere are you on QinenQ's cultural 
transformanon JOurney7 
We now have an orgamsatlon that 
enables our managers to do JUSt that­
manage We've re-organised QinetlQ 
into distinct separate businesses, each 
of which represents one of our key areas 
of capab1hty These businesses are led by 
the next generation of QinetlQ leaders 
They're totally accountable for their own 
revenue, profitab1hty, cash and customer 
relat1onsh1ps They can both reward 
excellent performance and take action 
We also have My Contribution, which 
empowers all our employees to come up 
with ideas to dnve productMty, either by 
1ncreasmg sales or reducing costs So we 
have begun to transform the culture, but 
1n my expenence, 1t 1s an ongomg Journey 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT CONTINUED 

Q&A with Leo Quinn 
Where will growth come rn the medium 
to long term? 
Short term growth 1s impacted by the 
market 1n which we operate and our 
markets are unsettled Given the deep 
expertise of our people and our good track 
record of delivery, however, QinetiQ's core 
businesses should be able to gain market 
share when defence budgets stab1hse 
Over the medium term, we'll manage the 
rest of the Group as a 'value p1pehne' -
1n other words, a range of new offerings 1n 
various stages of development or business 
readiness Some of them will eventually 
graduate to expand our core, others may 
not prove able to find economically viable 
business models Q1net1Q 1s not short 
of 1nnovanon for us, the challenge rs to 
find ways to tum 'raw' know-how and 
technology into commercial businesses 
Sometimes the best way to do this 1s 
to exploit 1t ourselves, sometimes we 
elect to sell the patent, sometimes we 
retain ownership of the IP and software 
but outsource manufacture, sales and 
d1stnbution m order to reduce our nsk 
The key 1s to have a d1sc1phned process that 
enables you to work out the best route to 
market for each idea, or else the best point 
1n its development to crystallise its value 

What are the ma1or challenges that 
Q1net\Q faces" 
Our challenge 1s to continue to evolve our 
business offenngs to compete successfully 
1n the changing defence markets of the 
UK and US, while also d1versrfymg our 
portfolio by finding new sectors 1n which 
to apply our innovation and expertise 
I believe, by using a ngorous combination 
of investment, partnerships and, where 
appropnate, some selective acqu1s1tions, 
we can build out Q1net1Q's core into a 
leading technology-based solutions Group 
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''Through an Organic-Plus approach, QinetiQ will 
build out its core into a leading technology-based 
solutions Group, and will apply the innovation 
and capabilities of its people in targeted sectors." 
3 Strengthening the balance sheet 
By focusing on cash generation throughout 
the business hfecycle, working capital has 
been reduced by more than £200m since 
31 March 2009 Net debt has been driven 
down by more than £400m, from £537 9m 
to £122 2m, and the gearing ratio has fallen 
from 2 Sx to 0 Sx This provides a robust 
foundation for the future and enables 
selective investment 1n medium-term 
growth opportunities 

Specific progress during the year included 

A package of measures to stab1hse the 
UK deflned benefit pension scheme, 
1nclud1ng the selection of CPI as the 
inflation index which reduced its deflc1t 
by £141 4m The year end IAS 19 pre-tax 
deficit fell to £31 Sm (30 September 2011 
£228 lm, 31 March 2011 £124 6m) 
as a result of this change and a £40m 
cash 1nJectlon, 

An agreement with the MOD, which 
discharges the UK Government from its 
accumulated l1ab1hties for rational1sation 
costs incurred 1n previous years, the 
net result of which was a £6Sm, one-off 
payment to Q1netiQ, received after the 
year end This settles hab1hties which 
would otherwrse be expected to be 
recovered through revenue rates over 
approximately ten years, and 

The election to make early repayment of 
US$177m private placement debt which 
will complete after the year end 

Second phase Organic-Plus 
The w1de-rang1ng changes of the past 24 
months have created a leaner, fitter Group 
which 1s now focused on dnv1ng value by 
growing its sustainable earnings 

The next phase will continue the d1sc1phnes 
established dunng the self-help programme, 
1nclud1ng performance rmprovement, 
balance sheet strength and high cash 
conversion Customer satisfaction and the 
excellent engagement of employees will be 
key internal metrics 

Building on the detailed understanding 
acquired 1n phase one, the Group will 
manage its portfolio actively by investing 
1n organic growth supplementt!d, where 
appropriate, by partnerships, alliances and 
selective acqu1s1tions to deliver the strategy 
and d1vers1fy nsk This will enable mature 
core businesses to win market share and 
explore ad1acent markets, while nurturing 
a select number of newer capab1hties to 
determine whether their business models 
are scalable Each opportunity that emerges 
will be managed through a d1sophned 
process to identify and expand those which 
can generate sustainable returns, or to 
target the best point at which to crystallise 
their value Through an Organic-Plus 
approach, Q1netiQ will build out its core 
as a leadrng technology-based solutions 
Group, and will apply the innovation and 
capab1ht1es of its people 1n targeted sectors 

The strength of the balance sheet will be 
apphed to investment choices, with an 
increased capacity for capital expenditure 
and internal research and development 
for the 2013 financial year and a rigorous 
process for pnontis1ng resources and 
mon1tonng returns 

Leo Quinn 
Chief Executive Officer 
24 May 2012 



Business review Corporate governance Financial statements 

OUR BUSINESS MODEL 

ORGANIC-PLUS 
Through an Organic-Plus approach, 

Q1netlQ will build out its core into 
a leading technology-based solutions 
Group, applying the innovation and 
capab1hties of its people across a number 
of market sectors 

This will enable mature core businesses 
to win market share and explore ad1acent 
markets, wh1le nurtunng a small number 
of newer capab1lrt1es to determine 
whether their business models are 

CORE 
c90% of revenue 
Maximise the Core 
Approximately 90% of Q1net1Q's revenue 1s 
generated by proven businesses that have 
sustainable competitive advantage The 
businesses are focused on relatively resthent 
sectors in which the deep domain expertise 
of Q1netiQ's people 1s used to provide trusted 
independent advice and solutions for customers' 
critical operations These are the Group's core 
capab1hties, mostly comprising UK and US 
Services, and operating largely in the aerospace, 
defence and secunty markets They exh1b1t 
relatively low nsk charactenstlcs with low capital 
requirements and strong, predictable cash flows 
Much of the revenue 1s denved from longer term 
contracts, with known dates for renewal and 
re-tender 

QinenQ's core businesses retam and wm market 
share by applyrng their detailed understanding of 
customer domams and their techmcal expertise 
to provide support for customers' on-going 
and developmg needs Core businesses will 
receive investment on a sustamable basis as 
these opportumtles emerge and where existing 
expertise can be deployed in adjacent sectors and 
geographic markets, from the proven platform of 
UK or us capability 

QmetiQ's less mature businesses will be managed 
through a 'value p1pehne' with a range of new 
capabihties at vanous stages of busmess readmess 

Maximise the Core 
UK Services 
US Services 

Global Products (partial) 
-TALON• 
-Q-Nets• 

- LAST .. Armor 

sufficiently robust to dehver s1gn1hcant 
growth Each opportunity which emerges 
will be managed through a d1sc1phned 
process to identify and expand those 

which can generate sustarnable returns 
w1th1n Q1net1Q, and crystallise early value 
from those which cannot The Group 

Revenue breakdown 

will target the best point at which to 
crystalhse value from its technologies­
through selling patents or reta1n1ng IP, 
but outsourcing manufacture to reduce 
overheads and nsk 

EXPLORE 
c8% of revenue 
Scale the Explore 
Approximately 8% of QmetJQ's 
revenue comes from fully 
commercial busmesses in its 
Explore category These are 
businesses that have a proven 
technology and customers, 
but have yet to prove that they 
can achieve s1gmfJcant scale 
Examples include Cyve1llance•, 
which delivers cyber mte\hgence 
solutions principally for US 
Fortune 500 customers, 
the OptaSense• fibre-optic 
sensing business, and Tra1mng 
& Simulation Services, which 
1s usmg COTS technology to 
meet customer requirements 
to reduce the cost of tra1nmg 

The Group will selectively mvest 
in these businesses to create a 
broader base of s1gmflcant and, 
therefore, core busmesses for 
the future 

Scale the Explore 
Cyve1llance• 

International ranges 
OptaSense• 

Tratnmg & simulation 
Protective monitoring 
Robotic controller kits 

UAS Services 

Core c90% 

Explore c8% 

Test for Value c2% 

TEST FOR VALUE 
c2% of revenue 
Ma1nta1n the Rigour 
Approximately 2% of QinenQ's 
revenue 1s m the Test for Value 
category These are businesses 
with proven technologies but that 
have yet to prove commercial 
viab1hty In some cases, the 
technology 1s being developed for 
a customer-funded programme, 
such as the E-X-Dnve• hybrid 
electnc dnve transm1ss1on which 
1s being developed as part of a 
consortium for the technology 
development phase of the US 
Army's Ground Combat Vehicle 
Program In other cases, the 
intellectual property 1s hcensed 
out to reduce 1mplementat1on 
and sales nsks, with revenue 
dependent on third party sales 
channels Examples mclude 
the GAJT .. GPS anti-Jammer via 
NovAtel and MEWS via l-3 TRL 
Over the medium term, these 
early-stage technologies will be 
managed ngorously to resolution 
whether through investment, 
divestment, closure or trade­
through until proiect completion 

Maintain the Rigour 
ALARM 

Energy from waste 
E-X-Dnve• 

GAJr 
MEWS 

CueS1m 
Space 

UAS sensors 
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UK SERVICES 

TRUSTED 
TO DELIVER 

Q1nenQ's thought leadership 1n the 
tra1n1ng and simulation sector 1s founded 
on a decades-long heritage of world-class 
research with the UK's MOD, combined with 
a record of dehvenng htgh-fldehty and cost­
effective m1l1tary tra1n1ng 

Most recently, we have extended our 
expertise through p1oneenng the use of 
everyday gaming technologies to create 
more affordable and flexible synthetic 
training environments 

By consolidating our core UK defence 
actlv1t1es with a number of new and 
existing contracts, such as the D1stnbuted 
Synthetlc Air Land Tra1n1ng system at RAF 
Waddington, into a single team, we have 
brought together a strength of capab1hty 
second to none 

Our teams 1n the military arena are 
collaborating globally, and a 101nt UK and 
North American team won a place on 
the US Tra1n1ng Systems Contract Ill, that 
over three years, gives access to a group 

of multiple award 1ndefln1te delivery/ 
1ndefln1te quanttty (IDIQ) contracts This 1s 
an opportunity to demonstrate our unique 
'Commercial off-the-shelf to capab1hty' 

01 Broadening our mternational capab1hty 
reach, we manage and operate the Fhght 
Physiological Centre (FPC) m LmkOpmg. Sweden 
on behalf of The Swedish Defence Matenel 
Adm1mstrat1on (FMV) A self-contained centre 
that provides world-class tramrng, research, test 
and evaluation fac1hties, comprises a human 
centnfuge with a free-flight-capable active 
gondola used for h1gh-G training, a hypobanc 
chamber for low-pressure testing and hypoXla 
training. a hyperbanc chamber for hrgh­
pressure testing, and a rescue and test pool for 
parachute dnll and surv1val equipment trammg 
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approach to the design and delivery of 
open architecture tra1n1ng systems, while 

also b1dd1ng into a US$2 2bn addressable 
training and simulation market 

In the commercial sector, we are deploying 

highly developed s1mulat1on systems, 
combined with a unique approach to 
constructing focused and innovative 
training support We are, for example, 

developing safety-critical tra1mng for 
several maJor Australian coal m1n1ng 
organisations -g1v1ng us an entry into the 
energy and resources market - and have 

delivered cns1s tra1n1ng for a maJor UK 

transport hub 

Our tra1n1ng team spec1ahses 1n comb1mng 

'People who know how' with the latest 
training innovation, technology and 
processes to dehver tra1n1ng systems that 
others cannot As a platform independent, 
technology integrator, customers can 
trust us to work with them 1n an intimate 

partnership, 1n which our sole focus 1s to 
develop transformational tra1n1ng for the1r 
specific needs 

02 QmetJQ, working m close partnership with the 
European Space Agency (ESA) and mdustnal 
partners, achieved the world's first successful 
reception of the encrypted Gahleo Public 
Regulated Service (PRS) signal from the first 
Galileo satellites, launched m October 2011 

we supphed the crypto security solution for the 
PRS receiver, as well as expert secunty advice 
and Gahleo accred1tat1on technical support to 
the EU and ESA 

03 We offer a full hosting and protective 
momtonng serv1ce for those sensitive 
mformatmn and commurncation systems 
where secunty and avallab1hty are critical Our 
long record of hosting and operating services 
Is built on our network of resilient sites m 
geographically disparate locations We are 
completely independent of mdustry supphers, 
and deploy the most appropriate technologies 
for the requirement 
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"As the leading independent 
training systems integrator, 
we're committed to taking what 
we do in any domain, and what 
we learn anywhere in the world, 
and projecting it globally.'' 
Stephen Gumbrill, Software Engineer, 
Training and $1mulat1on Services 
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US SERVICES 

COMMITTED 
TO THE MISSION 

"We're effectively building 

the Kennedy Space Port of 

the future to cater for NASA's 

next generation of deep space 
programmes, as well as new 

commercial space providers." 
Joe Broadwater, Executive Vice President, 
Aerospace Operations and Systems 
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01 US Services Unmanned Aircraft Systems­
lmtlatlve Program (UAS-1) prOV1des UAS 
Commanders with near-real time, highly 
accurate readiness reporting. It 1s currently 
m operatlon with US Army Shadow, Hunter 
and ERMP Sky Warnor units UAS·I 1s capable 
of supporting all aspects of maintenance and 
readiness, Including managing and tracking 
other critical assets to UAS operanons, such as 
all wheeled stock and support equipment 

Business revleW 

When NASA required a partner to help 1t 
transform Flonda's Kennedy Space Center 
for the next generation of space travel and 
exploration, 1t chose QinetlQ 

Our Engineering Services Contract (ESC) 
for the Center encompasses the full range 
of life-cycle design, development, testing 
and integration to support all NASA's future 
programmes, as well as the commercial 
space sector which, 1t 1s anticipated, will 
assume respons1b1hty for resupplying the 
International Space Station 

Elements of the contract include 
a 21st-century ground system, space 
launch system, crawler transporter, and 
mobile launch tower to accommodate 
different configurations of boosters and 
crew vehicles 

We were chosen by NASA - against 
snff competition - for our eng1neenng 
d1sc1pl1ne, rigour and effective programme 
management We already had an excellent 
record of delivering on commitments at 
other NASA space and research centres 

02 QlnetlQ has worked closely with the US Army to 
develop a maintenance and logistics enterpnse 
system, enhanced by an excepnonal software 
program and complex database, for total 
umt mamtenance and logistics management 
This capability, known as Umt Level Logistics 
System-Avianon (Enhanced), or ULLS·A{E), is 
the first customer server enterprise system to 
use Relational Database System technology for 
Army maintenance management ULLS-A{E) is 
widely deployed m the Umted States Army to 
support the logistics and readiness needs of 
4,0CXJ aircraft 

Rnandal statements 

The complement of exceptionally 
qualified personnel that Q1netiQ bnngs 
to the contract, covers every d1sc1phne, 
from technical management to financial 
management This core technical team 
serve as the pnnc1pal experts 1n technology 
R&D and technology transfer They are 
complemented by a team hired to support 
the work driven by the task orders As the 
contract progresses, 1t will continue to 
expand 1n scope and staffing 

The ESC's scale, complexity and emphasis 
on transformational technologies, make 
1t an outstanding example of a showcase 
for Q1nebQ as an eng1 neenng services 
provider that is able to deliver cost­

effectlvely against a backdrop of evolving 
requirements We are now focused on 
translating this capab1l1ty to other markets 
1n the US, principally the Un1ted States 
Air Force, commercial space providers 
and energy providers 

03 Cyve1llance• bnngs advanced cyber busmess­
mtelhgence solunons to customers, 1t protects 
networks, systems and users by safeguarding 
against ph1shmg, soaa1 media threats, 
reputation damage and information loss 
Cyve1llance• offers proacttve solutions that can 
help customers detect and stop tlveats before 
damage is done 
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GLOBAL PRODUCTS 

INNOVATIVE AND 
FORWARD-LOOKING 

OptaSense• 1s the world leader 1n 

d1stnbuted acoustic sensing, a technology 
that transforms up to SOkm of standard 
telecoms fibre into a hsten1ng device with 
thousands of sensors along its length 

Our technology 1s reshaprng several 
global 1ndustnes by prov1d1ng high-value 
1nformat1on that rs otherwise unavailable 

OptaSense's advantage hes 1n our unique 
ab1hty to process 1mmed1ately and make 
sense of g1gab1ts of data generated each 
second by this new fibre-sensing technology 

Drawing on Q1nebQ's 50 years' experience 
1n advanced sonar processing techniques, 
OptaSense uses advanced acoustic 
fingerprint recogn1t1on and behavioural 
analysis to provide customers with 
dec1s1on-ready information This enables 
preventive or corrective operational or 
security acbon to be taken 1n real-time 

In the 011 and gas sector, distributed 
acoustic sensing 1s revolubon1s1ng 011 well 
management A single array incorporated 
into a well provides an improved image 
of the sub-surface without the need for 
intervention -1mprov1ng safety, rncreas1ng 
recovery and reducing extracnon costs 

Demand for OptaSense 011 field services 
1s pnmanly drrven by the unconventional 
shale 011 and gas developments, 
parbcularly 1n the US, where OptaSense 
1s breaking new ground by prov1d1ng 

01 QmetiQ 1s teamed with BAE Systems for one 
of the GCV programme's two Technology 
Development prime contracts If the BAE 
Systems vehicle is successful, QmetJQ will supply 
the transm1ss1ons for the production phase 

02 Protection against navigation jamming m the 
fog of war is vital QinetJQ and Nov Ate I have 
produced the first single-unit GPS anti-jam 
antenna designed spec1hcally for m1htary land 
vehicles GAJT- (pronounced 'Gadget') protects 
the satelhte signals required to compute precise 
position and timing. At Just under 290mm m 
diameter, GAJT provides anti-jam performance 
comparable with much larger systems, but at 
a significantly lower cost 

03 Our Q-Net• system takes an innovative 
approach to protecting a wide range of tartlcal 
and lightly armoured veh1des from attack by 
rocket-propelled grenades (RPGs) Based on nets 
rather than traditional armour, 1t is extremely 
lightweight, versatile, low-cost and effective 
Q-Net's performance matches or exceeds 
competitor bar armour solutions, and prOV1des 
vehicles with RPG defeat protection from all 
angles, mdudmgoverhead 
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real-time hydrauhc fracture monitoring 
services for Shell on a worldwide basis 

Using the same product platform, OptaSense 
monitors and protects linear assets 1t 
converts already-installed telecoms assets 
into a sensor array that predicts and defeats 
1ntrus1ons on thousands of kilometres of 
p1pelme OptaSense's infrastructure secunty 
and mon1tonng systems are drrven by the 
global need to address nanonal concerns 
over energy security, such as protecting the 
Cairn India Mangala Development P1pehne, 
which provides access to 75% of India's 
refinery capacity This recently completed 
project analyses nearly 2 5 g1gab1ts per 
second from more than 63,000 acoustic 
sensors along 700km of p1pehne across India 
Thrs makes 1t one of the largest single sensory 
systems on the planet, and there are further 
projects of double the size m progress 

OptaSense's Technical and Data Services 
D1v1s1on has an equally prom1s1ng future 1n 

developing new market appl1cat1ons, such 
as rail mon1tonng, or finding additional value 
from the data collected from infrastructure 
momtorrng Its work on several US ra11roads, 
for example, has generated a wealth of 
information about earthquakes that could 
help provide early warnings of tremors 1n 
the region Apphcatlons such as this will take 
OptaSense towards real1s1ng its amb1non 
to be 'The Earth's Nervous System™' 
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"OptaSense is an international 
company with a presence in the 
UK, US, Canada, the Middle East 
and, most recently, Brazil, China 
and Russia.'' 
James Boultbee, Log1st1cs Engineer, OptaSense 
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OPERATIONS OVERVIEW 

DELIVERING TECHNICAL 
ADVICE, SERVICE AND 
SOLUTIONS 

UK Services 

UK Services delivered 
an encouraging 
profit and margin 
performance. 

Orders 

£450.3m 
(2011: £420.4m)t 

Revenue 

£610.1m 
(2011: £652.7m)t 

Underlying operating profit• 

£63.0m 
(2011: £47.4mr 

Underlying operating margin• 

10.3% 
c2011: 1.3%r 

UK Services delivered an encouraging 
profit and margin performance, despite 
revenue being down 7% on an organic 
basis, pnnc1pally as a result of pressure on 
customer budgets Approximately £19m of 
the organic reduction was due to revenue 
1n the prior year from the DTR Early Works 
contract which has completed 

Underlying operating profit• grew 33% to 
£63 Om (2011 £47 4m)' and the underlying 
margin• increased to 10 3% (2011 7 3%)', 
as the d1v1s1on took action to address its 
cost base last year ahead of the expected 
market headwinds These results show 
the impact of the 24-month self-help 
programme, with improved customer 
satisfaction and project management 

At the beg1nn1ng of the year, Q1net1Q's 
Force Protection business, which had £41m 
of revenue during the 2011 flnanc1al year, 
was transferred from Global Products 
to UK Services to ahgn with customer 
requirements In August 2011, the UK fuel 
and lubricants business was sold as part 
of ongoing portfolio reviews 

The maJority of UK Services' revenue is 
derived from long-term managed services 
contracts, 1nclud1ng the Long-Term 
Partnering Agreement (LTPA), under which 
£180m of savings have been delivered to 
the customer to date In December 2011, 
the d1v1s1on won a four-year, £38m contract 
1n the maritime domain which broadens the 
Naval Combat Systems Integration Support 
Services 1t provides to the MOD 

UK Services continues to dehver value to its 
customers by de-risking the deployment of 
technology for core defence programmes 
In June 2011, 1t won a £22m multi-year 
contract to provide test and evaluation 
services for the A400M aircraft as 1t comes 
into service 1n 2014 This contract dehvers 
an end-to-end evaluation capab1hty, 
1nclud1ng flight trials, safety advice, 

• Definitions of underlying measures of performance are m the glossary on page 107 

a1rworth1ness and acqu1s1t1on support 
The d1v1s1on began operating ranges 1n 
Scandinavia during the year and recently 
delivered range control and safety systems 
for the Australian Woomera range Its 
p1pehne includes opportunities to expand 
the prov1s1on of test and evaluation services 
to other international customers 

R&D activity increased over the year, 
particularly for capab1hties in which Q1netiQ 
has a leading market position These include 
C41SR, where UK Services manages key 
enabhng contracts on behalf of the MOD, 
and cryptography, where the business 
successfully dehvered the world's first 
reception of an encrypted signal from a 
Gahleo satelhte working for the European 
Space Agency Reductions 1n Government 
departmental staffing levels are also 
prov1d1ng outsourcing opportunities 
to Q1net1Q as the UK's main supplier of 
impartial, cl1ent-s1de programme and 
technical advice 

The newly created Tratning and Simulation 
Services (TSS) business 1s using COTS 
technology to meet customer requirements 
to reduce the cost of training tts platform 
independent and technology-agnostic 
approach enables the business to integrate 
a broad range of stmulatlon technologies 
to dehver operational and m1ss1on training 
By collaborating with Q1netiQ's US Services 
d1v1s1on, TSS was awarded a position on 
the approved companies hst for a US$2bn 
IDIQ (indefinite dehvery/1ndefln1te quantity) 
contract under which the US Naval Air 
Warfare Center 1s able to procure tra1n1ng 
and simulation services This gives the 
business access to the US market as a key 
tra1n1ng supplier to the US Navy 

t Restated to reflect the transfer of businesses from Global Products to UK Services and US Services at the begmnmg of the 2012 financial year 
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US Services 

The leadership of 
US Services was 
strengthened by the 
appointment of a 
single experienced 
President. 

Orders 

£530.3m 
(2011: £sso.9mr 

Revenue 

£534.5m 
(2011: £607.3mr 

Underfylng operating profit• 

£32.1m 
(2011: £45.9m)t 

Underfylng operating margin• 

6.0% 
(2011: 7.6%)t 

Business review 

Revenue was down 1n the year by 7% on 
an organic basis at constant currency, 
reflecting continued uncertainties 1n the 
federal services market This resulted 1n the 
delay of new and incremental orders and 
the cancellation of some re·competes, with 
shorter term extensions being awarded 1n 
their place The organic revenue variance 
excluded a £17m reduction following the 
divestment of the S&IS business 1n the pnor 
year but included 

A reduction of £33m due to completed 
programmes such as the Iraqi Flight 
Tra1n1ng School, 
£29m revenue impact from Government 
1nsourc1ng which has now slowed, and 
A £16m reduction resulting from the 
switching of some work to small business 
set-aside contracts 

Underlying operating proflt• was £32 lm 
(2011 £45 9mr and the underlying 
margin• was 6 0% (2011 7 6%t as a result 
of the volume impact on revenue, higher 
investment 1n business development, and 
a change 1n revenue mix as lower margin 
NASA work replaced higher margin sales 

The US Services d1v1s1on was the focus of 
the second year of the Group's 24-month 
self-help programme To position for 
future growth, while responding to market 
conditions, US Services executed a maJOr 
restructuring programme reducing 1nd1rect 
costs by US$2Sm This programme focused 
on ehm1nating duphcate overhead costs 
and management layers and has improved 
the ab1hty of the d1v1s1on to compete 
effectively The leadership of US Services 
was strengthened by the appointment of 
a single experienced President and the 
upgrading of the ma1onty of his direct 
reports Key new hires have included 
leaders for the newly centralised business 
development, pnc1ng strategy and proposal 
functions 1n order to dnve sales growth 

US Services was fully integrated dunng the 
first half of the year and reorganised into 
four business units that report direct to the 
President Dunng the year, the Mantlme 
and Transportation Services business, which 

Corporate governance Financial statements 

had FYll revenue of £19m, was transferred 
from Global Products to US Services to ahgn 
with customer requirements 

Despite current uncertainties, the US 
Government contracting market remains 
large and relatively res1hent, and the 
d1v1s1on had 109 proposals pending 
decision by federal customers at year 
end, with a total contract value of 
approximately US$1 3bn 

Following commencement of work 1n 
March 2011, revenue streams ramped 
up on the NASA ESC contract to provide 
eng1neenng support services at the Kennedy 
Space Center 1n Flonda During the year, 
the team won the re-compete for the 
US$40m Enhanced Launch Vehicle Imaging 
System (ELVIS) contract, and earned a 
100% customer satisfaction ranng 1n both 
contract support overall and safety/m1ss1on 
assurance Future opportumnes exist 1n 
enhancing NASA's capab1ht1es for deep space 
exploration at Kennedy, growing Q1netiQ's 
presence at other NASA sites and extending 
core competencies to US Air Force space 
programmes The award of a US$36 Sm IDIQ 
contract to provide expert scientific and 
analytical support at the Patnck Air Force 
Base 1n Flonda demonstrates the potential 
of this approach 

US Services has a broad customer base 
and 1s pos1noned 1n segments expected 
to be relatively res1hent to defence cuts 
The year's largest award was a five-year, 
US$85m classified contract for the US 
Government Other s1gn1ficant contract 
awards included a contract to provide key 
components of the IT platform for the 
Public Buildings Service, with a total value 
of US$41m 1f all options are exercised, and 
a US$39m US Army IOIQ contract for its 
architecture characterisation programme 
The d1v1s1on continues to invest 1n its cyber 
security capab1hty At the end of the year, 
1t was selected by the Department of 
Transportation's Volpe Center to provide 
cyber security services to protect US 
transportation control systems and cntical 
national infrastructure 
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OPERATIONS OVERVIEW CONTINUED 

Global Products 

The division 
is delivering a 
transatlantic 
approach to product 
commercialisation. 

Orders 

£245.7m 
(2011: £sss.4mr 

Revenue 

£325.0m 
(2011: £442.Gmr 

Underlying operating profrt• 

£66.2m 
(2011: £s2.1mr 

Underlying operating margin• 

20.4% 
<2011: 11.s%r 

As expected, revenue dechned by 24% 
organically at constant currency1 following 
the exceptionally strong demand for the 
Q-Net• vehicle surv1vab1hty product 1n the 
previous year 

Despite the announcement of a nmetable 
for the drawdown of US troops from 
Afghanistan, the Global Products d1v1s1on 
met its target of generating US$100m 
of revenue from the Q-Net• vehicle 
surv1vab1hty product (2011 US$288m) with 
products and spares contnbutlng cUS$50m 
each To date, Q-Net® has been selected 
to provide protection on the MRAP-L1te, 
Stryker, RG31 and MaxxPro vehicles m the 
US, against such alternatives as bar and slat 
armour, as well as for vehicles 1n France 
and Poland Significant revenue was also 
generated by the Prec1s1on Air Drop System 
(PADS"'), surv1vab1hty products such as 
LAST~ Armor spall hners, and the TALON• 
family of robots, including an order for 
over 100 new Dragon Runner"' 10 robots 
from the US Government's Joint IED Defeat 
Organ1sabon (JIEDDO) 

Underlying operabng profit* increased to 
£66 2m (2011 £52 lmt with an underlying 
profit margin• of 20 4% (2011 11 8%)' The 
margin improvement principally reflects the 
mix of US product sales and substantially 
improved performance 1n the UK where 
the business was re-ahgned with customer 
demand late 2010/11 The technology 
portfoho 1s now ngorously tested for the best 
routes to value creatlon with loss-makers 
divested, or closed, where they lack a viable 
business model or sUJtable market access 

• Definitions of underlying measures of performance are 1n the glossary on page 107 

Dunng the year, businesses that dehver 

technical services were transferred to 
UK and US Services, enabling the 
Global Products d1v1s1on to focus on the 
commerc1al1sat1on of technology In July, as 
part of on-going portfolio review, the Group 
agreed to dispose of Spectra, a supp her of 
011 and fuel analysis instrumentation based 
1n Massachusetts, for US$20m 

To even out its lumpy revenue profile, the 
d1v1s1on continues to increase its portfolto 
of products and the Global Products 
framework 1s del1venng a transatlantic 
approach to product commerc1ahsat1on For 
example, E-X-Dnve•, a hybnd electric dnve 
system developed 1n the UK, was selected 
as part of a consortium for the technology 
development phase of the US Army's 
Ground Combat Vehicle Program, and the 
first transm1ss1on system was dehvered at 
the end of the year The d1v1s1on's Global 
Integrated Pro1ect Team 1s also targeting 
future opportunities for US sales of ALARM, 
a radar that provides warning of 1n-com1ng 
rocket fire, and further UK sales of the 
lightweight Dragon Runner~ robot 

The OptaSense9 fibre-optic sensing business 
has been incorporated as an independent 
global business, with new offices 1n North 
Amenca and the Middle East OptaSense9 , 

a platform technology, is already generating 
revenue 1n the 011 and gas down-hole 
and linear asset markets Following the 
s1gn1ng of a three-year, £26 Sm contract 
with Shell last year, the business agreed a 
global commercial framework agreement 
and began commercral hydraulic fracture 
mon1tonng services on shale wells 1n North 
Amenca OptaSense• now protects more 
than 6,000km of linear assets, 1nclud1ng the 
world's single largest p1pehne project, which 
connects to 75% of India's refinery capacity 

t Restated to reflect the transfer of busmesses from Global Products to UK Services and US Services at the beg1nmng of the 2012 financial year 
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BUSlness review Corporate governance Financial statements 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER'S REVIEW 

WE NOW HAVE A 
SIGNIFICANTLY STRONGER 
BALANCE SHEET 

David Mellors, Chief Financial Officer 

Group results oveMew 

Revenue 

UK Services 

US Services 

Global Products 

Total 

"Another year of 
excellent cash flow 
has enabled us to 
significantly strengthen 
the balance sheet." 

2012 
£m 

6101 

534 5 

3250 

1,469 6 

201l1 
£m 

6527 
6073 

442 6 

1,702 6 

1 Restated to reflect the transfer of the Mann me and Transportation services busrnesses from Global Products to US Services and the Force Protection business from 
Global Products to UK Services at the beginning of the 2012 financial year 

Group revenue was £1,469 Gm (2011 
£1,702 Gm), down 11% on an orgarnc 
basis at constant currency, excluding a 
£25 Sm reduction 1n revenue for divested 
businesses This reflects the uncertain 
trading environment and contract delays 
1n the US and UK defence markets, and the 
exceptionally strong demand for the Q-Net• 
vehicle surv1vab1hty product last year, which 
resulted 1n an expected 24% organic decline 
1n Global Products revenue 

UK Services revenue was down 7% on 
an organic basis at constant currency 
pnnc1pally as a result of pressure on 
customer budgets Approximately £19m 

of the orgarnc reduction was as a result 
of the completion 1n the previous year 
of the DTR Early Works contract 

US Services revenue was also down 1n 
the year by 7% on an organic basis at 
constant currency, reflecting continued 
uncertainties tn the federal services market 
This resulted 1n new and incremental 
orders being delayed and the cancellation 
of some re-competes with shorter-term 
extensions awarded 1n their place Revenue 
was also reduced as a result of completed 
programmes, such as the Iraqi Flight 
Tra1n1ng School, the impact of government 
1nsourc1ng, though the impact has now 

slowed, and the sw1tch1ng of some 
work to small business set-aside contracts 
The organic revenue variance excluded a 
£17m reduction following the divestment 
of the S&lS business 
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER'S REVIEW CONTINUED 

Group summary 

2012 2011 

Revenue (£m) 1,469 6 1,702 6 

Organic change at constant currency (11)% 5% 

Underlying operating profit* (£m) 161.3 145 4 

Underlying operating margin* 110% 85% 

Underlying profit before tax* (£m) 118 3 1146 

Net finance expense (£m) 43 0 308 

Underlying effective tax rate* 199% 190% 

Basic earnings per share 396p 0 Sp 

Underlying earnings per share* 146p 14 2p 

D1v1dend per share 2 90p l 60p 

Underlying net cash from operations (post capex)* (£m) 235 4 265 8 

Underlying operattng cash conversion• 146% 183% 
Net debt (£m) 122 2 260 9 
Net debt EBITDAt 0.Sx 14x 

Average USS/£ exchange rate 1.60 156 

Closing US$/£ exchange rate 160 160 

Underlying operating profit• 

2012 20111 

£m Em 

UK Services 630 474 

US Services 321 45 9 

Global Products 66 2 521 
Total 1613 145 4 

Underlying operating margin 110% 85% 

1 Restated to reflect the transfer of the Manti me and Transportation services busmesses from Global Products to US Services and the Force Protection business from 
Global Products to UK Services at the begmnmg of the 2012 fmanc1al year 

• Definitions of underlymg measures of performance are m the glossary on page 107 

t The gearing ratio is net debt to ad Justed EBITDA and the dehmtion 1s m the glossary on page 107 
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Revenue by customer 

MOO 
DoO 
OHS 
NASA 

Business review 

Commercal Defence 
2012 £1,469 Eim 2011 £1,702 Eim C1V11/0ther Government Agencies 

Group underlying operating profit• rose 
11% to £161 3m (2011 £145 4m) and the 
underlying operating margin• increased to 
110% {2011 8 5%) as a result of last year's 
early cost reduction 1n the UK businesses 
and improved effic1enc1es and mix 1n Global 
Products These improvements were partially 
offset by lower margins 1n US Services, where 
the restructuring 1s now complete, reducing 
indirect costs by US$25m 

UK Services underlying operating profit• 
grew 33% to £63 Om (2011 £47 4m)' and 
the underlying margin• increased to 10 3% 
(2011 7 3%)1

, as the d1v1s1on took action to 
address its cost base last year ahead of the 
expected market headwinds These results 
show the impact of the 24-month self­
help programme, with improved customer 
satisfaction and project management 

US Services underlying operating profit• was 
£32 lm (2011 £45 9m)' and the underlying 
margin• was 6 0% (2011 7 6%)1, as a result 
of the volume impact on revenue, higher 

investment 1n business development, and a 
change 1n revenue mix as lower margin NASA 
work replaced higher margin sales 

In Global Products, the underlying operating 
profit• increased to £66 2m (2011 £52 lm)1 

with an underlying profit margin• of 20 4% 
(2011 11 S%)1 The margin improvement 
primanly reflects the mix of US product sales 
and substantlally improved performance 1n 
the UK, where the business was re-ahgned 
with customer demand late 2010/11 The 
technology portfolio 1s now rigorously tested 
for the best routes to value creation, with 
loss-makers divested, or dosed, where they 
lack a viable business model or suitable 
market access 

Finance costs 
Net finance costs increased to £43 Om 
(2011 £30 Sm) Interest on borrowings 
increased as a result of accelerated interest 
costs of £27 4m following the electlon 
to make early repayment of US$177m of 
private placement debt The previous year 

Underlying profit• for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company 

Net restructuring recovenes/(charges) 

Connngent payments on acqu1s1t1on treated as remuneranon 

Net ga1n/{loss) 1n respect of previously cap1tahsed DTR-programme bid costs 

Impairment of property, plant and equ1pment 

Amornsanon of 1ntang1ble assets arising from acqu1s1tions 

Pension past service gain 

Gain on business comb1nanons and divestments and disposals of investments 

Gain on disposal of property 

Tax impact of items above 

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company 

Corporate governance Flnanoal statements 

included £S Sm of accelerated interest costs 
relatlng to US$135m of private placement 
debt A further srgmficant component 
of this increase was the reduction 1n 
the net pension finance credit to £6 4m 
(2011 £9 lm) as a result of the change 
1n the mix of the pension assets (a lower 
proportion of a higher return equities, 
a higher proportion of lower return bonds) 
and a higher level of gross pension hab1hbes 

Taxation 
The Group's underlying effective tax 
rate• was 19 9% (2011 19 0%) The rate 1s 
principally dependent on the geographic 
spht of profits between the UK and US 
businesses and the ava1lab1hty of Research 
and Development tax rehef 

Acqu1s1non amomsabon and specific 
non-recurring items* 
The performance of the Group, after 
allowing for non-recurring events and 
amornsabon of acquired 1ntang1ble assets, 
1s shown below 

2012 2011 
£m £m 

94 8 92 8 

69.4 (28 6) 

(61) 

41 (23 8) 

(19) (5 9) 

(20 3) (26 3) 

141.4 

11.6 27 

9.0 

(50.2) 02 

257.9 50 

1 Restated to reflect the transfer of the Marin me and Transportation services businesses from Global Products to US Services and the Force Protecbon business from 
Global Products to UK Services at the beginning of the 2012 financial year 

QlnetlQ Group pie Annual Report and Accounts 20U 19 



CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER'S REVIEW CONTINUED 

The resulting statutory profit after tax was 
£257 9m (2011 £5 Om) 

The net restructunng recovery of £69 4m 
(2011 expense of £28 6m) pnmanly relates 
to the agreement with the UK MOO 1n March 
2012 1nvolv1ng a payment to Q1net1Q of £65m, 
that was received after the year end, 1n Apnl 
2012 The agreement involves the d1scharg1ng 
of MOO from its accumulated hab11Jt1es for 
rat1onal1satlon costs incurred 1n previous 
years, together with MOD agreement to 
changes 1n its Special Shareholder nghts, 
and certain other operational issues 

On 19 October 2010, the MOD terminated 
the Defence Tra1n1ng Ratlonahsabon (DTR) 
programme for which Q1net1Q was preferred 
bidder as a 50/50 equity partner 1n the Metnx 
J01nt venture In 2011, £23 Sm was wntten 
off previously cap1tahsed bid costs, net of 
estimated recovery from MOD Negotiations 
with MOD concluded tn 2012, resulting 1n a 
net gain of £4 lm 

The pension past service gain of £1414m 

follows the agreement with the Trustees, 
as part of a package of measures to ensure 
the stab1hty of the defined benefit pension 
scheme, to select the Consumer Pnces Index 
rather than the Retail Pnces Index as the 
relevant index for the increase of pensions 
1n payment 

An impairment charge of £1 9m (2011 fS 9m) 
was taken 1n the year against the Group's 

owned properTies These properties are no 

longer occupied and, since no external tenant 
has been found, the assets are no longer 
generating a return 

The gain on business divestments and disposal 
of investments 1n the year compnses £8 Om 1n 
respect of divestments and £3 6m 1n respect 
of disposal of investments Divestments 
include the disposal ofSpectro Inc, a business 
within the Global Products sector, for 
cons1deranon before costs of US$20 Sm 

Of the £3 Gm gain on disposal of investments, 
£2 Sm relates to the sale of Q1netiQ's 

investment 1n Nomad Holdings Limited Excess 

property 1n the UK was also disposed of dunng 
the year, reahsmg a gain of £9 Om 

Earnings per share 
Underlying earnings per share• was 14 Gp, 
compared with 14 2p for the year ended 

31 March 2011 Basic earrnngs per share 
increased to 39 Gp (2011 O Sp) 

Dividend 
The proposed final d1V1dend ts 2 OOp per share 
(2011 1 GOp per share) The record date for 
the final d1v1dend will be 10 August 2012 
Subject to approval at the Annual General 

Meeting, the final d1v1dend will be paid on 
7 September 2012 

Other finanaals 

cash flow 
Underlying operating cash conversron• 
remained very strong at 146% (2011 183%) 
Underlying cash flow from operations• 
of £235 4m (2011 £265 8m) was dnven 
by ngorous Group·w1de processes and the 
engagement of employees at all levels to 
reduce working capital, asS1sted by deferred 

customer·controlled capital expenditure 
1n the UK Services business It also included 
a net recovery of £18 Sm of costs following 
the cancellation of DTR and the one·off 
mJectlon of £40m into the defined benefit 
(DB) pension scheme 

Acqu1s1tion expenditure, net of cash acquired, 
totalled £0 9m (2011 £15 8m) as a result of 

deferred consideration payments follOW1ng 

the acqu1s1tion of Sensoptics Ltd 1n December 
2012 Net proceeds received from the disposal 
of businesses totalled £11 2m (2011 £38 2m), 
largely from the disposal of the Spectra 
business w1th1n Global Products 

• Oeflrnnons of underlying measures of performance are in the glossary on page 107 

t The geanng raho ts net debt to ad Justed EBlTDA and the deftnlnon is in the glossary on page 107 
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Net debt at 31 March 2012 was £122 2m, 
compared with £2GO 9m at 31 March 2011 
This incorporates accelerated interest of 
£27 4m 1n respect of the early repayment of 

pnvate placement notes and the Company's 
£40m contnbution mto the DB pension 
scheme, and excludes the £GSm payment 

from the MOD which was received after the 
year end The Group's borrowings remained 
comfortably w1th1n its financial covenants, 
with a geanng rat1ot of 0 Sx compared with 
the covenant max:1mum level of 3 Sx, a 

significant improvement from 14x last year 

As a result of the strong cash performance 
dunng the year the Group elected to make 
early repayment of US$177m of pnvate 

placement debt which will complete after year 
end An associated accelerated interest charge 
of £27 4m has been reflected m net finance 
costs 1n 2012 In 2011, net finance costs 
included an £8 Sm accelerated interest charge 
1n respect of the early repayment of US$13Sm 
of prrvate placement debt 1n May 2011 

Following early repayment of pnvate 
placement debt, total committed fac1ht1es 
amount to £429 4m The remaining Group 
debt has no maturrty before 2016 

Pensions 
The net pension hab1hty under IAS 19, after 
deducting deferred tax, was £18 2m (2011 
£92 2m) The key assumptions used in the 
IAS 19 valuation of the scheme are 



Employees by sector 

2012 10,180 201111,208 

Assumption 

Discount rate 

lnflanon (2012 =CPI, 2011 = RPI) 

Salary increase 

Life expectancy- male (currently aged 40) 

Life expectancy- female (currently aged 40) 

Business review 

UK Servrces 
US Services 
Global Products 

Corporate governance Financial statements 

31 March 31 March 
2012 2011 

48% 56% 

2.6% 36% 

3.6% 46% 

90 90 

92 91 

Each assumption 1s selected by the Group 1n consultation with the Company's actuary and takes account of rndustry practice amongst 
comparator listed companies The sensrt1v1ty of each of the key assumptions 1s shown tn the table below 

Assumption 

Discount rate 

Inflation 

Salary increase 

Life expectancy 

The market value of the assets at 31 March 
2012 was £1,107 9m (31 March 2011 
£981 lm) The increase was the result 
of market performance, augmented by 
a one-off £40m cash 1n1ection by the 
Company as part of a package of measures 
agreed with trustees to stab1l1se the scheme 

The present value of scheme llab1hties 
was £1,139 4m (31 March 2011 £1,105 7m) 
The increase was the result of a s1gn1flcant 
reduction 1n the rate used to discount the 
gross scheme hab1hties to present value 
due to dechn1ng bond yields This was 
partially offset by the agreement to select 
the Consumer Pnce Index as a suitable 
index for the payment of pensions and the 
revaluation of benefits, which reduced the 
hab1l1nes by £1414m before tax 

Under the agreement between the 
trustees and the Company, the 30 June 
2011 tnenn1a1 actuarial valuation was also 
finahsed The resulting funding deficit was 
measured at £74 7m and a recovery plan 
was agreed, with the Company making 

Change in 

assumption 

Increase/decrease by 0 1% 

Increase/decrease by 0 1% 

Increase/decrease by 0 1% 

Increase by one year 

annual contnbutlons of £13m to 31 March 
2018, approximately £2 Sm of which will 
be derived from a new asset-backed 
funding structure, secured on certain 
Q1net1Q UK property 

The next scheduled tnenn1at valuation will 
be performed as at 30 June 2014 

Capital nsk 
The Group funds its operations through 
a mixture of equity funding and debt 
flnanc1ng, 1nclud1ng bank and capital market 
borrowings At 31March2012 the Group's 
total equity was £599 4m (2011 £457 Sm), 
with net debt at £122 2m (2011 £260 9m) 

The capital structure of the Group reflects 
the Directors' Judgement of an appropriate 
balance of funding required The Group's 
target 1s to ma1nta1n its gearing ratio below 
2xEBITDA 

Indicative effect on scheme 
hab1ht1es (before deferred tax) 

Decrease/increase by £21 lm 

Increase/decrease by £22 2m 

Increase/decrease by £3 Sm 

Increase by £19 3m 

Treasury policy 
The Group treasury department works 
w1th1n a framework of pohc1es and 
procedures approved by the Audit 
Committee As part of these pohc1es and 
procedures, there 1s stnct control on the use 
of flnanc1al instruments Speculative trading 
1n financial instruments 1s not permitted 
The pohc1es are established to manage and 
control risk 1n the treasury environment and 
to ahgn the treasury goals, ob1ect1ves and 
philosophy of the Group 

Funding and debt portfolio management 
The Group seeks to obtain certainty 
of access to funding 1n the amounts 
and matunties required to support its 
medium to long-term forecast flnanc1ng 
requirements Group borrowings are 
arranged by the Group treasury function 

Interest nsk management 
The Group seeks to reduce the volatility 
1n its interest charge caused by rate 
fluctuations A significant portion of the 
Group's borrowings 1s tixed 1n the short 
to medium term through flxed-rate debt 
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Foreign exchange risk management 

£/USS - average rate 
£/USS - closing rate 

£/USS - open1ng rate 

The pnnc1pal exchange rate affecting 
the Group was the sterling to US dollar 
exchange rate 

The Group's income and expenditure 1s 
largely settled 1n the functional currency 
of the relevant Group entity, principally 
sterhng or the US dollar The Group has 
a pohcy 1n place to hedge all material 
transacbon exposure at the point of 
commitment to the underlying transacaon 
Uncommitted future transactions are not 
routinely hedged The Group continues its 
practice of not hedging income statement 
translation exposure To m1n1m1se the 
impact of currency depreciation of the 
net assets on its overseas subs1d1aries, the 
Group seeks to borrow 1n the currencies 
of those subs1d1aries, but only to the 
extent that its geanng covenant w1th1n its 
loan documentation, as well as its facility 
headroom, are likely to remain comfortably 
w1th1n limits 

Tax risk management 
The central principle of Q1nenQ's tax 
strategy 1s to manage effective and cash tax 
rates whilst fully complying with relevant 
leg1slanon Tax 1s managed 1n ahgnment 
with the corporate strategy and with regard 
to Q1netiQ's core value of integrity 1n all 
business dealings These principles are 
applied 1n a responsible and transparent 
manner 1n pursuing the Group's tax strategy 
and 1n all dealings with tax authorities 
around the world 
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Credit risk 
Credit risk anses when a counterparty 
fails to perform its obhgations The Group 
1s exposed to credit risk on financial 
instruments such as hqu1d assets, 
derivative assets and trade receivables 
Credit risk 1s managed by 1nvesnng hqu1d 
assets and acquiring derivatives from 
h1gh-cred1t quality financial 1nsntunons 
Trade receivables are subject to credit 
hm1ts, control and approval procedures 
The nature of the Group's operations 
leads to concentrations of credit risk in 

its trade receivables The majority of the 
Group's credit risk 1s with the UK and US 
Governments and 1s therefore considered 
to be m1n1mal 

Insurance 
The Group continually assesses the 
balance of risk arising from the operations 
undertaken against the insurance cover 
available for such activities and associated 
premiums payable for such cover A prudent 
and consistent approach to nsk retention 
and scope of cover 1s apphed across the 
Group The Group has a pohcy of self-
1nsurance, through its captive insurance 
company, on the first layer of specific risks 
with insurance cover above these levels 
placed 1n the external market with th1rd­
party insurers 

Employees 

2012 

160 

160 

160 

2011 

156 

160 

152 

Year-end employee numbers decreased 
by 9% to 10,180 at 31 March 2012 The 
decline 1s principally a reflection of normal 
in-year attrition as well as departures under 
the restructuring programme 1n the UK 
and the US and the impact of Government 
in-sourcing and the disposal of Spectro 1n 
the US 

Accounting standards 
As a UK-listed company, the Group 1s 
required to adopt EU endorsed IFRSs and 
to comply with the Companies Act 2006 
The effect of changes to financial reporting 
standards 1n the year 1s disclosed 1n note 1 
to the financial statements 

Cnncal accounting estimates and 
Judgements 1n applying accounting pohc1es 
A description and consrderation of 
the critical accounting estimates and 
Judgements made 1n preparing these 
financial statements 1s set out 1n note 1 
to the Group financial statements 

David Mellors 
Chief Financial Officer 
24 May2012 
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

UNDERPINNING AND 
REVIEWING BUSINESS 
PERFORMANCE 
Non-financial KPls 

Health and Safety 

(lost-nme 1nJury rate per 1,000 employees) 

Employee engagement score 

(UK only on a scale of 0-1,000) 

Customer satisfaction (UK MOD KSM) 
overall score 

Description 
The lost-time m1ury rate 1s calculated 
using the total number of work­
related lost-time incidents xl,000 
d 1v1ded by the average number of 
employees in that year 

Description 
A measure of employee engagement 
on a scale of 0-1,000, based on the 
Best Companies Employee Survey 
Through this channel, employees 
share their views of working at QmetlQ 
under the headings of management, 
leadership, my company, personal 
growth, my team, giving back to the 
community, fair deal and well-being 

Description 
The Key Supplier Management (KSM) 
Framework 1s a mandatory survey 
administered annually by the MOD 
on its Top 22 Key Suppliers The 360 
degree survey concentrates on the 
performance (delivery, engagement 
and relanonsh1p) of the largest­
valued/most strategically important 
contracts totalling c40 contracts 
for QmetlQ 

Comment 
Health and Safety performance 
1s monitored to drive continual 
improvement 1n m1n1m1s1ng nsks 
to employees 

Comment 
The survey forms part of The Sunday 
Times Best Companies to Work For, 
an annual survey run m The Sunday 
Times newspaper that ranks UK 
employers based on their employees' 
feedback and enables comparison 
between QmetlQ and other UK 
companies The 2012 survey will 
take place in Autumn 2012 

Comment 
To demonstrate and measure customer 
satisfaction across the wider UK 
customer base, Q1net1Q also administers 
a customer satlsfacnon survey on those 
MOD contracts which are not selected 
for the MOD KSM Survey as well as a 
sample of industry and commercial 
contracts Smee its inception m 2011, 
this survey has yielded consistent 
results to the KSM Survey In the US, 
customer satisfaction metncs are 
reviewed on a contract-by-contract 
basis and data 1s therefore not available 

QJnedQ Group pk Annual Report and Accounts 2012 23 



KEV PERFORMANCE INDICATORS CONTINUED 

Financial KPls 

Underlying EPS* (pence) 

Organic revenue growth (%) 

Underlying operating profit• (£m) 

Description 
The underlying earnings per share• 
(EPS) expressed in pence per share 

Descript10n 
The Group's organic revenue growth 
1s calculated by taking the increase in 
2012 revenue over 2011 proforma 
revenue, at constant exchange rates 

Description 
The underlying earnings before 
interest and tax* 

Comment 
EPS provides shareholders with a 
measure of the earnings generated 
by the business after deducting tax 
and interest EPS performance also 
determines the level of payout for 
certain of the Group's long-term 
incentwe plans 

Comment 
Organic revenue growth 
demonstrates the Group's capability 
to expand its core operations w1th1n 
its chosen markets before the effect 
of acqu1s1t1ons, disposals and 
currency translation 

Comment 
Underlying operating profit" 1s used 
by the Group for internal performance 
analysis as a measure of operating 
prohtab1hty that 1s tracked over time 

Oefin1nons of underlymg measures of performance are m the glossary on page 107 Underlying fmanc1al measures are presented, as the Board believes these 
provide a better representation of the Group's long-term performance trend 

•The gearing ratio is net debt to adjusted EBITDA and the defin1non is m the glossary on page 107 
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The Group's strategy is underpinned by focusing on a 
number of performance indicators. The key indicators 
that the Board uses to assess Group performance are 
set out on pages 23-25. Similar indicators are used to 
review performance in each of the Group's businesses. 

Underlying operating margin* (%) 

Underlying operating cash 
conversion• (%) 

Gearing ratio' (x) 

Oescnpnon 

The Group's calculation of underlying 
operating margin· 1s consistent with 
previous years Underlying operating 
margin 1s calculated by taking the 
earnings before tax and interest as 
a percentage of revenue 

Descnpnon 

The ratio of our net cash flow from 
operations (excluding reorganisations), 
less outflows on the purchase of 
intangible assets, and property, 
plant and equipment to underlying 
operating profit" excluding the share 
of post-tax results of equity accounted 
Joint ventures and associates 

Oescnpnon 

The Group's gearing ratio' 1s 
calculated as net debt d1v1ded by 
EBITDA, as calculated on accordance 
with the terms of the Group's credit 
fac1h11es, and 1s comfortably within 
our banking covenant hm1t of 3 Sx 

Comment 

Underlying opera!lng margin' can 
be used to show the underlying 
profitability of the revenue delivered 
by the Group It can also be used to 
compare the Group's performance 
with that of our peers, providing the 
defirnllon of underlying opera!lng 
profit is consistent 

Comment 

Provides a measure of the Group's 
ability to generate cash from normal 
operations and gives an 1nd1cat1on 
of its ability to pay d1v1dends, service 
its debt and to make d1scre!lonary 
investments 

Comment 

Net debt to EBITDA provides 
a measure of the strength of 
the Group's balance sheet 

QinetiQ Group pie Annual Report and Accounts 2012 25 



RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

EFFECTIVE MANAGEMENT 
OF RISKS 

Risks are assessed according to the 
hkehhood of an event's occurrence and 
its impact, both from a financial and 
non-financial standpoint The Group Risk 
Register includes an analysis of the potential 
exposures and seventy of each nsk (as a 
function of its l1kehhood and impact), the 
assumptions underlying each nsk and the 
m1ngat1on required to manage 1t The Group 
Risk Register 1s reviewed by the Executive 
Team and considers 

The authority, resources and coordination 
of those involved 1n the 1dentrficat1on, 
assessment and management of the 
significant nsks the organisation faces, 

The nsk register is reviewed by the Board 
and, 1n addition, the nsk owners present 
an update of current status and mitigating 
actions by rotation throughout the year 

Risk 
A change 1n 
demand from 
reduced m1htary 
operations 1n Iraq 
and Afghanistan 

A change 1n 
either US or UK 
Government 
spending on 
defence and 
security 

Changes in 
the timing 
of contracts 

The response to the s1gn1ficant 
nsks which have been identified 
by management and others, 

The mon1tonng of reports from Group 
management, 

The maintenance of a control 
environment directed towards the 
proper management of nsk 

Potential impact 
Current plans of both US and UK Governments are 
to drawdown troops from Afghanistan by the end 
of 2014 A s1gn1ficant shift 1n poltcy by either the US 
Adm1n1strat1on or the UK Government, which resulted 
1n a s1gn1ficant reduction 1n the number of forces 
personnel present 1n Afghanistan, or a change 1n 
the timing, may have a matenally adverse impact 
on the Group's financial performance 

The Strategic Defence and Security Review 1n the UK, 
the US Pres1dent1al electlon, and the financial burden on 
both UK and US Government budgets from the current 
economic downturn, will lead to reduced spending 1n 
the markets 1n which the Group operates In particular, 
the UK 1s reducing its defence budget by 8% 1n real 
terms by 201S and, 1n addition, 1s seeking to remove 
significant over-heating 1n its equipment programme 
In the US, federal estimates 1nd1cate that DoD spending 
will reduce by 5% 1n 2013 and fall further 1n 2014, 
followed by a 2% annual increase through to 2017 Any 
reduction 1n Government defence and security spending 
1n either the UK or the US could have an adverse impact 
on the Group's financial performance 

The amounts payable under some Government 
contracts can be significant and the timing of the receipt 
of orders could have a material impact on the Group's 
performance 1n a given repornng penod 

Mitigation 
QmetiQ has capitalised on increased UK and US Government 
spend ms on technology 1n support of operations 1n Iraq and 
Afghanistan In particular, Q1net1Q has expenenced strong 
demand for Unmanned Ground Vehicles and surv1vab1hty 
products across the duration of both campaigns The focus on 
operatlonal support 1n defence, on both sides of the Atlantic, 
has however, given nse to a decline 1n defence expenditure 
1n other areas, such as services to improve procurement 
efficiency and innovative research The Group mitigates this 
by ma1nta1n1ng a market focus and competitive positioning m 
adjacent markets, 1nclud1ng defence services (which are not 
directly conflict-related), aerospace, secunty and mtelhgence, 
which provides a degree of portfoho d1vers1flcat1on 

Our focus on a range of markets 1n defence, secunty and 
1ntelhgence, provides a degree of portfolio d1vers1flcat1on 
The Group will continue to review trends rn defence, 
aerospace and secunty expenditure 1n order to ahgn the 
business with those trends The UK Government 1s investing 
an additional £650m 1n cyber capability, which offers some 
opportunity to the Group 

The contract and orders p1pehne 1s regularly reviewed 
by senior operational management 
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The understanding and effective management of the risks 
that face QinetiQ is fundamental to its success and is an 
integral part of managing the business. The identification, 
assessment, mitigation and reporting of risks are carried 
out at a Group, business and project level, and are included 
as part of the business performance review process. 

Risk 
Funding of the 
defined benefit 
pension scheme 

Pohc1es or 
attitudes may 
change towards 
Organtsabonal 
Conflicts of 
Interest (OCI) 

Tax hab1ht1es may 
change as a result 
of changes 1n tax 
legislation 

A material 
element of the 
Group's revenue 
and operating 
profit 1s derived 
from one 
contract 

Potential impact 
The Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme 
1n the UK There 1s currently a deficit between the 
projected hab1hty of the scheme and the value of the 
assets 1t holds The size of the deficit may be materially 
affected by a number of factors, 1nclud1ng 1nflat1on, 
investment returns, changes 1n interest rates, and 
improvements 1n hfe expectancy An increase in the 
deficit may require the Group to increase the cash 
contnbutJons to the scheme, which would reduce 
the Group's cash available for other purposes 

The Group provides services to defence customers that 
meet their needs as part of the defence supply chain 
and also as technical advisor through its consultancy 
services The future growth of the business could 
be compromised should our key customers' current 
attitudes to policies change 

Q1net1Q 1s liable to pay tax 1n the countnes tn which 
1t operates, pnnc1pally 1n the UK and the US Changes 
1n the tax leg1slat1on 1n these countnes could have an 
adverse impact on the level of tax pa1d on the profits 
generated by the Group 

The long-Term Partnenng Agreement (LTPA) 1s a 
25-year contract to provide a variety of evaluation, 
testing and tra1n1ng services to the MOD The ong1nal 
contract was srgned in 2003 The LTPA operates under 
five-year periods with specific programmes, targets and 
performance measures set for each period On 3 March 
2008, the Group signed-up to a second five-year period 
of the LTPA with the MOD The next break point 1s rn 
2013 and the Group 1s working with the MOD on the 
associated review In the current year, the LTPA directly 
contributed 12% of the Group's revenue and supported 
a further 7% through tasking services using LTPA­
managed fac1hbes The loss, cancellation or termination 
of, or s1gn1flcant reduction 1n, this contract would have 
a material, adverse impact on the Group's future 
reported performance 

Mitigation 

Pension scheme performance 1s reviewed regularly by Group 
management, 1n conjunction with the scheme's independent 
trustees External actuarial and investment advice 1s also 
taken on a regular basis to ensure that the scheme 1s managed 
1n the best interests of both the Group and of the scheme's 
members The most recent tnenmal funding valuation of the 
scheme, as at 30 June 2011, resulted 1n a deficit of £74 7m 
The Group and trustees have agreed a package of measures 
to enhance the security of the scheme, including deficit 
recovery payments over six years, the use of CPI rather than 
RPI for indexation purposes, and an asset-backed funding 
programme The next funding valuation of the scheme 1s 
at 30 June 2014 

The Group takes proactive steps to manage any potential 
OCI and to ma1nta1n its ability to provide independent advice 
through its consulting and systems engineering act1v1t1es 
In the UK, a formal compliance regime operates with the 
MOO to monitor and assess potential OCI as part of the 
sales acceptance process In March 2012, the Group agreed 
with the MOD that the Company could adopt the generic 
compliance regime 1n use with other companies, 1n place of 
the Q1nebQ-spec1fic one previously 1n operation This change 
will not affect the ngour of the compliance process 

External advice and consultation 1s sought on potential 
changes 1n tax legislation 1n both the UK and the US This 
enables the Group to plan for and mitigate potential 
changes 1n leg1slabon The Group 1s currently acbvely 
engaging with HM Treasury on the proposal to move R&D 
tax credits out of the tax charge and 'above the hne' into 
operating profit If this proposal 1s implemented, 1t could 
increase the Group's Effective Tax Rate over time towards 
a blend of the US and UK corporation tax rates 

The Group continues to achieve customer performance 
and satisfaction levels, and s1gn1flcantly exceeded the 
agreed m1n1mum performance rabng of 80% 1n 2012 
Wh1le achieving the performance scores, the Group 
has achieved s1gn1ficant cost savings for the MOD on 
dehvered services 
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED 

Risk 
The Group 
1s sub1ect to 
US foreign 
ownership 
regulanons 

Failure to comply 
with laws and 
regulations, 
particularly 
trading 
restrictions and 
export controls 

Failure of 
1nformat1on 
technology 
systems and 
breaches of 
data security 

Potential impact 
In the US, the Group undertakes work that 1s deemed 
to be of importance to US national security and, under 
the foreign ownership regulations, arrangements are 
1n place to insulate these activities from undue foreign 
influence as a result of foreign ownership Fatlure to 
comply with the regulanons could result 1n sanctions, 
and suspension or debarment from Government 
contracts, as well as reputanonal damage to the 
Q1net1Q brand 

The Group operates 1n a highly-regulated environment 
and the majority of its revenue 1s generated from sales 
1n the UK and the US The Group 1s subject to numerous 
domestic and international laws, including import 
and export controls, financial and fiscal laws, health 
and safety, environmental, money laundering, anti­
bribery, etc The Group recognises that its operations 
have the potential to have an impact on its employees, 
contractors, v1s1tors, customers, and others 1n the 
community and that failure to comply with particular 
regulations could result 1n a combination of fines, 
penalties, c1v1I or criminal prosecution, and suspension 
or debarment from Government contracts, as well as 
reputational damage to the QmetiQ brand Any one 
of these could have a material impact on the Group's 
financial performance 

The Group operates 1n a highly-regulated information 
technology environment The data held by Q1net1Q 
1s highly confidential and needs to be totally secure, 
particularly against a background of 1ncreas1ng 
cyber-threat A failure of systems could have an impact 
on contract delivery leading to a loss of customer 
satisfaction A breach of data security could have 
an impact on our customers' operations and have 
a significant reputatlonal impact, as well as lead to the 
posstb1hty of exclusion from some types of Government 
contracts, with a detrimental impact on the Group's 
financial performance 
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Mitigation 

The Group has procedures 1n place to ensure that these 
arrangements remain effective and to respond to any 
changes that might occur 1n US attitudes to foreign 
ownership of such act1v1t1es This section entitled 
'Management and control of US subs1d1aries' on page 43 
of this report provides details of the proxy agreement 
between Q1net1Q North Amenca and the US DoD, that 
regulates the ownership, management and operation 
ofQ1net1Q's principal US subs1d1aries 

The Group has procedures and, where appropriate, 
training rn place to ensure that 1t meets all current 
regulations Together, these ensure the Group manages, 
both corporately and at local business level, the effective 
1dent1ficat1on, measurement, and control of regulatory 
nsk and also ensure this prinetple 1s at the centre of our 
management of safety and other issues Local management 
continuously monitors local laws and regulations, and 
policies are 1n place for the appointment of advisors to 
support business development Professional advice 1s 
sought when engaging rn new territories to ensure that the 
Group complies with local and international regulations and 
requirements The terms of reference of the Compliance 
Committee have been expanded to review the effectiveness 
of the compliance risk frameworks 

The information systems are designed with consideration 
to single points of failure and the removal of risk through 
minor and major system failures The business ma1nta1ns 
business continuity plans that cover both geography, e g, 
sites and business units, as well as the technical capab1hty 
of staff These plans cover a range of scenarios, 1nclud1ng 
loss of access to 1nformatlon technology systems The 
plans are tested at appropriate intervals Data security 
1s assured through a multi-layered approach, that 
provides a hardened environment, rnclud1ng robust 
physical security arrangements, data res1hence strategies 
and the appl1cat1on of security technologies, as well as 
comprehensive internal and external testing of potential 
vulnerab1ht1es In addition, the systems are monitored 
and managed on a 24/7 basis 



Risk 
F1xed·pnce 
contracts 

H1ghly­
compehtive 
marketplace 

Inherent risks 
of trading 1n a 
global market 

Ra1s1ng external 
funding and 
volatlhty 1n 
interest rates 

Exchange rate 
movement 

Real1sat1on 
of value from 
intellectual 
property may 
be delayed 

Acqu1srt1on 
of businesses 

Potential impact 
Some of the Group's revenue 1s derived from contracts 
that have a hxed pnce There 1s a nsk that the costs 
required for the delivery of a contract could be 
higher than those agreed 1n the contract as a result 
of the performance of new or developed products, 
operational over·runs or external factors, such as 
1nflabon Any s1gn1hcant increase 1n costs which cannot 
be passed on to a customer may reduce the profitab1hty 
of a contract or even result 1n a contract becoming 
loss-making 

The aerospace, defence and security markets are highly 
compennve The Group's financial performance may be 
adversely affected should 1t not be able to compete 1n 
the markets 1n which 1t aims to operate 

Q1nenQ operates 1nternanonally The risks associated 
with having a large geographic footprint may include 
regulanon and adm1n1stranon changes, changes 1n 
taxanon pohcy, pohncal 1nstab1hty, c1v1I unrest, and 
differences 1n culture and terms of reference, leading 
to a lack of common understanding with customers 
Any such events could disrupt some of the Group's 
operanons and have a material impact on its future 
financial performance 

The Group relies on the proper funcnoning of the 
credit markets which could have an impact on both the 
ava1lab1hty and associated costs of financing The Group 
1s exposed to interest rate nsk to the extent borrowings 
are issued at floanng interest rates 

The Group 1s exposed to volanlity 1n exchange rates as 
a result of the 1nternanonal nature of its operanons 
This includes a translanonal impact on the key financial 
statements as a result of the Group repornng its 
financial results 1n sterling The Group has hm1ted 
transacnon exposure as its revenue and related 
costs are often borne 1n the same currency, pnnc1pally 
US dollars or sterling Of the Group's total revenue, 
approximately 43% are contracted 1n sterling, 55% 
1n US dollars and 2% 1n euros 

The funded research and development work that the 
Group undertakes for defence and other customers 
creates intellectual property that 1t retains and can 
use for commerc1at apphcanons The uncertainty that 
exists over new technologies and markets may result 
1n delays, failure to realise value from intellectual 
property, or the need for a higher level of investment 
for the opportunity to be realised The add1nonal 
investment required may have to be funded from the 
Group's own capital resources which may have an 
adverse impact on its financial performance 

The Group has the ability to acquire other businesses 
and companies These acqu1s1nons may not perform 
1n hne with expectanons, thereby having a detnmental 
impact on the Group's financial performance 

Corporate governance Finanaal statements 

Mitigation 
The nature of many of the services provided under such 
flxed-pnce arrangements rs often for a defined amount 
of effort or resource rather than firm deliverables and, as 
a result, m1ngates the risk of costs escalanng The Group 
ensures that its fixed-pnce bids and projects are reviewed 
for early detecnon and management of issues which may 
result 1n cost over-run 

Q1nenQ seeks to focus on areas within these markets 1n 
which its deep customer understanding, domain know1edge, 
technical expernse and platform independence provide 
a strong propos1non and a significant advantage m 
compennve b1dd1ng 

While the core acnv1nes of the Group are confined to 
the UK and the US, 1t connnues to explore potennal 
customer relanonsh1ps across the globe These new 
relanonsh1ps are assessed for their inherent nsks, using 
our lnternanonal Business Opportunity Management 
process before being formally entered into 

The Group ma1nta1ns a prudent level of committed 
funding fac1hnes a five-year muln-currency facility 
totalhng £275m was provided by its relanonsh1p banks 
and signed 1n 2011 This 1s currently undrawn The Group 
also uses fixed-rate debt instruments issued to US pnvate 
placement investors with maturity dates up to 2019 

The Group acnvely hedges all s1gn1flcant transacnonal 
foreign exchange exposure as descnbed 1n the notes 
to the financial statements and has adopted hedge 
accounnng The Group's objecnve 1s to reduce med1um­
term volanhty to cash flow, margins and earntngs 
The Group protects its balance sheets and reserves 
from adverse foreign exchange movements by 
financing acqu1s1nons in North America with US dollar­
denom1nated borrowings, thereby parnally m1ngatlng the 
nsk as US dollar earnings are used to service and repay US 
dollar-denominated debt 

The Group invests 1n the development of intellectual 
property only where 1t believes there 1s a reallsnc market 
opportunity for the technology The performance 
of intellectual property real1sanon programmes 1s 
monitored to increase support for successful prospects 
and reduce expenditure where reahsanon appears less 
hkely The Group uses external experts and financial 
backers as partners 1n a vanety of structures to improve 
the performance of certain intellectual property 
reahsatlon projects 

The nsks are m1ngated through the due d1hgence and 
internal approvals processes In addition, the usual 
contractual protecnons are included 1n purchase 
agreements signed with vendors 
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW 

WORKING WITH 
OUR STAKEHOLDERS 

Performance summary progress 1n the year 

2011 Objectives 

Reduction 1n reportable UK 1nc1dents 
to zero by 2014 

Attainment of OHSAS 18001 on the UK 
by 2013 

10% reduction 1n UK carbon em1ss1ons 
by 2012 

Continue to improve waste management 
1n the UK 

Continue to work proacbvely with 
customers and suppliers on sustainable 
procurement issues 

Governance 
At Board level, the Compliance Committee 
oversees the Group's Corporate 
Respons1b1hty and Susta1nab1hty (CR&S) 
strategy, and receives progress updates 
At an Execubve level, the Safety, Assurance 
and Susta1nab1l1ty Committee, which 
reports into the Group's Executive Team, 
meets quarterly to review progress 
The CR&S strategy and programmes 
are overseen by the Head of Corporate 
Respons1bil1ty and Susta1nab1!1ty, who works 
with the assurance and audit funcnons to 
monitor and evaluate programmes 

Business management 
We respond promptly to changing 
leg1slanon by updating local pohctes, such 
as health and safety, environment, trade 
controls, business ethics and equality, 
taking regional differences 1n stakeholder 
requirements and law into account Our UK 
business management system 1s certrhed 
to IS09001 Our Australian business 1s also 
IS09001 certified and has recently 
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2011 Progress 

New programmes such as the Actions 
Speak louder Than Words campa1gn and 
QmenQ V1s1ble Active Leadership (OVAL) 
were introduced (page 31) 

Assessment programme agreed with 
our external auditors (BSI) to commence 
on August 2012 (page 31) 

Over 10% reduction 1n carbon emissions 
and attained Carbon Trust Standard 
re-certification 1n the UK (page 32) 

Appointment of an Asset Management 
Lead Mapping and re-exam1n1ng our 
waste streams and re-basehn1ng our 
data (page 32) 

Engaged with the MOD on sustainable 
procurement Worked with supphers to 
help us map our carbon footprint better 
Included susta1nab1hty 1n our customer 
sat1sfacnon questionnaire (page 33) 

completed a leadership restructure ln the 
US, we have an ongoing programme of 
certlhcatlon, 1ndud1ng 15019001 for major 
sites and contracts 

Strategy 
Our v1s1on encompasses more than financial 
success We continue to focus on business 
ethics, our people, excellent environmental 
stewardship and being a good neighbour 

Customers 
We put customers first, by hsten1ng to, 
understanding and responding to their 
needs and expectations Our approach 
has resulted 1n our customer satisfaction 
scores with the MOD 1ncreas1ng s1gn1ficantly 
(moving from 17th to 3rd over the past 
two years) Through our UK customer 
sansfacnon programmes we have now 
embedded susta1nab1hty issues to ensure 
that we understand the needs of our 
customers In QNA, our NASA team received 
a greater than 90% sansfacnon score 1n its 
first year on the ma1or ESC contract 

2012 Objectives 

Reduction 1n reportable UK 1nc1dents 
to zero by 2014 

Attainment of OHSAS 18001 m the 
UK by 2013 

15% reduction 1n UK carbon em1ss1ons 
by 2015 - to be dehvered through 
investment projects, reducing business 
travel and 1mprov1ng employee 
engagement 

Continue to improve waste management 
1n the UK 1n relation to the whole waste 
hierarchy, not simply recyd1ng 

Meet the MOD's requirements for key 
suppliers to provide envrronmental 
information 

Business ethics 
We have introduced a new code of 
conduct for employees which provides 
gu1dehnes on the way we do business 
A clear commitment to ethical business 
pracnce from senior leaders has been 
communicated to employees through 
a range of channels, for example the 
1nnovanve 'ethical moment' email messages 
at QNA We have appointed an Ethics 
Officer for each region (UK, QNA and 
Austraha), and all employees continue to 
be required to complete annual business 
ethics training In addition, in-depth tra1n1ng 
1s provided for those employees involved 1n 
1nternanonal business Due d1hgence for the 
appointment of overseas representatives 
1s undertaken by independent third 
parnes, such as TRACE All employees are 
encouraged to seek help and advice when 
dealing with ethical issues and all have 
access to an independent whistle-blower 
hne We monitor important data such as 
gifts and hosp1tahty and have a clear pohcy 
that we do not make pohtlcal donanons 



Business review Corporate governance Rnandal statements 

"In a changing world with increasing economic, environmental and social 
pressures, we maintain our commitment to being a responsible and 
sustainable business. By embedding this approach into the way we do 
business, we are able to increase our efficiency, reduce risks and engage 
with our stakeholders." 
Mark Elliott, Chairman 

Safety and wellbeing 
Throughout the Group we consider the 
safety and wellbeing of our people to be a 
pnonty We ensure we provide safe places 
to work and provide relevant tra1mng for 
employees and expert advisors This 1s 
underpinned by dear leadership and, where 
necessary, improvement programmes 

In the UK, our RIDDOR (Reporting 
of lnJunes, Diseases and Dangerous 
Occurrences Regulations) rate for this year 
was 2 12 per 1,000 employees, which 1s 
well below the 'all 1ndustnes' benchmark 
of 4 63 per 1,000 employees We have set 
challenging targets 1n the UK to gain OHSAS 
18001 by 2013 and to reduce reportable 
1nc1dents to zero by 2014 To meet these, 
we have introduced a number of 1n1t1at1ves 
1ndud1ng piloting a new training module 
called Q1netlQ V1s1ble Acbve Leadership 
(QVAL), which focus on safety culture and 
behaviour The QVAL package enables the 
business to create a bespoke programme 
to meet its 1nd1v1dual needs Programmes, 
such as My Contribution and Actions 
Speak Louder Than Words are designed 
to engage our employees 1n ma1nta1mng 
a safe place to work We introduced a 
Health, Safety and Environment (HS&E) 
Leadership Benchmark, which 1s a simple 
assessment of an 1nd1v1dual's behaviour 
and actions 1n relabon to safety and 
environmental issues The benchmark 
aims to provide a consistent approach to 
setting 1nd1v1dual HS&E objectives for our 
management team and senior leaders No 
prosecubons or proh1b1t1on or improvement 
notices were issued by regulators We were 
delighted to receive again a Gold award 
from the Royal Society for the Prevention 
of Accidents (ROSPA), which 1nd1cates the 
strength of our safety performance 

Lost time mc1dents per 1,000 employees 

UK 
QNA 

Austraha 

Q1net1Q Group 

1 Total for UK & QNA only 

Our UK employees have access to an 
Employee Wellbeing Programme that 
provides 1nformat1on and support on 
financial, legal and family matters and 
counselling In the UK, employees also have 
access to a benefits package - Benefits+ 
and a new wellbeing portal - 'Be Healthy' 
These provide an excellent package 
of healthcare benefits, an employee 
assistance programme, and a purchase 
discount scheme QNA has expanded its 
'Health 1n Motion' program by 1ntroduc1ng 
V1tahty, a comprehensive, interactive and 
personahsed wellness programme 

"We are fully committed 
to providing a safe 
working environment 
throughout our sites, as 
well as safe products, 
services and advice." 
Stephen Evans-Howe, Director of Safety, 

Assurance and Susta1nab1l1ty 

Employee development 
We take great pride 1n the calibre of our 
people and are committed to a range of 
employee development 1mt1at1ves, for all 
career stages, from induction to leadership 

In the UK, we are promoting the concept 
of employab1l1ty, the idea that working 
with us, people will be more employable 
and better positioned 1n their future career 
moves To support this, we have introduced 
career development frameworks for 
roles, which demonstrate the career path 

2008 2009 

761 466 

157 109 

n/a n/a 
5071 3 00' 

that an 1nd1v1dual can take 1f they wish 
to progress We have also signed a three­
year agreement with Sk1llsoft, a provider 
of global e-learn1ng business courses and 
onl1ne books on Eng1neenng and IT 

We have introduced a new leadership 
programme to increase our leadership 
capability The Advanced Programme 
for Leaders targets our senior leaders to 
ensure we have consistent and strong 
role model behaviours around our five 
leadership behaviours, the five 'Es' (Energy, 
Excite, Execute, Engage and Empower) 
The Foundation Programme for Leadership 
provides a range of targeted modules 1n 
leadership and performance management 
for those m first line-manager roles 

We have also introduced coaching and 
momtonng to increase our coaching culture 
In sales, we have rolled out High Value 
Sales and negotiation skills tra1n1ng for all 
employees involved 1n relevant roles and 
have developed a tra1mng path for Project 
Managers which 1s externally accredited 
by the Association of Project Management 
Our talent programme aims to identify 
our future leaders QNA continues to 
work with the Darden Business School 
at the Un1vers1ty of V1rg1n1a to develop 
future leaders For QNA technical 
employees, the focus 1s on prov1d1ng 
spec1al1st technical tra1n1ng, ensuring 
knowledge 1s rapidly deployed 

Employee engagement 
A range of channels, from 1ntranet 
and emails to posters, team meetings 
and 'townhall' meetings with senior 
management, are used to engage with 
employees In the UK, the Employee 
Engagement Group (EEG), a new employee 
engagement forum was established The 

2010 2011 2012 

5 32 4 73 5 01 

212 185 1 56 

388 395 1070 
378 3 28 3 62 
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED 

EEG has been introduced to provide an 
all-1nclus1ve structure to improve employee 
engagement and consultation More than 
40 representatives, elected by employees, 
from across the business will work together 
to fac1l1tate greater engagement The EEG 
will play an active role 1n monitoring and 
feeding back on employee views 

The Austrahan business has. introduced a 
half-yearly Employee Engagement Survey 
to monitor the effect of actions intended 
to improve employee engagement At QNA, 
employees attend townhall meetings and 
participate 1n employee surveys Employee 
focus groups have been introduced to 
review commun1cation messages and 
channels to improve the d1s.sem1nation 
of 1nformation 

The My Contnbution programme continues 
to delwer results with over 9,000 ideas 
submrtted 1n the UK, del1venng over £20m 
of value Nearly half the UK workforce has 
submrtted an idea This concept 1s being 
adapted for roll-out tn QNA 

Employee equality and d1vers1ty 
As a Company that operates 1nternat1onally, 
we employ and work with people from a 
wide range of backgrounds and cultures 
We are committed to a workplace free of 
d1scnm1nat1on and this 1s reflected 1n the 
way we recruit, hire, train and promote, 
and provide conditions of employment 

The Board recognrses the benehts of Board 
d1vers1ty and will work towards government 
recommendations and industry best 
practice, while always ensunng that all 
Board Directors are appointed on ment 

UK carbon data 

UK gas use (GWh) 

UK 011 use (GWh) 

UK electnc1ty use (GWh) 

Total C02 from energy use (ktonnes) 

Total C02 from transport {ktonnes) 

32 QlnetiQ Group pit Annual Report and Accounts 2012 

We are committed to the fair treatment 
of people with d1sab1hties 1n relation to 
applications, training, promotion and career 
development If an ex1sttng employee 
becomes disabled, the Group's pohcy 1s 
to provide continuing employment and 
tra1n1ng, wherever practicable 

Environmental management 
In the UK, we have introduced a new team 
of environmental advisors, which 1s working 
closely with our existing network of health, 
safety and environmental advisors, to 
help dnve continuous improvement 1n our 
environmental performance We continue 
to ma1nta1n IS014001 2004 certification 
for our estate and those sites we manage 
on behalf of the MOD This includes 
managing our business on, or close to, areas 
of national and international importance 
for conservation, such as Sites of Special 
Scientific Interests {SSSI), and on St Kilda, 
a World Hentage Site 

Carbon management 
Our UK Carbon Management Group 
continues to focus on trntlatlves to reduce 
energy use and travel The table below 
shows our year-on-year progress We 
were pleased to obtarn recertification of 
the Carbon Trust Standard for our work 
1n measunng and managing energy and 
were ranked 195th (out of 2,103} in the 
UK Government's Carbon Reduction 
Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme 
Employees continue to be engaged m 
low-carbon 1n1t1at1ves through the Energy 
Champion network and campaigns, as 
well as contnbutlng ideas through the 
My Contribution programme We have 
also committed to purchase our UK 
electnc1ty from renewable sources for the 

2008 2009 

686 66 8 
214 21 7 

1136 102 7 

79 3 73 2 

n/a 260 

next three years and, this year, introduced 
solar panels at our Farnborough site We 
continue to report annually through the 
Carbon Disclosure Project 

The Austrahan business 1s now collecting 
data on energy consumption and travel, 
which are reported here for the first time 
(6 5 GWh of electnc1ty use and 280 tonnes 
of co2 from air travel) 

''The Carbon 
Trust Standard 
recertification enables 
us to demonstrate 
clearly our continued 
commitment to 
limiting environmental 
impact." 
Chris Johnson, Director of 

Sha red Services 

Waste management 
We have set ourselves the target 1n the 
UK to improve our waste management, 
focusing on the complete waste hierarchy 
and not solely recychng We are mapping 
and re-examining our waste-streams and 
re-basel1rnng our data We have appointed 
an Asset Management lead, to find 
ways of optim1s1ng our assets, through 
to disposal, but with a significant focus on 
re-use across the business and reducing 
procurement Total UK waste this year 

2010 2011 2012 

64 7 630 444 

20 6 203 168 
99 3 94 2 876 
707 676 60.0 

19 8 16 6 12 2 



was 3,500 tonnes, 1nclud1ng 72 tonnes 
of hazardous waste More than 70% of 
our waste was diverted from landhll 

Recycling programmes operate across much 
of QNA Recycling and separation of waste 
1s the norm 1n Q1net1Q Austraha with the 
focus on waste reducnon now at the top of 
the agenda, 1nclud1ng reduction 1n pnntlng 
and copying and more efficient use of 
production matenals 

Sustainable procurement 
We continue to 1nst1I a responsible and 
sustainable approach to the way we work 
with our customers and suppliers As an 
active member of the UK MOD Sustainable 
Procurement Working Group, we are 
comm1tted to completing the annual self­
assessment on water, waste and carbon 
(the latter through the Carbon Disclosure 
Pro1ect) We have provided tra1mng for our 
UK buyers on topics such as bribery 1n the 
supply chain The UK Strategic Sourcing 
team has introduced a new buying model 
embedding susta1nab1hty 

We continue to develop new technology 
ideas to contnbute to global environmental 
problems, such as the need for renewable 
energy Our Energy from Waste team has 
created a demonstrator of their pyrolysis 
unit at our Farnborough Head Office and 
tnals are ongoing 

A ma1or part of our UK business 1s the 
dehvery of test and evaluation and 
training support services to the UK MOD 
The work 1s conducted on MOD sites, many 
of which are designated conservation areas 
As a result, we carry out susta1nab1hty 
appraisals to identify and mitigate any 
impact to the flora, fauna and any other 
sensitive receptors 

Business revtew 

Community investment 
Across the Group, employees support their 
communities by volunteenng their time 
and professional skills 

In the UK, we have introduced a new 
Employee Volunteering Scheme to build 
on a range of ad-hoc programmes and 
make 1t easier to monitor and measure 
success Employees continued to focus on 
work with schools, through programmes 
such as the STEM (Science, Technology, 
Eng1neenng, Maths) Academy and the 
Q1net1Q Powerboat Challenge, with the 
aim of 1nsp1nng the next generation of 
scientists and engineers Employees are 
also using their professional skills, such as 
our involvement 1n the Young Enterpnse 
programme and with local charities We 
continue to promote this programme to 
beneht communities 1n which we operate 
as well as to develop our people Engineers 
1n our Science for Society programme 
have provided technical advice to Non­
Government Organisations working 1n Laos 
on the disposal of unexploded ordnance 
{UXO), for the past six years Dunng a recent 
v1s1t to Mahaxy d1stnct 1n Khammouane 
province, the team provided advice 
on sustainable technologies and tra1n1ng 

QNA also recognises the importance of 
young people pursuing STEM careers and 
so supports 1n1tiat1ves, such as robot 
challenges They also support a range 
of fundra1s1ng activities for m1htary and 
health chantles 

In total, across the Group, chantable 
donations from the business amounted 
to £108,400 In the UK, employees have 
chosen new charities to support (Cancer 
Research UK, RNU and Help for Heroes) 
and these will continue to receive matched 
funding for any act1v1tles UK employees 
also raised a further £S3,978 through 
fundra1s1ng and payroll g1v1ng 
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In Austraha, we provide a range of 
opportumtles for employees to contribute 
to a range of chanties while simultaneously 
competing in physically demanding pursuits 
As an example, the Kokoda Challenge creates 
opportumties for teams of four to complete 
a 24-hour trek 1n South-east Queensland to 
replicate the tnals of Australian forces that 
battled along the Kokoda Track 1n Papua 
New Guinea dunng WWII The teams raised 
AUS$4,600 for the charity, which helps 
disadvantaged teenagers 
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BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS 

Mark Elliott 

Non-executive Chairman- 63 

Appomtmentto the Board 
Appointed Non-executive Chairman 
1n March 2010, Non-executive 
Director between June 2009 and 
February 2010 

Committee memberships 
Chairman of the Nominations 
Committee, Member of the 
Compliance Committee and 
Remunerauon Committee 

Skills and experience 
Mark is a Non-executive Director 
of Reed ElseVler Group pie {and 1s 
also Chairman of its Remuneration 
Committee), Reed Elsevier NV 
and G4S pie He was previously 
General Manager of IBM Europe, 
Middle East and Africa and sat on 
IBM's Worldwide Management 
Counol The Board conS1ders that 
Mark's extenStve experience m the 
technology services sector, m the 
US and Europe, together with his 
exposure to a vanety of industry 
sectors on the boards of FTSE hsted 
com pa mes, 1s a valuable asset to the 
Group m terms of leadership and of 
addressmg the strategic issues that 
affect the Group 

Leo Quinn 

Chief Executive Officer - SS 
Appointment to the Board 
Appomted Chief E)(ecutwe Officer 
m November 2009 

Committee memberships 
Member of the Comphance 
Committee, Nominations 
Committee and Security 
Committee 

Skills and expenence 
Leo was Chief Executive Officer 
of De La Rue pie between 2005 
and 2009 He was preVlousty Chief 
Operating Officer of Invensys pie's 
Production Management D1V1s1on 
and before that spent 16 years with 
Honeywell Inc, ma variety of sernor 
management roles m the USA, 
Europe, the Middle East and Afnca 
He was formerly a Non-executive 
Director ofTomkms pie 
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David Mellors 

Chief Financial Officer -43 

Appointment to the Board 
Appomted Chief Fmanaal Officer 
m August 2008 

Committee memberships 
Member of the Compliance 
Committee and Security 
Committee 

Skills and experience 
DilVld was previously deputy Chief 
Financial Officer of Logica pie He 
was also Chief Fmanc1al Officer 
of Logica's international d1v1s1on, 
covenng operations m North 
America, Austraha, the Middle 
East and Asia and, before that, was 
the Group Financial Controller 
His earher expenence mdudes 
various roles with CMG pie, Rio 
Tinto pie and Pnce Waterhouse 
He 1s a member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants ln England 
&Wales 

Michael Harper 

Deputy Chairman and Sernor 
Independent Non-execunve 
Olrector-67 

Appointment to the Board 
Appointed Non-executive Director 
m November 2011 Appointed 
Deputy Chairman and Sernor 
Independent Non-executive 
Director in February 2012 

Committee memberships 
Member of the Audit Committee, 
Compliance Committee, 
Nominations Committee, 
Remuneration Committee 
and Secunty Committee 

Skills and experience 
Michael was appomted Chairman 
of BBA Aviation pie mJune 2007, 
havmg1omed the Board m February 
2005 He ls also Chairman of the 
Vi tee Group pie and of Ricardo pie 
He was previously a Director of 
Wdhams pie where, at the time of 
the demerger m 2000, he became 
Chairman of Kidde pie The Board 
considers that Michael's wealth 
of operational and corporate 
experience will enable him to 
make a significant contribution 
to the Board 



Cohn Balmer 

Non·executive Director- 6:S 

Appointment to the Board 
Appomted Non executwe Director 
m February 2003 

Committee memberships 
Chairman of the Compliance 
Committee and Secunty Committee, 
Member of the Audit Committee, 
Nommatlons Committee and 
Remuneration Committee 

Skills and expenence 
Cohn 1s currently on the Board of 
the Royal Mmt and Oiair of 1ts Audit 
Committee He has held semor posts 
1n Government. mdudmg Managing 
Director of the Cabinet Office, from 
2003 until his retirement m 2006 
He was previously Fmance Director 
of the MOO, and was respons1ble 
for QinetiQ's pnvatisation 
Notwithstanding that Colin has 
served on the Board for more than 
mne years, the Board still COllSlders 
that he rem ams independent 1n 
character and 1udgement Further, 
the Board considers that Cohn's 
extensive knowledge of the 
development of QlnetiO. together 
with his m·depth understandmg 
of the working of Government 
continue to prOV1de a unique 
msight mto the issues Government 
faces 1n dehvenng1ts procurement 
objectives and m partnering with 
mdustry suppliers 

Noreen Doyle 

Non-execut\ve Director - 63 

Appointment to the Board 
Appointed Non-executive Director 
In October 2005 

Committee memberships 
Chairman of the Remuneration 
Committee, Member of the Audit 
Committee, Comphance Committee 
and Nominations Committee 

Skills and experience 
Noreen 1s a member of the Board 
of Credit Suisse Group {Zurich) 
and its UK regulated subsid1anes 
She is a Non-executwe Director 
of Newmont Mining Corporation 
(Denver), where she 1s Chair of the 
Audit Committee, and Rexam pie, 
where she 1s Chair of the Finance 
Committee She was previously 
First Vice President of the European 
Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development (EBRO) Before EBRO, 
she worked in COfporate finance 
and leveraged hnanongat Bankers 
Trust Company (now Deutsche 
Bank) The Board considers that 
Noreen's extensive international 
business experience, particularly ln 
corporate finance, risk management 
and banking. 1s of stgmhcant benefit 
to the Board 

Jon Messent 
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Admiral Sir James Burnell-Nugent 

Non-executive Director - 62 

Appointment to the Board 
Appomted Non-executive Director 
1nApnl2010 

Committee memberships 
Member of the Audit Committee, 
Compllance Committee, 
Remuneration Committee, 
Nom1natioos Committee and 
SecuntyComm1ttee 

Skills and expenence 
Sir James commanded the aircraft 
earner HMS lnvmc1ble and three 
other ships and submarines durmg 
a 37·year career in the Royal Navy 
that culminated m his appointment 
as Commander 1n·Ch1ef Fleet. 
Between operational duties he 
held several positions at the 
MOD and gamed cross-Whitehall 
expenence while on secondment to 
HM Treasury The Board considers 
that Sir James' expertise in the 
Government contracting domain, 
particularly with the UK MOO and 
HM Treasury, 1s highly benehc1al 
m the context of QinetiQ's 
Government-sourced operations 

Paul Murray 

Non-execut\ve Director- SO 

Appointment to the Board 
Appointed Non-executive Director 
m October 2010 

Conmlttee memberships 
Chairman of the Audit Committee, 
Member of the Compliance 
Committee, Nommatlons 
Committee, Remuneration 
Committee and Security 
Committee 

Skills and experience 
Paul 1s currently a Non executive 
Director and Audit Committee Chair 
at Royal Mail Holdings pie He is also 
a Director of Naked Energy Ltd and 
Knowledge Peers pie and a Trustee 
of P1lotllght He was previously 
Senior Independent Director of 
Taylor Nelson Sofres pie, a Non­
exerutive Director of Thomson SA 
and Tangent Commurneations pie, 
and has also been Group Rnance 
Director of Carlton Communreations 
pie and LASMO pie The Board 
considers that Paul brings a broad 
range of experience rn hnance and 
corporate governance from a cross­
section of industnes, all of which 
leverage technology 

Company Secretary and Group General Counsel-48 

Appointment 
Appointed as Company Secretary and Group General Counsel m January 2011 

Skills and expenence 
Jon JOlned QmetiQ from Oilonde Group pie where he held a similar role He has 
a background m leg<31 private practice as well as general counsel and company 
secretanal experience mother FTSE250 companies 
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE REPORT 

''We continue to view the achievement of high 
standards of corporate governance as essential 
to building value in our business and to promoting 
the long-term success of our Company." 
Mark Elhott, Chairman 

The Board considers that Q1net1Q has 
complied with the prov1s1ons of the UK 
Corporate Governance Code (the 'UK Code') 
throughout the last financial year The UK 
Code and associated guidance are publicly 
available on the Corporate Governance 
page of the Financial Reporting Council's 
website, www frc org uk/corporate This 
report provides details of the way the 
principles of the UK Code have been applied 
dunng the year 

The Board -governance, processes 
and systems Board ob1ecnves 
To demonstrate the highest standards of 
corporate governance 1n accordance with 
the UK Code to 

Ensure the continuing evolution and 
1mplementabon of the Group's strategy 
to deliver value to all stakeholders 
customers, employees and shareholders, 
Develop challenging obJecnves for the 
business and monitor management 
performance against those goals, 
Provide a framework of effecbve controls 
to assess and manage nsks, with clear 
expectabons for conduct to the highest 
standards of ethics, 
Provide support and constructive 
challenges to the Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO) to promote the Group's success, 
Demonstrate leadership 1n management 
systems around health, safety and 
environment, 
Manage succession planning for the 
Board and the Group's executive 
management 
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Composition of the Board 
Details of the Board of Directors are on 
pages 34 and 35 The Board currently 
has eight members the Non-executive 
Chairman, five other Non-executive 
Directors, and two Executive Directors­
the Chief Executive Officer (CEO} and the 
Chief F1nanc1al Officer (CFO) 

Executive and Non-executive 
Board compos1non 
Mark Elliott has been the Non-executive 
Chairman of Q1netiQ since 1 March 2010, 
having first Joined the Board as a Non­
executive Director on 1 June 2009 

A number of changes 1n the compos1non 
of the Non-execunve Directors took place 
dunng the year 

David Langstaff resigned on 18 Apnl 2011, 
Admiral Ed G1ambastian1 resigned on 
2 August 2011 and Sir David Lees resrgned 
as Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent 
Non-executive Director on 31January2012 
On 22 November 2011, Michael Harper 
Joined us as a Non-executive Director and 
became the Group's Deputy Chairman and 
Semor Independent Director 1n February 
2012 following Sir David lees' departure 
The Board thanks Sir David for his dedication 
and valuable contnbunon to the Board 

The Board considers its overall size and 
compos1non to be appropriate, having 
regard 1n particular to the independence 
of character and 1ntegnty of all the Directors 
and the experience and skills that they 
bnng to their duties, which prevents any 
1nd1vidual or small group from dominating 
its dec1s1on-mak1ng 

The Board has due regard to the benefits 
of d1vers1ty (1nclud1ng gender d1vers1ty) when 
cons1denng its composition 

It considers that the skills and experience 
of its 1ndrvidual members, particularly in 

the areas of UK/US defence and security, 
the commerc1al1sanon of innovative 
technologies, corporate finance, mergers 
and acqu1s1tions, and nsk management, 
have been fundamental 1n the pursuit of 
Q1net1Q's strategic 1n1tiatives (as descnbed 
in the Chief Executive Officer's statement on 
pages 4 to 6 of this report) 1n the past year In 
addition, the quoted company experience of 
members of the Board 1n a vanety of industry 
sectors and international markets has also 
been invaluable to the Group as 1t seeks to 
consolidate its position m its core markets 
and geographic terntones 

Roles and respons1b1hnes 
The Board 1s responsible for overseeing 
the Executive Directors' management of 
operanons and, 1n this capacity, determines 
the Group's strategic and investment 
pohc1es It also monitors the performance 
of the Group's senior management team 
and organises its business to have regular 
1nteracnon with key members of the Group 
The Directors are responsible for overseeing 
the management of the business of the 
Group, and their powers are subject to the 
Articles of Association and any apphcable 
leg1slat1on and regulation 



Chairman and Chief Execunve Officer 
The roles of Chairman and CEO are 
separate, and the Board has clearly 
articulated their respons1b1hties 1n wnting 
The Chairman, Mark Elhott, 1s responsible 
for the effective operation of the Board 
and for ensuring that all Directors are 
enabled and encouraged to play their full 
part 1n its act1v1t1es The CEO, Leo Quinn, 
1s responsible to the Board for directing 
and promoting the profitable operation 
and development of the Group, consistent 
with enhancing long-term stakeholder 
value This includes the day-to-day 
management of the Group, formulating, 
communicating and executing Group 
strategy, and the implementation 
of Board policies 

Senior Independent Director 
The Semor Independent Non-executive 
Director 1s Michael Harper Michael 1s also 
the Deputy Chairman of the Board He 
replaced Sir David lees who stepped down 
as Semor Independent Non-executive 
Director and Deputy Chairman of the 
Board dunng the year 

Michael serves as an additional point of 
contact for shareholders should they feel 
that their concerns are not being addressed 
through the normal channels, and 1s 
available to fellow Non-executive Directors, 
either 1nd1v1dua1ly or collectively, should 
they wish to discuss matters of concern 1n 
a forum that does not include the Chairman, 
the Executive Directors or the senior 
management of Q1net1Q 

Independence of Non-executive Directors 
Of the current Directors of the Company, 
the Board considers all the Non-executive 
Directors to be independent of Q1net1Q's 
executive management and free from 
any business or other relattonsh1ps 
that could materially interfere with the 
exercise of their independent Judgement 
Notw1thstand1ng that Cohn Balmer has 
served on the Board for more than nrne 
years, the Board still considers that he 
remains independent 1n character and 
Judgement and the Board has found no 
1nformat1on or circumstances to lead 1t to 
conclude otherwise Based on the above, 
the Board considers that more than half its 
members were independent Non-executive 
Directors throughout the last financial year 

Business review 

Performance of the Board 
In accordance with the UK Code, 
Q1net1Q continues each year to 
evaluate the performance of the Board 
and its Committees 

Dunng the year, the Board appointed 
Independent Audit l1m1ted to undertake 
a review of the effectiveness of the 
Board and to facilitate a review by the 
Audit Committee of its effectiveness 
Independent Audit limited had no other 
connection with the Company 

For the Board review, Independent Audit 
conducted interviews with all Board 
members and the Company Secretary 
that were wide ranging and covered all 
aspects of Board performance The report 
summarising their flndtngs and deta1hng 
recommendations was discussed at the 
May Board meeting 

The overall conclusion was that the Board 
1s effective 1n its fulfilment of its governance 
respons1b1ht1es The report 1dent11ied areas 
where improvements could be made and 
these are being incorporated into the 
Board's objectives for the coming year 
They include 

Ach1ev1ng greater clarity about the role 
of the Board 1n relation to risk strategy 
and the oversight of risk management, 
Prov1d1ng more opportunities for the 
Non-executive Directors to spend bme 
1n the business and meet members 
of senior management, 
Ensuring that the 1nformabon provided 
to the Board 1s fully 1n hne with its needs 
to allow tracking of progress against 
strategic obJecbves and assessing 
performance, ned into both linanc1al and 
non-linanc1al drivers of the business, and 
Ensuring effective oversight of the US 
business given that 1t 1s held through 
a Proxy Agreement 

The detailed, externally-facilitated review 
of the Audit Committee's effectiveness 
was conducted through an tn-depth web­
based questionnaire, with the results being 
analysed and reported by Independent 
Audit A similar review looked closely at 
the Board's approach to nsk governance 
The reviews have resulted 1n a number of 
changes 1n approach, 1nclud1ng the setting 
up of a Risk Committee of the Board to help 
ensure an effective focus on risk mon1tonng 
and nsk management oversight 
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Directors' 1nduct1on, on-going tra1n1ng 
and 1nformanon 
All newly-appointed Directors take part 1n 
an 1nductton programme which 1s tailored 
to meet their spec1hc needs 1n relation to 
information on the Group The 1nduct1on 
programme includes an induction pack, 
which 1s refreshed to ensure that 1t contains 
the most up-to-date information available 
In addition, a series of v1s1ts to Group 
sites, giving the opportunity to meet the 
senior management, 1s provided to new 
Directors to enable them to gain a full 
understanding of the business All Directors 
are encouraged to v1s1t Q1net1Q's pnncrpal 
sites, and to meet a wide cross-section of 
employees (including other members of 
the senior management team) Tra1n1ng 
1s also available on key business issues 
or developments 1n pohcy, regulation or 
leg1slat1on on an 'as-needed' basis The 
Company provides bus1ness-w1de computer 
based tra1mng (CBT) for employees and the 
Board m relation to compliance with its 
business ethics, policies and practices 

As part of the corporate planning process, 
the Board has the opportunity to question 
the D1v1s1onal Managing Directors and the 
Executive Directors on the formulation of 
the corporate plan at D1v1s1on level and 
the plan's impact on Group strategy 

Each of the Directors has access to the 
services of the Company Secretary, and 
there 1s also an agreed procedure for the 
Directors to seek independent advice at 
the Company's expense 

Re-electlon of Directors 
Rules concerning the appointment and 
replacement of Directors of the Company 
are contained 1n the Articles of Association 
Changes to the Articles must be submitted 
to shareholders for approval According 
to the Articles of Assoc1at1on, all Directors 
are subject to election by shareholders at 
the first Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
following their appointment, and to re­
electton thereafter at intervals of no more 
than three years In hne with best practice 
reflected m the UK Code, however, the 
Company requires each serving member of 
the Board to be put forward for election or 
re-election on an annual basis at each AGM 

QlnetlQ Group pk Annual Report and Accounts 20ll 37 



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED 

Attendance at meenngs of the Board and its Committees-April 2011 to March 2012 

Members Board 

Mark Elhott 9/9 
Cohn Balmer 8/9 
Admiral Sir James 
Burnell-Nugent 9/9 
Noreen Doyle 8/9 
Michael Harper1 3/3 
David Mellors 9/9 
Paul Murray 9/9 
Leo Quinn 9/9 
Admiral Edmund P 
G1ambashan12 2/3 
David LangstafP 

Sir Davrd Lees' 7/7 

Audit 

3/3 

3/3 

5/5 
1/1 

5/5 

4/4 

Committee• 

Remuneration 

6/6 
5/6 

6/6 

6/6 
2/2 

3/3 

Comphance 

4/4 

3/4 

4/4 

2/2 

1/1 

1/1 

4/4 

4/4 

1/2 

4/4 

*The composition of the committee memberships was reviewed by the Board and updated 

at its meeting in November 2011 
1 Michael Harper was appointed to the Board on 22 November 2011 
2 Admiral Edmund P G1ambast1ani resigned from the Board on 2 August 2011 
3 David Langstaff resigned from the Board on 18 Apnl 2011 
4 Sir David Lees resigned from the Board on 31 January 2012 

Board meetings and attendance 
The Board has regular scheduled meetings 
Eight scheduled Board meetings and one 
Board meeting via telephone conference 
were held 1n the last financial year 
Members of the Board were also 1nv1ted 
to attend a dinner on the occasion of each 
scheduled Board meeting, to assist with 
the process of relat1onsh1p bu1ld1ng and to 
ensure that key strategic 1n1t1at1ves were 
discussed thoroughly 

The table above shows the number of 
meetings of the Board and its Committees 
held dunng the last financial year, and 
1nd1v1dual Directors' attendance 
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Matters reserved to the Board 
The Board operates through a 
comprehensive set of processes, which 
define the schedule of matters to be 
considered by the Board and its Committees 
during the annual business cycle, the level 
of delegated authorities (both financial 
and non-flnanc1al) available to Executive 
Directors and other layers of management 
1n the business, and Q1net1Q's business 
eth1cs, nsk management, and health, safety 
and environmental processes The Board 
devotes one entire meeting each year to 
consider strategy and planning issues that 
have an impact on the Group, from which 
the corporate plan 1s generated It 1s also 
regularly kept up to date on strategic issues 
throughout the year The Board has a 
clearly articulated set of matters which are 
specifically reserved to 1t for consideration 
These include reviewing the annual budgets, 

ra1s1ng indebtedness, granting security over 
Group assets, approving Group strategy and 
the corporate plan, approving the annual 
and 1ntenm report and accounts, approving 
s1gn1flcant investment, bid, acqu1s1t1on 
and divestment transactions, approving 
Human Resources pohc1es (1nclud1ng 
pension arrangements), rev1ew1ng material 
l1t1gat1on, and monitoring the overall 
system of internal controls, 1nclud1ng nsk 
management 

Op er anon of the Board 
The Board receives written reports from 
the CEO and CFO each month, together 
with a separate report on investor relatlons, 
which 1s prepared 1n consultatlon with 
Q1net1Q's brokers, and a report produced 
by the Company Secretary on key legal and 
regulatory issues that affect the Group It 
also considers reports from the Chairs of 
the Committees of the Board at the first 
scheduled meeting after the date each 
Committee meeting was held 

The CEO's monthly report addresses the 
key strategic 1n1nanves which have had an 
impact on the Group since the previous 
Board meeting, with particular focus on 
the progress of each of the D1v1s1ons Other 
key areas of focus include health, safety 
and environmental matters, employee 
and organ1sanonal issues, corporate 
respons1b1hty, the status of key account 
management/customer relanonsh1p 
1nit1anves, the p1pel1ne of potentlal bids, 
acqu1s1nons, disposals and investments, 
and the post-acqu1s1tlon performance of 
recently acquired businesses 

The Board also receives updates from key 
funcnonal areas on an 'as needed' basis, on 
issues such as human resources, treasury, 
corporate respons1b1l1ty, real estate, 
secunty, trade controls and pensions Key 
issues considered by the Board 1n the past 
year include succession planning, which 
culminated 1n some changes to Board 
membership, strategy {1n particular the 
effecnve operation of the UK Services, US 
Services and Global Products businesses) 
and the Company's ongoing improvement 
to business processes 1n response to the key 
findings of the Haddon-Cave report 



Conflicts of interest 
The Company requires Directors to disclose 
proposed outside business interests before 
they are entered into This enables pnor 
assessment of any conflict, or potential 
conflict, of interest and any impact on 
time commitment An annual review of all 
external interests 1s earned out by the Board 

Directors' respons1b1l1ties 
Statements explaining the Directors' 
respons1b1ht1es for prepanng the Group's 
annual report and financial statements and 
the auditor's respons1b1ht1es for reporting on 
those statements are on pages 56 and 57 

Other Directors' information 
Details of Executive Directors' service 
contracts and the Non-executive 
Directors' letters of appointment are set 
out 1n the Report of the Remuneration 
Committee on pages 48 and 49 Copies of 
Directors' service contracts and letters of 
appointment will be available for inspection 
at the Company's AGM 

Other management committees 
Respons1b1hty for the day-to-day management 
of the Group's activities, w1th the exception of 
QinetlQ's North Amencan operations (which 
are managed through the Proxy Board, as 
descnbed 1n the sectton on page 43 headed 
'Management and control of US subs1d1anes'), 
1s conducted through the Q1netiQ Executive 
Team (QET) The QET compnses the Group 
CEO, Group CFO, functional directors and 
the managing directors of each of the three 
UK business d1v1s1ons The QET meets on a 
monthly basis, and receives weekly updates 
on key operational issues by way of pre~ 
scheduled conference calls The activities 
of the QET are supplemented by the QNA 
Board and its Executive Management Team A 
Global Products Steering Committee has been 
formed to accelerate the development of the 
Global Products business, its products, and its 
explo1tatlon ofQ1net1Q's intellectual property 

Board Committees 
The Board has estabhshed five principal 
Committees the Audit Committee, the 
Remuneration Committee, the Nominations 
Committee, the Compliance Committee 
and the Security Committee Each operates 
w1th1n written terms of reference approved 
by the Board, details of which are set out 
1n the Investor Relations section of the 
website, www Q1net1Q com 

The Chairmen of the Board Committees 
report on the key issues discussed, and 
dec1s1ons taken, at the first meeting of the 
Board after the relevant Committee meeting 
Details of each of these Committees are 
summarised 1n the following pages Following 
changes in Directors dunng the year, the 
composition of the Committee memberships 
was reviewed and updated by the Board at 
its meeting 1n November 2011 Details of 
each Committee members' attendance at 
Committee meetings are set out en the table 
on page 38 
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Remuneration Committee 

Noreen Doyle 

The Remuneration Committee 1s chaired 
by Noreen Doyle The Committee sets 
remuneration and incentives for Executive 
Directors and approves and monitors 
remuneration and incentives for senior 
executives of the Group The other 
Committee members are Cohn Balmer, 
Admiral Sir James Burnell-Nugent, Mark 
Elliott, Michael Harper and Paul Murray 
The Committee meets as necessary, 
although normally at least three times 
a year During the financial year ended 
31 March 2012, 1t met on six occasions 
Although not members. of the Committee, 
the CEO, the HR Director and the Group 
Head of Reward normally attend meetings 
to provide information and advice 

During the year, the Committee received 
advice from its appointed independent 
advisors, Towers Watson, who also 
provided market data and advice to 
help the Committee determine whether 
performance targets had been met 
Towers Watson also provided other 
consulting services dunng the year to 
Q1net1Q, but did not provide advice on 
execunve remuneration matters other 
than to the Committee 

The Committee has reviewed the 
remuneration and rewards of the 
Company's Executive Directors and senior 
management and has processes in place 
to ensure that 

The level of reward given to the 
Executive Directors and senior 
management 1s stretching and designed 
to promote the long-term success of the 
Company, 
Remuneration 1ncenhves remain 
consistent with the Company's nsk 
management policies and systems 

No Executive Director or employee of 
Q1net1Q 1s permrtted to be present or 
participate 1n the Committee's d1scuss1ons 
about their own remuneration 

Further information on the act1v1t1es of 
the Remuneration Committee during the 
last financial year 1s set out 1n the Report 
of the Remuneration Committee on pages 
44to 52 
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Compliance Committee 

Cohn Balmer 

The Comphance Commrttee 1s chaired by 
Colin Balmer The Committee's pnmary 
purpose 1s to monitor adherence to the 
MOO Comphance Regime In addition, 1t 

keeps a watching brief over those areas 
of nsk, 1nclud1ng secunty, trade controls, 
ethics, corporate social respons1b1hty 
and health, safety and environment 
where the pnnctpal impact 1s not hnanc1al 
All the other members of the Board are 
members of the Committee Sir David Lees 
was Chairman of the Committee until his 
departure 1n January 2012 The Committee 
meets as necessary, although normally 
not less than four times a year During 
the financial year ended 31 March 2012, 
the Compliance Committee met on 
four occasions 

This past year the Committee has focused 
on ethics, the QNA Proxy Regime, health, 
safety and the environment, trade 
controls, secunty, and tnals 1nvolv1ng 
human subJects that fall w1th1n the scope 
of the Hels1nk1 Protocol In addition, the 
Committee 1s prov1d1ng oversight for 12 
project areas that have been established 
to address the recommendanons of the 
Sir Robert Nelson Report, which was 
completed as a result of the Haddon­
Cave Review These projects include 
specific activities relating to aerospace 
assurances and safety work, 1n add1non to 
the governance of advice services, general 
projects seeking to s1mphfy Q1netiQ's 
Competency and Assurance Frameworks, 
and the processes of its Business 
Man.agement System 
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The Committee continues to monitor the 
Compliance Regime, which 1s designed 
to give MOD customers confidence that 
QtnetiQ 1s able to provide tmpartial advice 
during any competitive evaluation of a 
procurement where 1t wishes to operate 
on both the 'buy' and the 'supply' sides 

In destgn1ng the Compliance Regime, 
the MOD and Q1netiQ sought to achieve 
a balance between meeting the needs 
of the procurement customers 1n the 
MOD (principally Defence Equipment 
and Support) and the need to allow 
Q1netiQ the flex1b1hty to exploit research 
into the supply chain and pursue its 
planned commercial activities, without 
comprom1s1ng the defence or security 
interests of the UK Oversight of the 
operation of the regime 1s provided 
by the Compliance Committee 

The MOD reviews the operanon and 
effectiveness of the Comphance Regime 
through its right to have an observer 
at the Compliance Committee meetings 

The Board nominates two senior 
executives to act as Compliance 
Implementation Director and Compliance 
Audit Director It receives a bi-annual 
report on the compliance areas that 1t 
monitors from the internal audit funcnon 
The Committee addresses any issues 
that would anse 1f Q1netiQ were to fail 
to comply with the requirements of the 
regime No breaches were noted dunng 
the year 

This year, the Committee continued to 
oversee health, safety and environment, 
trade controls, ethics and security, through 
quarterly reports from the heads of those 
functions 1n the business A summary 
of the key focus and activ1nes of the 
health, safety and environment and ethics 
funcnons 1s set out in the Corporate 
Respons1b1l1ty and Susta1nabtl1ty Review 
on pages 30 to 33 

In March 2012, the Company obtained 
MOD agreement to changes 1n the Special 
Shareholder nghts and these are subject 
to shareholder approval at the 2012 
Annual General Meeting These include 
removal of the MO D's right to veto any 
transaction or activity and the introduction 
of a genenc compliance system 1n 
ahgnment with that followed by other 
defence companies The Company will 
continue with ngorous management, 
of potential conflicts of interest while 
ensunng that propornonate governance 
1s ma1nta1ned by the Board 



Audit Committee 

Paul Murray 

The Audit Committee 1s chaired by Paul 
Murray The Board considers him to have 
recent and relevant financial experience, 
given his former roles as Group Finance 
Director of Carlton Communications pie 
and LASMO pie, and through his current 
role as Audit Committee Chairman at Royal 
Mail Holdings p1c The other members of 
the Committee are Colin Balmer, Admiral 
Sir James Burnell-Nugent, Noreen Doyle 
and Michael Harper, all of whom the 
Board considers to be rndependent David 
Langstaff and Sir David Lees were also 
members of the Committee until they 
resigned from the Board The members 
bnng extensive experience of corporate 
management 1n senior executive positions 
to the Company 

The Audit Committee monitors the Group's 
1ntegnty 1n financial repornng and reviews 
the effecbveness of the nsk management 
framework 

The Audit Committee meets as necessary 
and at least four bmes a year Dunng the 
financial year ended 31 March 2012, the 
Committee met on five occasions The 
external auditor has the nght to request 
that a meebng of the Audit Committee 
be convened Dunng the past financial 
year, and 1n accordance with its terms 
of reference, the Committee met with 
Q1net1Q's external auditor on two separate 
occasions, without Execubve Directors 
present, to discuss the audit process 
The Committee also met with the Group 
Internal Audit Manager on the same basis 

The CEO, CFO, Director of Group 
Finance, Group Internal Audit Manager. 
the QNA Internal Audit Manager and a 
representatlve of the external auditor 
normally attend Audit Committee meebngs 

This year the Committee's parbcular focus 
conbnued to be on QNA nsks, issues and 
m1bgabng acnons, and on an externally 
fac1htated assessment of the effecnveness 
of governance arrangements 

Consideration of the audit process for 
the full-year and 1ntenm results was an 
important area of focus for the Audit 
Committee As part of its review of 
internal controls, the Committee focused 

Buslness review 

1n particular on those matters which had 
failed to achieve at least a 'sansfactory' 
internal audit rating in the year, and on the 
management plans to address the issues 
raised by the internal audit function 

The Committee undertook governance 
reviews 1n respect of the effecnveness of 
the Committee itself and nsk governance 

The recommendations from those 
reviews are betng considered and will be 
progressed by the Committee Chairman 
dunng the current financial year 

In addition to the detailed reviews of 
the Committee's effectiveness and 
nsk governance, the Committee also 
undertook an externally-fac1htated 
review of the effectiveness of the internal 
audit function Responses to a detailed 
questionnaire from a range of stakeholders 
were analysed by Independent 
Audit Limited who, 1n reporting to 
the Committee, made a number of 
recommendations An action plan 1s now 
being implemented to introduce a number 
of improvements, particularly around 
the interaction with internal audit 1n the 
Company's North American operations 

The Committee also reviewed the activities 
of the tax, insurance and treasury functions, 
as well as overseeing the level of KPMG's 
audit fees 

The Committee confirms its view that 1t 
has received sufficient, rehable and tlmely 
information from management 1n the last 
financial year to enable 1t to fulfil 
its respons1b1l1t1es 

To safeguard auditor independence and 
ObJeCtlv1ty, the Committee ensures that 
any other advisory and/or consulting 
services provided by the external auditor 
do not conflict with its statutory audit 
respons1b1l1nes and are conducted 
through enbrely separate working teams, 
such advisory and/or consulting services 
generally only cover regulatory reporting, 
tax, and mergers and acqu1s1tions work 
Any non-audit services conducted by the 
auditor require the consent of the CFO 
or the Chairman of the Audit Committee 
before being 1n1ttated, any services 
exceeding £50,000 1n value require the 
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consent of the Audit Committee as a 
whole In the last financial year, there have 
not been any non-audit services conducted 
by KPMG that exceeded £50,000 1n value 
The Committee concluded, therefore, that 
there had not been any conflict of interest 
that might compromise the independence 
of KPMG's audit work 

The cost and nature of non-audit work 
undertaken by the auditor was regularly 
reviewed by the Committee dunng the last 
finanCtal year This process enables the 
Committee to take corrective action 1f 1t 
believes that there 1s a nsk of the auditor's 
independence betng undermined through 
the award of such work It 1s also Q1net1Q's 
policy that no KPMG employee may be 
appointed into a senior position w1th1n the 
Q1netiQ Group without the pnor approval 
of the CFO 

KPMG has been the Company's auditor 
since 2003 The members of the Audit 
Committee have declared themselves 
sansfled with the performance of KPMG as 
the Company's auditor 1n the last financial 
year A rotation of KPMG's lead audit 
partner was last undertaken during 2008 
Ounng the year, steps were undertaken 
1n conjunction with KPMG for the 
appointment of a replacement lead audit 
partner during the 2013 flnanc1al year It 1s 
anticipated that the new lead audit partner 
will connnue 1n this role for a maximum 
term of five years 
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Nom1nahons Committee 
The Nom1nanons Committee ts now charred 
by Mark Ethott The other Committee 
members are Cohn Balmer, Admiral Sir 
James BurnellMNugent, Noreen Doyle, 
Michael Harper, Paul Murray and Leo 
Quinn Sir David Lees and David Langstaff 
were also members of the Commrttee unbl 
they resigned The Commrttee ensures 
that the compos1t1on of the Board and 
Committees has the optimum balance 
of skills, knowledge and experience It 
considers d1vers1ty, 1nclud1ng the skills 
mix, international industry experience and 
gender, among many other factors, when 
seeking to appoint a new Director to the 
Board The Committee meets as necessary 
and when called by its Chair Dunng the 
financial year ended 31 March 2012, 
the Committee met and consulted 
informally on a number of occasions 
around Board meetings 

The principal focus of the Committee's 
activ1nes dunng the financial year ended 
31 March 2012 was to review the size 
and composition of the Board and its 
committees, and to review Q1net1Q's 
succession planning processes at 
Non-executive Director level 

The Committee oversaw the appointment 
of Michael Harper as a new Non-executive 
Director 1n November 2011 An external 
search consultancy assisted 1n the 
selectlon process 

Security Committee 
The Security Committee 1s chaired by Cohn 
Balmer The other Committee members are 
Admiral Sir James Burnell-Nugent, Sir David 
Lees (until his departure), Michael Harper, 
David Mellors, Paul Murray and Leo Quinn 
The Committee was established 1n June 
2009 to enable UK nanonals on the Board 
to consider matters of a UK natlonal security 
d1mens1on that have an impact on Q1nenQ's 
UK business There was no requirement for 
the Committee to meet during the year 
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Risk management and internal controls 
The Board 1s ulnmately responsible for the 
Group's system of internal control and for 
rev1ew1ng its effectiveness 1n safeguarding 
shareholders' interests and the Company's 
assets The system 1s designed to manage 
and m1bgate, rather than ehm1nate, the risk 
of failure to achieve business ob1ecnves, 
and can provide only reasonable and not 
absolute assurance against material mis­
statement or loss 

QinetlQ managers are responsible for 
the 1dent1flcanon and evaluation of 
stgrnflcant risks apphcabfe to their areas 
of business, together with the design and 
operation of suitable internal controls to 
ensure effecnve m1t1gabon These nsks, 
which are related to the achievement of 
bus1ness ob1ecnves, are assessed on a 
continual basts and may be associated with 
a variety of internal and external events, 
1nclud1ng control breakdowns, competition, 
disruption, regulatory requirements and 
natural and other catastrophes The Board 
and the Audit Committee regularly review 
significant risks to the business 

An annual process of h1erarch1cal self­
certlflcation, which provides a documented 
and aud1table trail of accountab1hty for the 
operation of the system of internal control, 
has been estabhshed This self-certification 
process 1s informed by a rigorous and 
structured self-assessment that addresses 
compliance with Company pohcy 
It provides for successive assurances 
to be given at increasingly higher levels 
of management and, finally, to the Board 
The process 1s informed by the tnternal 
audit function, which also provides a degree 
of assurance as to the operation and validity 
of the system of internal control 

The centrally provided internal audit 
programme 1s pnontlsed accord1ng to 
nsks identified by the Company and 1s 
integrated across all business and functional 
d1mens1ons, thereby reducing issues of 
overlap or gaps 1n coverage These risks 
are 1dennfled dynamically and the Board, 
the QET and the QNA Executive Team are 
involved 1n the process 

The Audit Commtttee reviews, on behalf 
of the Board, the nsk management 
process and the system of internal control 
necessary to manage risks, and presents 
its findings to the Board The internal 
audit function independently reviews the 
risk 1dent1flcat1on and control processes 
implemented by management and reports 
to the Audit Committee Where areas for 
improvement 1n the system of internal 
control are identified, the Board considers 
the recommendations made by the QET, the 
QNA Executive Team, the Audit Committee 
and the Compliance Committee 

The Audit Committee also reviews the 
assurance process, ensuring that an 
appropriate mix of techniques 1s used to 
obtain the level of assurance required 
by the Board It presents its flndings to 
the Board on a regular basis The Board 
reviewed the effectiveness of the system 
of internal control that was 1n operation 
during the financial year ended 31 March 
2012 The Board also routinely challenges 
management to ensure that the systems 
of internal control are constantly 1mprov1ng 
to ma1nta1n their effectiveness 

Q1netlQ has internal control and nsk 
management systems 1n place 1n relation 
to the Company's process for financial 
reporting and for the preparation of 
consohdated accounts In addition, QmetlQ 
has internal procedures 1n place that are 
designed to comply with international 
best practice 1n relation to the prevennon 
of corruption 

Comphance with anti-bribery and 
corruption leg1slat1on 1s further fac1htated 
by the engagement of independent, 
1nternat1onally recognised organisations, 
such as TRACE, which conducts anti­
corrupbon due d1hgence reviews of 
all third-party agents overseas 



Going concern 
The Group's acnv1nes, combined with the 
factors that are likely to affect its future 
development and performance, are set 
out 1n the CEO's Statement on pages 4 
to 6 The CFO's Review on pages 17 to 22 
sets out details on the financial position 
of the Group, the cash flows, committed 
borrowing fac1lrt1es, hqu1d1ty and the 
Group's pohc1es and processes for managing 
its capital and financial risks Note 26 to the 
financial statements also provides details 
of the Group's hedging acnv1nes, financial 
instruments, and its exposure to hqu1d1ty 
and credit nsk 

The market conditions 1n which the Group 
operates have been, and are expected to 
continue to be, challenging as spending 
from the Group's key customers 1n its 
primary markets 1n the UK and US remains 
under pressure Despite these challenges, 
the D1rectors believe that the Group 1s well 
positioned to manage its overall business 
nsks successfully 

After making the appropriate enquiries, 
1nclud1ng a review of the latest two-year 
budget, the Directors have a reasonable 
expectanon that the Group has adequate 
resources to continue 1n operational 
existence for the foreseeable future 

Consequently, the Annual Report and 
Accounts have been prepared on a going 
concern basis 

Communication with shareholders 
The Company attaches s1gn1flcant 
importance to the effectiveness of its 
commun1canons with shareholders 
During the last financial year, the 
Company ma1nta1ned regular dialogue 
with institutional shareholders and the 
financial community, which included 
presentations of the full-year and 1ntenm 
results, 1nclud1ng investor 'road shows' held 
1n the UK and US, and regular meetings with 
maJOr shareholders and industry analysts 
In add1non, each member of the Board 
attended the Company's AGM 1n August 
2011 and was ava1table to take questions 
The Chairman, the Senior Independent 
Director and Non-executive Directors make 
themselves available to meet shareholders 
as required All shareholders and potentlal 
shareholders can gain access to the Annual 
Report, presentations to investors and 
other significant 1nformanon about 
Q1nenQ on the Company's website, 
www Q1netiQ com 

Holders of ordinary shares may attend the 
Company's AGM at which the Company 
h1ghl1ghts key business developments 
during the year and at which shareholders 
have an opportunity to ask questions 
The Chairs of the Audit, Remuneration, 
Nom1nanons, Comphance and Security 
Committees are available at that meeting 
to answer any questions on the work of 
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the Committees The Company confirms 
that 1t will send the AGM Notice and 
relevant documentation to all shareholders 
at least 20 working days before the date of 
theAGM 

For those shareholders who have elected 
to receive communications electronically, 
nonce 1s given of the ava1lab1hty of 
documents on the investor relations section 
of the Group's website All shareholders 
will be entitled to vote on the resolutions 
put to the AGM and, to ensure that all votes 
are counted, a poll will be taken on all the 
resolutions in the Nonce of Meeting The 
results of the votes on the resolutions will 
be published on the Group's website 

Respons1b1l1ty for ma1nta1n1ng regular 
commun1canons with shareholders rests 
with the Execunve Team, led by the CEO, 
assisted by an investor relations function 
The Board 1s informed on a regular basis 
of key shareholder issues, 1nclud1ng share 
pnce performance, the composition of the 
shareholder register and City expectations 

Dunng the coming year, the Company will 
be looking to continue to improve the 
quality of 1ts engagement with shareholders 
and to explore with investors any additional 
practical means by which 1t can give effect 
to the requirements of the F1nanc1al 
Reporting Council's UK Stewardship 
Code for institutional investors, and 
of the UK Code 

Details of the Company's share capital, 
which are required to be disclosed 1n 
accordance with rule 7 2 6 of the FSA's 
Disclosure and Transparency Rules, and the 
Directors' powers 1n relation to 1ssu1ng and 
buying back shares can be found on pages 
53 to 55 1n the Other Statutory Information 
section of this Annual Report 

Management and control 
of US subs1d1anes 
Q1nenQ's principal US subs1d1anes are 
currently required by the US National 
lndustnal Security Program to ma1nta1n 
fac1hty secunty clearances and to be 
insulated from foreign ownership, control 
or influence To comply with these 
requirements, Q1nehQ North Amenca, 
Inc (QNA), a wholly-owned subsrd1ary of 
Q1netiQ 1n the US and the holding company 
for the substannve part of QmetlQ's North 
Amencan operahons, and the US DoD, 
have entered into a proxy agreement that 
regulates the ownership, management and 
ope ran on of these companies Pursuant 
to this proxy agreement, QrnenQ has 
appointed four US citizens (Peter Manno, 
Riley Mixson, John Currier and Vince 
V1tto), who hold the requ1s1te US security 
clearances, as proxy holders to exercise 
the voting nghts of QNA's shares 1n the US 
subs1d1anes The proxy holders are also 
appointed as Directors of the relevant 
US subs1d1anes and, rn addition to their 
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powers as Directors, have the power under 
the proxy arrangements to exercise all 
prerogatives of s!iare ownership of QNA 
The proxy holders have a fiduciary duty, 
and agree, to perform their role 1n the best 
interests of shareholders, and 1n a manner 
consistent with the national secunty 
interests of the US 

Q1net1Q Group pie does not have any 
representation on the boards of the 
subs1d1anes covered by the proxy 
agreement and does not have the nght to 
attend board meetings Q1net1Q Group pie 
may not remove the proxy holders other 
than for acts of gross negligence or wilful 
misconduct or for breach of the proxy 
agreement (with the consent of the US 
Defense Secunty Service) 

In terms of the power to govern, the proxy 
agreement vests certain powers solely with 
the proxy holders and certain powers solely 
with Q1netiQ For example, Q1nenQ can, 
at its sole discretion, direct the proxy 
holders to 

Sell or dispose of, 1n any manner, capital 
assets or the business of QNA, 
Pledge, mortgage or encumber assets of 
QNA for purposes other than obta1n1ng 
working capital or funds for capital 
improvements, 

• Merge, consolidate, reorganise or 
dissolve QNA, 
File or make any pennon under the 
federal bankruptcy laws or s1m1lar 
law or statute of any state or any 
foreign country 

The proxy holders cannot carry out any 
of the above without Q1nenQ's express 
approval Unlike mmonty interest holders 
with protective veto nghts, QmenQ can 
unilaterally require the above to be earned 
out and these are, therefore, considered 
to be to significant parnc1panve features 
ln addition, Q1net1Q can require the 
payment of d1v1dends, and the pay-down 
of parent company loans, from QNA 

The parties are presently 1n the process 
of revising and modern1s1ng the proxy 
agreement 1n order that 1t connnues to 
best reflect the relevant shareholder 
and security interests of the parties 
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REMUNERATION REPORT 

''The key purpose of the Committee is to ensure that the remuneration 
structure supports the Company's strategy and that we are able to attract, 
retain and motivate the highest calibre executives by rewarding the 
creation of long-term sustainable value." 
Noreen Doyle, Chair, Remuneration Committee 

lntroducnon 
I am pleased to present the 
Remuneration Committee's report on 
Directors' remuneration for the year 
to 31 March 2012 

The primary objectives of our remuneranon 
pohcy remain unchanged 

To attract and retain top talent, 
To 1ncennv1se key executives and 
managers, 
To dnve supenor performance 1n both 
the short and long term, and 
To align with the interests of 
shareholders 

Over the past two years the Company 
has created and implemented a self-help 
programme to support its transformation, 
and the effecnveness of that programme 
1s reflected 1n this year's business results 
As the Company progresses to the next 
stage 1n its business development, the 
Remuneration Committee proposes to 
ensure that the compensation structures 
and packages for the Executive Directors 
are appropriate to meet future business 
challenges The Value Sharing Plan (VSP) 
was designed for the Company's self-help 
phase and was considered to be a time 
bound long-term Incentive Plan {lTIP) 
The next phase for the Company aims 
at resumption of growth, both 1n the UK 
and the US, despite defence markets 
forecast to be flat or falling, and therefore 
a revised lTIP has been designed to ahgn 
with this phase 

Accordingly, with input from its advisors, 
Towers Watson, the Remuneration 
Committee undertook a market review 
and developed a revised compensation 
package which was reviewed and discussed 
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with major shareholders Shareholders 
expressed two key concerns the need 
for s1mplrflcanon of, and increased 
transparency around, how compensation 
1s calculated After rece1v1ng investor 
feedback and reflecting on the package, the 
Remuneration Comm1ttee concluded the 
following approach to Executive Directors' 
remuneration effective for the financial 
year 2013 and for the future 

Base salary 
The Board has determined that base 
salaries will increase for the CFO by 2 7% 
and the CEO by 3%, effective 1 July 2012, 
taking into account the general direction 
of Company remuneration 

Annual bonus 
When determ1n1ng the level of bonus 
opportunity available to Executive 
Directors, the Committee has set 
stretching business and personal 
ob1ecnves to ensure that the rewards are 
only achieved for strong performance 
relative to market conditions 
The maximum bonus opportunity for 
excellent performance 1s increased from 
125% to 150% of base salary for the CEO 
and CFO to ahgn them competitively with 
their peer group and to compensate 1n 
part for the reduced lTIP opportunity 
arising with the move from the VSP to 
the new PSP, 
On-target bonus ts set at 50% of the 
maximum bonus, again to bring closer 
alignment with the peer group This 
results 1n an on-target bonus opportunity 
of 75% of base salary 

long-term Incentive Plans 
The Value Sharing Plan (under which 
awards were made 1n 2010/11 and 

2011/12) 1s replaced by a revised 
Performance Share Plan (PSP), subject 
to shareholder approval at the 2012 
Annual General Meeting, bu1ld1ng on 
the structure snll 1n use for the broader 
management group This caps the 
maximum potential award at 200% 
of base salary, although the 1ntennon 
1s to normally set the awards at 150% 
of base salary, 
The PSP performance measures will be 
EPS and TSR, equally weighted, which 
have been endorsed by shareholders 

EPS - the threshold level of growth 1s 
set at 3% CAGR {measured over three 
years) when 25% of the award would 
vest, with 100% vesting occurring 
once 10% CAGR (measured over three 
years) 1s achieved This represents a 
challenging growth target given the 
context of the flat to falling defence 
markets 1n which the Group operates, 
TSR- relative TSR measured against 
the FTSE250 index (minus investment 
trusts) The threshold 1s set at median 
performance when 30% of the shares 
would vest, with 100% vesting upon 
achieving upper quartile performance 

• The maximum allocation for matching 
shares under the Deferred Annual Bonus 
Plan (DAB) remains unchanged at 50% 
of any bonus paid The mandatory bonus 
deferment will be increased, however, 
to 50% to enhance ahgnment with 
shareholder interests There will be 
no element of voluntary deferral, 

• The DAB and PSP will be managed 
separately, 

• The EPS performance measure 1n the DAB 
will be the same as for the PSP 



Details of the proposed changes to the 
long-term incentive plans are contained 
1n the Notice of Annual General Meetlng 

Assuming that the annual bonus pays out 
at target and SO% vestlng for LTIPs, 60% 
of Executive Directors' compensatlon 
(excluding pension contributions) 1s hnked 
to performance-driven vanable pay, based 
on the proposed changes outlined above 

To help promote transparency, we have set 
out clearly the elements that make up the 
Executive Directors' pay 1n this report as 
well as explaining the approach taken 
to benchmarking Executlve remuneration 

Noreen Doyle 
Chair, Remunerahon Committee 
24 May2012 

Report of the Remuneration Committee 
The following Report of the Remuneration 
Committee has been approved by the Board 
for submission to shareholders 

The Report covers the remuneration of 
Directors and includes specific disclosures 
relating to their compensation, shares and 
other interests The report also describes 
the share-based incentive plans available to 
Executive Directors and to other employees 
This report has been prepared and, where 
appropriate, audited, 1n accordance with 
the requirements of the Large and Med1um­
sized Companies and Groups (Accounts 
and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the 
FSA Listing Rules 

Acbvshes 

Business review 

Membership 
The following Non-executive Directors were 
members of the Remuneration Committee 
dunng 2011/12 

Noreen Doyle (Chair, Remuneration 
Committee) 
Mark Elliott (Group Chairman) 
Cohn Balmer 
Admiral S1r James Burnell-Nugent 
Paul Murray 
Michael Harper (from 22 November 2011) 

All Non-executive Directors became 
members of the Committee 1n September 
2011, except for Sir David Lees 

The full Terms of Reference of the 
Committee can be found on the QrnenQ 
website (www Q1net1Q com) Copies are 
also available on request 

Governance 
The Committee 1s chaired by Noreen Doyle 
and all its members are Non-executive 
Directors In the financial year 2011/12, 
the Committee met six nm es 

During the year, the Committee received 
advice from its appointed independent 
advisors, Towers Watson, who also provided 
market data and advised on the comparator 
group's TSR so that the Committee could 
decide whether share plan performance 
targets had been met 

The Group Chief Executive, Group HR 
Director and Head of Reward also provided 
information and advice to the Committee 

Dunng 2011/12 the Committee meetings covered a number of topics 1nclud1ng 

Apnl 

May 

Executive Directors' 2011/12 bonuses 
2011/12 performance targets 

Executive Directors' salary reviews 
Directors' Remuneranon Report 
Executive team salary reviews and 2011/12 bonuses 
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Directors' remunerahon pohcy 
The Committee aims to maintain a 
remuneration policy, consistent with 
the Company's business strategy and 
objectives, which 

Attracts, retains and motivates md1v1duals 
of high cahbre, 
Is responsive to both Company and 
personal performance, 
Is competitive w1th1n relevant 
employment markets 

The remuneration policy 1s built on the 
following philosophy 

Remuneration packages are structured 
to support business strategy and conform 
to current best practice, 
Appropnate rewards are given for 
meeting specific target objectives set 
at the beg1nn1ng of each year, 
Incremental compensanon 1s achieved for 
attaining stretching performance targets, 
ObJectlves are measured on metncs 
designed to be consistent with 
sustainable long-term business 
performance, 
To momtor pay and employment 
conditions elsewhere 1n the Group 

The total remuneration levels of the 
Executive Directors are reviewed annually 
by the Committee, takrng into account 

Performance of the Executive against 
specific targets, 
Compebtlve market pracnce and 
remuneration levels, and 
The general economic environment 

Long-term 1ncentlve plan awards under the Value Shanng Plan and Performance Share Plan 
Review of performance metric for share options made 1n 2008 

August 

November 

January 

March 

Review of performance metnc for Restncted Stock Unit Plan vesting (applies only to US executives) 

Awards under Restncted Stock Unit plan 
Review of performance metncs for share awards made 1n 2008 (PSP) 

Execubve team shareholdings 

Execunve 1ncentlve structure 
Remuneranon Committee programme for the year 

Executive team salary reviews 
Group incentive scheme targets 
Deferred Annual Bonus Plan parnc1pat1on 
Executive Directors' salary reviews 
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REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED 

Each year, the packages are benchmarked 
independently by our advisors, Towers 
Watson, using two comparator groups one 
group 1s based on market cap1tahsation 
and revenue and the second group 1s 

Remuneration package 

sector specific The first group 1s used as 
the primary reference with cross checking 
against the second group to capture 
any mdustry-spec1fic features, there are 
about 20 companies 1n each group The 

The Execunve Directors' remuneration package 1s made up of the following components 

Base Salary 
Annual Bonus 

& Deferred 
Bonus Plan 

Long-Term 
lncenbves 

Share Awards 

Performance driven 

Base salary 

Annual salary 

Leo Quinn 

David Mellors 

Annual bonus 

2012/13 

£597,400 

£380,000 

2011/12 

£580,000 

£370,000 

% of salary 
On-target 
payment 

Maximum 
payment 

2011/12 
Actual bonus 

earned 

Leo Quinn 

David Mellors 

Based on the market review, salary 
increases of £10,000 pa {2 7%) were 
approved for the CFO and £17,400 (3%) for 
the CEO respecbvely, effective 1 July 2012, 
to ma1nta1n their compebbveness 

Execubve Directors participate 1n an annual 
bonus plan which 1s non-pensionable 
Bonuses are hnked to Group performance 
targets for operanng profit, operating cash 
flow, and underlying EP5 The resulting 
annual cash bonus also takes into account 
performance against personal ob1ect1ves 
The 2011/12 bonus potential and actual 
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50% 

50% 

125% 

125% 

125% 

125% 

awards are set out above, expressed as 
a percentage of salary 

In 2011/12 the stretching financial targets 
were exceeded along with strong cash 
flows and continuing cost reductions This 
performance drove the bonus achievement 
set out above and also 1n the D1rectors' 
Remuneration table later 1n this report 

For 2012/13, the on-target and maximum 
bonus opportunities were increased 
to 75% and 150% of base salary, 
respectively, to bnng ahgnment with the 
competitive market 

lower quartile, mid-market and upper 
quartile reference points are captured 
and the packages of the CEO and CFO are 
benchmarked agarnst them to ensure they 
remain competitive 

Ben eh ts 
Pension, Car 
Allowance 

Remuneration 
Package 

Part of all annual cash bonuses earned are 
deferred and paid 1n shares, as described 
1n the following section 

Deferred Annual Bonus Plan {DAB) 
The Deferred Annual Bonus Plan aligns the 
interests of Executives with shareholders 
and aids retennon of key 1nd1v1duals by 
ensuring that Executives are 1ncent1v1sed 
to take part of their annual bonus awards 
1n shares rather than 1n cash 

Executive Directors have a mandatory 
deferral of 40% of any bonus earned and 
may voluntanly defer an add1t1onal 10%, 
g1v1ng a maximum deferral of up to 50% 
of their bonus into Q1net1Q shares Any 
deferred bonus will be matched based 
on EP5 performance, up to a maximum 
match of 100% of the deferred element 
After the review of Executive salary and 
incentive plans, for 2012/13, the mandatory 
deferral will be increased to 50% of any 
bonus earned, with no voluntary deferral, 
to complement the increased annual bonus 
target opportunities, outlined above 

In order for the matching shares to vest, EP5 
growth, measured over three years, must 
exceed defined targets for awards made 
1n the financial year 2011/12, EP5 must 
grow by at least 22 5% over three years 
for any matching shares to vest, at which 



point deferred shares will be matched with 
one share for every four deferred Vesnng 
increases pro rata to EPS growth up to a 
maximum match of one share for every one 
deferred 1f EPS growth of 52% 1s achieved 
over three years, as illustrated 

Awards are 1n the form of matching shares 
dehvered after three years, subject to 
the achievement of the EPS-based 
performance conditions 

Long-term incentives for Executive Directors 
The objective of Q1net1Q's long-term 
incentive programmes for Execunve 
Directors 1s to ahgn their rewards with 
returns to shareholders by a focus on 
1ncreas1ng shareholder value over the 
medium to long term 

In add1tlon to the DAB, Executive Directors 
are ehg1ble for long-term incentives which 
have taken two forms The Value Shanng 
Plan (VSP) and the Performance Share Plan 
(PSP) An Execunve Director who 1s granted 
an award under the VSP may not also be 
granted an award under the PSP for the 
same granting year and vice versa 

Example 
Total Shareholder Return 

Q1net1Q's average market cap1tahsat1on 
over the three months to 31 March 2011 
was £851m Assume that Q1net1Q's TSR 
over the penod 1s 30%, the TSR for the 
FTSE250 index is 20% and the Execunve 
receives 1,000 shares per £1m ASV 

Example 
Profit Before Tax 

Q1net1Q's average market cap1tahsat1on 
over the three months to 31 March 2011 
was £8Slm Group ad1usted PBT for the 
hnanc1al year ended 31 March 2011 was 
£105 Sm Market cap1tahsat1on as a (fixed) 
multiple of PBT for 2011 VSP awards 1s, 
therefore, 8 1 (= £8Slm/£105 Sm) Assume 
Group ad1usted PBT for the financial year 
ending 31 March 2014 1s £140m, and 
dividends to shareholders over the three­
vear oenod amount to £70m 

Business review 

These are the pnnc1pal means for long-term 
1ncent1v1satlon of the Executive Directors 
and the direct reports of the CEO The 
Committee considered vanous performance 
conditions and determined that the 
cntena set out below were appropnate 
to 1ncent1v1se the long-term creation of 
shareholder value for 2011/12 

Value Sharing Plan (VSP) 
The Value Shanng Plan was approved by 
shareholders 1n July 2010 It 1s an annual, 
long-term incentive plan designed for 
the Company's self-help phase, focusing 
on shareholder value creation, and was 
considered to be time bound 

Leo Quinn, David Mellors and a ltm1ted 
number of senior executives parnc1pate 1n 
the VSP, wh1ch rewards execunves with a 
certain number of shares for every £1m of 
value created over and above three-year 
performance hurdles 

On 26 May 2011, Leo Quinn was granted 
an award under which he will be entitled 
to receive 1,800 Q1nenQ Group shares for 
each £1m of additional shareholder value 
(ASV) created (above a hurdle) 1n respect 
of the performance penod beg1nn1ng on 
1 Apnl 2011 On the same date, David 
Mellors was granted an award under which 
he will be entitled to receive 900 Q1net1Q 
Group shares for each £1m of add1t1onal 
shareholder value created 1n respect of 
the same performance penod For 2011/12, 
the VSP awards were weighted equally 
between the two performance indicators 
50% total shareholder return (TSR) and 50% 
profit before tax (PBT) 

Addinonal shareholder value based on 
TSR 1s therefore 

Q1nenQ TSR out-performance of 10% (= 
30%- 20%) multlphed by Q1net1Q market 
cap1tahsatlon of £8Slm equals additional 
shareholder value based on TSR of £85 lm 
1=10% x £85lml 

Additional shareholder value based on 
P-BT 1s therefore 

PBT 1n 2014 of £140m multlphed by the fixed 
multlple of 8 1 equals a value of £1,134m 
(= £140m x 8 1) plus £70m (paid d1v1dends) 
equals £1,204m (= £1,134m +£70m) less 
hurdle rate of £1,087m (= £8Slm x (1+8 5%)3) 
equals additional shareholder value for 
PBT element of award of £117m 
(=£1,204m -£1,087m) 

Corporate governance Anandal statements 

Under the 2011/12 VSP award, additional 
shareholder value created 1s measured 
tntwoways 

• Total Shareholder Return (TSR)- 50% 
of the award will depend on Q1net1Q"s 

T5R out-performance of the FTSE2SO 
index (excluding investment trusts) 

Partlctpants will be entitled to a vesting 
of shares under the TSR element only 1f 
the Committee 1s also satisfied that this 

is 1ust1hed by the underlying financial 

performance of the Company over the 
performance penod 

Profit Before Tax (PBT) - the rema1n1ng 

50% of each award will be determined by 
PST growth above the cost of equity of 

8 5% a year, adjusted by the d1v1dend yreld 

Examples are shown below 

In this example, the Executive would 
receive therefore 42,SSO shares 
based on TSR (= £85 lm x 1,000 shares 
per £1m x 50% of award based on TSR) 

In this example, the Executive would 
receive therefore 58,500 shares 
based on PBT (= £117m x 1,000 shares 
per £1m x 50% of award based on PBT) 
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Performance Share Plan (2007) (PSP) 
There were no awards of performance 
shares under the PSP to Executive Directors 

in 2011/12, although awards remain 
outstanding from pnor years 

PSP awards are contingent on meeting pre­
determined performance cntena lnd1v1dua1 
participants' award levels are determined 
by the Committee annually, based on these 
cntena, and with due cons1deration of 
business and personal performance 

Executive Directors are el1g1ble to receive 
awards with a value of up to 100% of base 
salary per annum and other executives up 
to 75% of base salary per annum Awards 
are earned based on an equal weighting 
of relative total shareholder return (TSR) 
performance and absolute underlying 
earnings per share (EPS) growth 

The EPS performance cntenon for the PSP 
awards that were made 1n 2009/10 and 
earlier years was the same as that applied 
to the DAB (outlined above) 

TSR performance for the purposes of PSP 
awards made 1n 2009/10 and earlier years 
1s measured against the consbtuents of 
a sectoral peer group of companies 

The TSR element 1s earned only 1f relative 
performance jS at least at median against 
this comparator group over a three-year 
performance period, calculated by an 
independent third party The graph below 
illustrates the TSR performance condrtion 
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Personal shareholding policy 
The Committee believes that a meaningful 
way to ahgn Executives' interests with those 

of shareholders 1s for the Executives to build 
up and retain a personal holding 1n Q1net1Q 
shares During 2011/12, the Committee 
reviewed the executive shareholding policy 
and increased the length of time allowed to 
accumulate the required shareholding from 
four to five years to follow market norms 

The CEO and CFO are required to hold shares 
1n QmetJQ with a value equivalent to one 
bmes their base salary 1n Q1netiQshares 

David Mellors, who Joined on 20 August 
2008, has been given five years to build up 
such a shareholding Leo Quinn has already 
met the Committee's gu1dehne on minimum 
shareholding requirement 

Direct reports of the CEO are required to 
hold the equivalent of 50% of their base 
salary 1n Q1netiQ shares These can be 

Directors' terms and conditions 

accumulated over a five-year period 
following appointment 

Benefits 
Benefits include a pension or contribution 
in heu, car allowance, health insurance, life 
assurance and membership of the Group's 
employee Share Incentive Plan, which 1s 
open to all UK employees 

The Group's policy 1s to offer all UK 
employees membership 1n the Q1net1Q 
Pension Scheme, as described 1n note 30 
to the financial statements Executives 
whose benefits are likely to exceed the 
Lifetime Allowance may opt out of the 
Q1net1Q Pension Plan In such cases, the 
1nd1v1duat will be paid a supplement 1n 
lieu of pension contributions 

In 2011/12, Leo Quinn received 
contributions of 25% of base salary 
(£145,000) 1n heu of a pension David 
Mellors 1s a member of the Company's 

Service agreements for the Executive and the Non-executive Directors are reviewed 
annually and amended as appropriate 

Date of most recent 
Service Agreement 

Executive Directors 

Leo Quinn 28 October 2009 

David Mellors 20 May 2008 

Non-executive Directors 

Mark Elliott (Group Chairman) 10 February 2010 

Cohn Balmer 20 January 2006 

Noreen Doyle 20 January 2006 

Admiral Sir James Burnell-Nugent lOApnl 2010 

Paul Murray 25 October 2010 

Michael Harper1 22 November 2011 

Former Directors 

Admiral Ed G1ambasban12 31 January 2008 

David Langstaff3 4 August 2009 

Srr David Lees4 20 January 2006 

1 Michael Harper was appointed to the Board on 22 November 2011 
l Admiral Ed G1ambasbam resigned from the Board on 2 August 2011 
~David Langstaff resigned from the Board on 18 Apnl 2011 
'Sir David Lees resigned from the Board on 31January2012 

Date of appointment 

November 2009 

August 2008 

June 2009 

February 2003 

October 2005 

April 2010 

October 2010 

November 2011 

February 2008 

September 2009 

August 2005 



DC pension scheme and the Company 
contnbutes 20% of base salary with any 
contnbunons above the annual allowance 
of £50,000 paid as cash 1n heu of pension 

Directors' terms and conditions 
Q1nenQ's pohcy 1s that Executive Directors 
should have service agreements with 
a rolhng term prov1d1ng for a maximum 
of one year's nonce Consequently, 
Executive Directors do not have a 
contractual nonce penod 1n excess of 12 
months In the event of early termination, 
this ensures that compensation 1s restricted 
to a maximum of 12 months' basic 
salary and benefits The Committee will 
generally consider m1nganon to reduce 
the compensation payable to a departing 
Executive Director 

Non-executive Directors' letters of 
appointment are renewed on a rolhng 
12-month basis subject to reappointment 
at the Annual General Meeting There 
are no provisions for compensation on 
early termination 

Non-executive Directors' fees 
The Group Chairman reviews the fees of 
the Non-executive Directors, other than 
his own, and makes recommendations to 
the Board Non-executive Directors receive 
additional fees as agreed by the Board for 
chairing Board committees to take account 
of the additional respons1b1hnes of the role 
The Chairman's fees are reviewed by the 
Senior Independent Non-executive Director 
who makes recommendations to the Board 

Non-executive Directors' fees 

Non-executive Chairman 

Basic fee for UK Non-executive Director 

Business review 

The level of fees pa1d by UK organisations 
of a s1m1lar size and complexity to Q1nenQ 
1s considered 1n setting the remuneration 
pohcy for Non-executive Directors The 
fees are neither performance related nor 
pensionable Non-executive Directors are 
not ehg1ble to parnc1pate 1n bonus, profit 
shanng or employee share schemes 

A review of Non-executive Directors' fees 
was earned out 1n July 2010, using an 
independent market survey, which resulted 
1n no changes being made to the existing fee 
structures as shown 1n the table below 

As the Group Chairman 1s a US resident, 
the Board has agreed an accommodation 
allowance of £75,000 per annum 

Excluding the Group Chairman, an 
additional fee of US$4,000 1s payable to 
US-resident Non-executive Directors when 
they attend Board Meetings 1n the UK 
With effect from 29 July 2010, to ahgn UK 
Non-executive Directors with US-resident 
Non-executive Directors, UK-resident Non­
execunve Directors are paid an additional 
fee of £2,500 for attending meetings held 
1n the USA 

Management of share-based rewards 
The Committee also oversees arrangements 
for share-based rewards 1n respect of 
managers and the wider workforce 

Employee plans 
The Share Incentive Plan 1s operated 1n 
the UK and Australia 1n the form of a share 
purchase award with a matching Company 
contnbunon to encourage employee 
ownership and engagement 1n the business 

2012 fees 

Basic fee for US-resident Non-executive Director 

£225,000 
£40,000 

US$100,000 
or £50,000 

£7,000 Additional fee for charring a Committee 

Additional fee to Deputy Chairman/Senior Independent 
Non-executive Director 

Stock Award Plan - Restricted Stock Units 

% Orgamc operating income growth achieved 

<5% 

5%-12 5% 

>12 5%-15% 

£10,000 

% RSU Award Vesting 

0% 

Between 25% -100% (linear) 
100% -125% (linear) 

Financial statements 

Executive plans 
In addition to the VSP and PSP, 
the Company operates the following 
executive share plans 

QtnebQ Share Option Scheme (QSOS) 
- no awards were made dunng the year 
under QSOS but prov1s1on exists for 
annual awards up to a face value of 300% 
of salary, 
Stock Award Plan - Restricted Stock 
Units (RSU) - RSU awards are used 1n 
Q1nenQ North America to retain and 
motivate senior managers The RSU 
awards vest 1n four equal tranches over 
a four-year period Vesting of half of the 
award is subject to time-based vesting 
criteria and vestlng of the other half 
1s subject to performance criteria 
hnked to organic profit growth, as 
1n the table below 

Awards are granted based on business 
performance, balanced with the need 
to attract, retarn and motivate h1gh­
cal1bre employees 

Executive Directors do not participate 1n 
the two executive plans above 

D1lunon hm1ts 
In accordance with ABI guidelines, no 
more than 10% of the Company's issued 
share capital will be used under all of the 
Company's share schemes dunng a ten-year 
period The dilution as at 31 March 2012 
was s1gnrficantly below this 10% level, and 
below 5% 1n respect of executive schemes 
In addition, the Board intends to continue 
to satisfy a proportion of awards with 
purchased shares held 1n an employee 
benefit trust 

Performance graph 
The graph below shows the Company's TSR 
over the period from flotation to 31 March 
2012 compared to the FTSE250 index over 
the same period based on spot values 
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REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED 

Audited 1nformanon 
Directors' remuneration 
The 1nformatlon about Directors' remuneration and Directors' interests on pages 50 to 52 has been audited 

The table below shows the aggregate remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 March 2012 

Other Payment m heu 
Salary/fees• Bonusb benefits< of pension 

Executive Directors 

Leo Quinn £580,000 £725,000 £45,284 £145,000 
David Mellorsd £352,500 £462,500 £20,567 £31,077 
Non-executive Directors 

Mark Elliott (Group Chairman) £225,000 £75,000 

Cohn Balmer £46,167 

Noreen Doyle £52,000 
Paul Murray £52,000 

Admiral Sir James Burnell-Nugent £45,000 

Michael Harpe,... £18,577 

Former Directors 

Graham Love1 

Nick Luffi 

Sir David Leesh £55,834 

Admiral Ed G1ambastian1' £21,292 
David Langstaff! £2,115 
Total £1,450,485 £1,187,500 £140,851 £176,077 

• Before ad1ustments to basic pay for salary sacrifice pensions 

b The figure shown for bonus 1s paid tn both cash and shares under the DAB 

"Includes car allowance and health Insurance benefits for execunves and accommodation allowance for Group Chairman 

d Salary for David Mellors reflects increase from £300,000 to £370,000 effective 1 July 2011 

•Michael Harper was appointed to the Board on 22 November 2011 

'Graham Love agreed to provide services to the Company on a consultancy basis to ensure a smooth transition on the DTR pro1ect, 
for which he received a final payment of £100,000 1n May 2010 

1 Nick Luff resigned from the Board on 31 December 2010 

h Sir David Lees resigned from the Board on 31 January 2012 
1 Admiral Ed G1ambastlarn reSJgned from the Board on 2 August 2011 
1 David Langstaff reSJgned from the Board on 18Apnl 2011 

Penstons 

Contnbutions to the Defined Contribution section of the Q1netiQ Pension Scheme were as follows 

Executive Directors 

David Mellors 

• Contnbutlons to the scheme paid by the Company were £39,41850 with additional contributions arising through salary sacrifice 
Leo Quinn recewed contnbutlons of 25% of base salary tn lieu of a pension 
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Total Total 
2012 2011 

£1,495,284 £1,327,156 

£866,644 £617,800 

£300,000 £300,000 

£46,167 £45,000 

£52,000 £52,000 
£52,000 £17,436 

£45,000 £41,931 

£18,577 

£100,000 

£35,250 

£55,834 £64,000 

£21,292 £79,652 
£2,115 £65,538 

£2,954,913 £2,745,763 

2011 

£50,000 £60,000 
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Interests of Execunve Directors under long-term 1ncennve share plans as at 31 March 2012 

Number at 
1Apnl Granted 

2011 in year 
(maximum (maximum Exercised/ Number at Market price 

potential potential of vested Lapsed 31 March on date Earhest Latest 
Grant date of awards) awards) in year myear 2012 of grant vest date vest date 

Leo Quinn 

Matching award 
TSR1 16/12/09 362,844 362,844 165p' 01/06/13 01/06/13 
Matching award EPS3 16/12/09 362,845 362,845 165p' 01/06/13 01/06/13 
PSP M 1rror TSR3 16/12/09 210,450 210,450 165p' 01/06/13 01/06/13 
PSP Mirror EPS1 16/12/09 210,450 210,450 165p' 01/06/13 01/06/13 
V5PT5R 29/07/10 271,800 271,800 29/07/13 29/07/13 
V5PT5R 29/07/10 271,800 271,800 29/07/14 29/07/14 
V5P PBT 29/07/10 634,200 634,200 29/07/13 29/07/13 
V5P PBT 29/07/10 634,200 634,200 29/07/14 29/07/14 
V5P T5R 26/05/11 382,950 382,950 26/05/14 26/05/14 
V5PT5R 26/05/11 382,950 382,950 26/05/15 26/05/15 
V5P PBT 26/05/11 382,950 382,950 26/05/14 26/05/14 
V5P PST 26/05/11 382,950 382,950 26/05/15 26/05/15 
DAB Match 01/07/11 226,777 226,777 01/07/14 01/07/14 
David Mellors 

P5P T5R 07/08/08 75,567 75,567 217 Sp' 07/08/11 07/08/11 
P5P EP5 07/08/08 75,567 75,567 217 8p2 07/08/11 07/08/11 
P5P T5R 04/08/09 100,000 100,000 135 Op 04/08/12 04/08/12 
P5P EP5 04/08/09 100,000 100,000 135 Op 04/08/12 04/08/12 
DAB Match 01/07/09 6,859 6,859 144 7p 01/07/12 01/07/12 
V5PT5R 29/07/10 135,900 135,900 29/07/13 29/07/13 
V5PT5R 29/07/10 135,900 135,900 29/07/14 29/07/14 
V5P PBT 29/07/10 317,100 317,100 29/07/13 29/07/13 
V5P PBT 29/07/10 317,100 317,100 29/07/14 29/07/14 
V5PT5R 26/05/11 191,475 191,475 26/05/14 26/05/14 
V5PT5R 26/05/11 191,475 191,475 26/05/15 26/05/15 
V5P PBT 26/05/11 191,475 191,475 26/05/14 26/05/14 
V5P PBT 26/05/11 191,475 191,475 26/05/15 26/05/15 
DAB Match 01/07/11 70,379 70,379 01/07/14 01/07/14 
Total 4,222,582 2,594,856 151,134 6,666,304 

1 Shares awarded to the CEO m 2009 were based on an average market pnce of 138p representing the average pnce over the ten days before Joining 
1 Shares awarded to the CFO m 2008 were based on a market price of 198 Sp, as at 7 August 2008 
3 On appointment the CEO was granted a mirror PSP award, subject to the same EPS and TSR performance conditions as above In addition, the CEO invested 
c £1m m Qmet'IQ shares, for which he received an additional matching PSP award, sub1ect to the same EPS and TSR performance conditions 

The interests 1n the table above are subject to the performance conditions descrrbed 1n note 29 The prrce of a Qrnet!Q share 
at 31 March 2012 was 159 3p The highest and lowest pnces of a Q1net1Q share durrng the year ended 31 March 2012 were 159 Sp 
and 96 75p respecnvely 

There have been no changes to the interests shown above between 31 March 2012 and 22 May 2012 

Execubve Directors' interest 1n the All-Employee Share Incentive Plan (SIP) 

Partnership 
and d1v1dend 

Interest as at shares Interest as at 
lApril acquired 31 March Interest as at 

2011 during year 2012 22 May 2012 

Leo Quinn 1,146 1,252 2,398 2,567 
David Mellors 2,313 1,282 3,595 3,764 

The SIP 1s HMRC approved and under the plan rules, matching shares are not awarded until the three year nme condition has been satisfied 
These shares are not, therefore, included 1n the above table 
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Interests of Directors 1n office as at 31 March 2012 (1ndud1ng shares held under SIP and DAB) 

Executive Directors 

Leo Quinn 

David Mellors 

Non-executive Directors 

Mark Elhott 

Cohn Balmer 

Noreen Doyle 

Admiral Sir James Burnell-Nugent 

Paul Murray 

Michael Harper1 

Former Directors 

David langstaff2 

Sir David Lees3 

Admiral Ed G1ambast1an1' 

1 Michael Harper was appointed to the Board on 22 November 2011 
2 David Langstaff resigned from the Board on 18 April 2011 

'Sir David Lees resigned from the Board on 31 January 2012 

•Admiral Ed G1ambasnan1 resrgned from the Board on 2 August 2011 
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Number lp 
ordinary 

shares held at 
22 May 2012 

882,942 

98,725 

125,000 

7,662 

24,662 

11,419 

56,077 

10,000 

n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

Number lp Number lP 
ordinary ordinary 

shares held at shares held at 
31 March 2012 1 Apnl 2011 

882,716 654,285 

98,500 26,126 

125,000 125,000 
7,662 7,662 

24,662 24,662 

11,419 11,419 

56,077 56,077 
10,000 n/a 

n/a 52,000 

n/a 100,000 

n/a 5,232 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

OTHER STATUTORY 
INFORMATION 

Pnnapal acnv1ty 
Q1net1Q Group pie 1s a pubhc hm1ted 
company, hsted on the London Stock 
Exchange and incorporated 1n England and 
Wales with registered number 4586941 

Q1nenQ Group pie 1s the parent company of 
a group whose pnnc1pa/ activities during the 
year were the supply of technical support, 
training, test and evaluanon, and know­
how to customers 1n the global defence, 
aerospace and secunty markets Customers 
include government organ1sanons, such as 
the UK MOD and the US DoD and a range 
of other government and commercial 
customers globally 

Research and development 
One of the Group's pnnc1pal business 
streams 1s the provision of funded research 
and development (R&D) for customers The 
Group also invests 1n the commerc1ahsanon 
of prom1s1ng technologies across all areas 
of business 

The maJonty of R&D-related expenditure 
1s incurred on behalf of customers as part 
of specific funded research contracts R&D 
costs are included 1n the income statement 
and R&D income 1s reflected w1th1n 
revenue In the financial year, the Group 
recorded £346 3m (2011 £395 Om) of 
total R&D-related expenditure, of which 
£331 lm (2011 £382 Om) was customer­
funded work 

In the year to 31 March 2012, £15 2m 
(2011 £13 Om) of internally funded R&D 
was charged to the income statement 
£0 3m (2011 £0 3m) of late-stage 
development costs was cap1tahsed 
and £2 3m (2011 £2 2m) of cap1tahsed 
development costs was amornsed 1n 
the year 

Polley and pracnce on payment of suppliers 
The pohcy of the Group 1s to agree terms of 
payment pnor to commencing trade with a 
supplier and to abide by those terms based 
on the nmety submission of sansfactory 
1nvo1ces The Group has a policy of agreeing 
payment terms of not less than 60 days 
with suppliers, except 1n excepnonal 
circumstances At 31 March 2012, the trade 
payables of the Group represented 24 days 
of annual purchases (2011 24 days) 

Pohncal and charitable contributions 
Q1nenQ does not make polrtical donations 
to parnes as that term would be commonly 
recognised The legal defln1non of that 
term 1s, however, quite broad and may have 
the effect of covenng a number of normal 
business acnv1nes, such as sponsorship 
of events, that would not commonly be 
perceived to be pohncal donanons, such 
as sponsorship of events 

These may include legitimate 1nteracnons 
1n making MPs and others 1n the pohncal 
world aware of key industry issues and 
matters that affect QmetlQ, and that 
make an important contnbutlon to their 
understanding of Q1net1Q, the markets 1n 
which 1t operates, and the work of their 
constituents 

Charitable donations dunng the year 
across the Group amounted to £108,400 
(2011 £196,900) 

Share capital 
As at 31 March 2012, the Company had 
allotted and fully paid up share capital of 
660,476,373 ordinary shares of lp each 
with an aggregate nominal value of £6 6m 
(including shares held by employee share 
trusts) and one Special Share with an 
aggregate nominal value of £1 

Details of the shares 1n issue during the 
financial year are shown 1n note 28 on 
page 94 

The rights of ordinary shareholders are 
set out tn the Artlcles of Association 
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled 
to receive the Company's reports and 
accounts, to attend and speak at General 
Meetings of the Company, to exercise 
voting nghts 1n person or by appointing 
a proxy, and to receive a d1v1dend where 
declared or paid out of profits available 
for that purpose 

The Special Share 1s held by HM 
Government through the Secretary of 
State for Defence and 1t confers certain 
rights under the Arncles of Assoc1atJon 
which are detailed 1n note 28 on page 94 
These include the right to require certain 
persons with a material interest 1n Q1nenQ 
to dispose of some or all of their ordinary 
shares on the grounds of national security 
or conflict of interest The Special Share 
may only be held by and transferred to 
HM Government At any nme the Special 
Shareholder may require QinetJQ to redeem 
the share at par and, 1f wound up, the 
Special Shareholder would be enntled to be 
repaid capital before other shareholders 
Any vananon of the rights attaching to the 
Special Share requires the wntten approval 
of the MDD 

In March 2012, the Company obtained 
MOD agreement to changes 1n the Special 
Shareholder rights which are subject to 
shareholder approval at the 2012 Annual 
General Meeting These include removal 
of the MOD's right to veto any transaction 
or activity and the 1ntroductJon of a generic 
compliance system 1n alignment with that 
followed by other defence companies 
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION CONTINUED 

Directors' interests tn contracts 
At the date of this Report, there 1s no 
contract or arrangement with the Company 
or any of its subs1d1anes that 1s stgnrhcant 
1n relation to the business of the Group as 
a whole 1n which a Director of the Company 
1s materially interested 

Olange of control - s1gn1ficant agreements 
The following s1gnrficant agreements 
contain prov1s1ons ent1tl1ng the 
counterpartles to require pnor approval, 
exercise term1nanon, alteratlon, or other 
s1m1lar nghts 1n the event of a change of 
control of the Company, or 1f the Company 
ceases to be a UK company 

The Combined Aenal Target Service 
contract 1s a 20-year contract awarded 
to Q1nenQ by the MOD on 14 December 
2006 The terms of this contract require 

Q1nebQ limited to remain a UK company 
wh1ch 1s incorporated under the laws 
of any part of the UK, or an overseas 

company registered 1n the UK, and that at 
least 50% of the Board of Directors are UK 

nationals The terms also contain change 
of control conditions and restricted share 

transfer conditions which require prior 
approval from HM Government 1f there 

1s a material change 1n the ownership of 
Q1net1Q llm1ted's share capital, unless 

the change relates to shares hsted on a 
regulated market - 'material' 1s defined 
as being 10% or more of the share 
capital In addition, there are restrictions 

on transfers of shares to persons from 
countries appearing on the restricted hst 

as issued by HM Government, 
The Long-Term Partnenng Agreement 

(LTPA) 1s a 25-year contract, which Q1net1Q 
L1m1ted signed on 28 February 2003, 

to provide test, evaluation and tra1n1ng 
services to the MOD This contract 

contains conditions under which the pnor 
approval of HM Government ts required 

1f the contractor, Q1nebQ Limited, ceases 
to be a subsidiary of the Q1net1Q Group, 

except where such change 1n control 
1s permitted under the Shareholders 

Agreement to which the MOO 1s a party 
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The Company 1s party to a multi-currency 
Revolving Credit Fac1hty, with a US$250m 
tranche and a £118m tranche, provided by 
the Group's six global relat1onsh1p banks, 
that expires on 4 February 2016 Under the 
terms of the fac1hty, 1f there 1s a change of 
control of the Company, any lender may 
request, by not less than 60 days' notice 
to the Company, that its commitment be 
cancelled and all outstanding amounts be 
repaid to that lender at the expiry of such 
notice penod 

On 6 December 2006, Q1netlQ US 
Holdings, Inc , formerly known as Q1nebQ 
North Amenca, Inc (as Borrower) and 
the Company (as Guarantor) entered 
1nto a Note Purchase Agreement to 
issue US$125m 5 50% Senior Notes due 
6 December 2016 Under the terms of the 
agreement, 1f either (1) the MOD ceases to 
retain 1n its capacity as Special Shareholder 
its Special Shareholders Rights, or (2) there 
1s a change of control of the Company, 
and 1n either case where there has been a 
rating downgrade, or where there are no 
rated secuntles (unless a rating of at least 
investment grade 1s not obtained w1th1n 
90 days of the change of control), the Notes 
must be offered for prepayment by the 
Company w1th1n 21 days of the change 
of control The prepayment date would 
be no later than 45 days after the offer 
of prepayment by the Company 

On 5 February 2009, Q1net1Q US Holdings, 
Inc, (as Borrower) and the Company (as 
Guarantor) entered into a Note Purchase 
Agreement to issue US$62m 713% Senior 
Notes due 5 February 2016 and US$238m 
7 62% Senior Notes due 5 February 2019 
Under the terms of the agreement, 1f 
either (1) the MOO ceases to retain 1n its 
capacity as Special Shareholder its Special 
Shareholders Rights, or (2) there 1s a change 
of control of the Company, the Notes must 
be offered for prepayment w1th1n 21 days of 
the change of control The prepayment date 
would be no later than 45 days after the 
offer of prepayment by the Company 

Financial instruments 
Information on the Group's financial nsk 
management objectives and pohc1es, and 
its exposure to credit nsk, hqu1d1ty nsk, 
interest rate nsk and foreign currency 
nsk a re 1n note 26 on page 85 

Branches 
The Company and its subs1d1anes have 
established branches 1n a number of 
different countnes 1n which they operate, 
their results are, however, not material 
to the Group's financial results 

Ma1or shareholders 
At 31 March 2012, the Group had been 
notified of the follow1ng shareholdings 1n 
accordance with the Vote Holder and Issuer 
Notification Rules, which form part of the 
F1nanc1al Services Authority's Disclosure 
Rules and Transparency Rules 

%of issued 
Number of share 

Shareholder shares capital 

Artisan Partners 99,071,684 15 00 

Ruane Cunmff 
& Goldfarb, Inc 74,366,090 1126 

F1dehty 
International Ltd 34,816,074 5 27 

Schroders 33,587,315 509 

Investec 33,160,928 5 02 

F1dehty 
Management and 
Research Company 32,986,143 4 99 

Norges Bank 19,850,508 3 01 

At 22 May 2012, being the latest practlcable date 
pnor to the issue of this report, the Company had 
received no notification of any further interests or 
of any changes m the interests shown above 



Allotment/purchase of own shares 
At the Company's AGM held 1n August 2011, 
the shareholders passed resolutions which 
authorised the Directors to allot relevant 
securities up to an aggregate nominal value 
of £4,403,174 (£2,201,587 pursuant only 
to a nghts issue), to d1sapply pre-emption 
nghts (up to 5% of the issued ordinary share 
capital) and for the Company to purchase 
ordinary shares (up to 10% of its ordinary 
share capital) Equivalent resolutions will 
be laid before the 2012 AGM 

Dunng the year, the Company provtded 
fund mg to the Q1net1Q Group pie Employee 
Benefit Trust (the 'Trust'), which holds 
shares 1n connection with its employee 
share schemes, to make market purchases 
of the Company's ordinary shares to cover 
future obligations under outstanding share­
opnon and other share-based awards 
Further details are disclosed 1n note 29 on 
page 95 As at 31 March 2012, the Trust held 
11,672,209 ordinary shares of lp each The 
trustees of the Trust have agreed to waive 
their entitlement to dividends payable on 
the shares held by the Trust, other than 1n 
respect of deferred shares held on behalf 
of participants 1n the Company's Deferred 
Annual Bonus Plan D1v1dends received by 
the Trust 1n respect of the deferred shares 
are paid direct to the plan parnc1pants on 
receipt and are not retatned 1n the Trust 

Restnebons on transfer of shares 
As outlined 1n note 28 on page 94, the 
Special Share confers certain nghts under 
the Company's Articles of Assoc1anon to 
require certain persons with an interest 
1n Q1net1Q's shares that exceed certain 
prescnbed thresholds, to dispose of some 
or all of their ordinary shares on the 
grounds of national security or conflict 
of interest 

Artldes of Assoaatlon 
Save 1n respect of any variation to the rights 
attaching to the Special Share, the Company 
has not adopted any special rules relating 
to the amendment of the Company's 
Articles of Assoc1anon, other than as 
provided under UK corporate law 

A resolution will be proposed at the 2012 
AGM to amend the Company's Articles of 
Assoc1anon Details are contained 1n the 
Nonce of Meeting 

Business review 

Employee Share Scheme 
Equ1n1t1 Share Plan Trustees L1m1ted acts as 
trustee 1n respect of all ordinary shares held 
by employees under the Q1net1Q Group pie 
Share Incentive Plan ('the Plan') Equ1n1n 
Share Plan Trustees Limited will send a Form 
of Direcnon to all employees who hold 
shares under the Plan, and will vote on all 
resolutions proposed at general meetings 
1n accordance with the 1nstructlons 
received In circumstances where ordinary 
shares are held by the corporate sponsored 
nominee service, Equ1n1t1 Corporate 
Nominees L1m1ted will send a Proxy Form 
to all shareholders using such corporate 
nominee service, and will vote on all 
resolunons proposed at general meebngs 1n 
accordance with the 1nstructlons received 

Auditor 
KPMG Audit Pie has expressed its 
w1lhngness to contu1ue 1n office as auditor 
and a resolution to reappoint them will be 
proposed at the AGM 

Statement of disclosure of information 
to the auditor 
The Directors who held office at the date 
of approval of this Directors' report have 
confirmed that, so far as the Directors 
are aware, there 1s no relevant audit 
1nformanon of which the Company's auditor 
1s unaware, and the Directors have taken 
all the steps they reasonably should have 
taken as Directors to make themselves 
aware of any relevant audit 1nformanon 
and to establish that the Company's auditor 
1s aware of that inform anon 

Annual General Meeting 
The Company's AGM will be held on 
Thursday 26 July 2012 at 1 OOpm, at The 
Royal Berkshire Hotel, London Road, 
Sunningh1ll, Ascot, Berkshire, SLS OPP 
Details of the business to be proposed and 
voted on at the meenng 1s contained 1n 
the Nonce of the Annual General Meenng, 
which 1s sent to all shareholders and 1s 
also pubhshed on the Company's website, 
www Q1netlQ com 

By order of the Board 

Jon Messent 
Company Secretary 
Cody Technology Park 
lvely Road 
Farnborough 
Hampshire GU14 OLX 

24 May 2012 
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' 
RESPONSIBILITIES 
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Directors are responsible for preparing 
the Annual Report and the Group and 
parent company financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law 
and regulatlons 

Company law requires the Directors 
to prepare group and parent company 
flnanc1al statements for each financial year 
Under that law they are required 
to prepare the Group financial statements 
1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by 
the EU and applicable law and have 
elected to prepare the parent company 
financial statements 1n accordance 
with UK Accounting Standards and 
applicable law (UK Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practlce) 

Under company law the Directors must not 
approve the financial statements unless 
they are satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group 
and parent company and of their profit or 
loss for that period In preparing each of 
the Group and parent company financial 
statements, the Directors are required to 

Select suitable accounting policies and 
then apply them consistently, 
Make Judgements and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent, 
For the Group financial statements, state 
whether they have been prepared 1n 
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by 
the EU, 
For the parent company financial 
statements, state whether applicable 
UK Accounnng Standards have been 
followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained 1n the 
parent company financial statements, 
Prepare the financial statements on 
the going concern basis unless 1t 1s 
inappropriate to presume that the Group 
and the parent company will connnue 
1n business 
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The Directors are responsible for keeping 
adequate accounting records that are 
sufficient to show and explain the parent 
company's transactions and disclose 
with reasonable accuracy at any time the 
financial position of the parent company 
and enable them to ensure that its financial 
statements comply with the Companies 
Act 2006 They have general respons1b1hty 
for taking such steps as are reasonably 
open to them to safeguard the assets of 
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud 
and other irregulannes 

Under applicable law and regulations, 
the Directors are also responsible for 
preparing a Directors' report, Directors' 
remuneration report and corporate 
governance statement that comply with 
that law and those regulations 

The Directors are responsible for the 
maintenance and 1ntegnty of the corporate 
and financial information included on 
the Company's website Legislation 1n 
the UK governrng the preparation and 
d1ssem1nat1on of financial statements may 
differ from legislation 1n other Junsd1ctlons 

Respons1b1hty statement of the Directors 
1n respect of the Annual Report 
We, the Directors of the Company, confirm 
that to the best of our knowledge 

The financial statements of the Group 
have been prepared 1n accordance with 
IFRS as adopted by the EU, and for the 
Company under UK GAAP, 1n accordance 
with applicable United Kingdom law, 
and give a true and fair view of the assets, 
hab1htles, financial pos1non and profit 
or loss of the Group, and 
The Directors' Report includes a 
fair review of the development and 
performance of the busrness and the 
position of the Group, together wrth 
a description of the pnnc1pal nsks and 
uncertainties that face the Group 

By order of the Board 

Mark Elhott 
Chairman 
24 May 2012 

Leo Qu1nn 
Chief Executive Officer 
24 May 2012 

David Mellors 
Chief Financial Officer 
24 May 2012 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S 
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 
OF QINETIQ GROUP PLC 
We have audited the hnanc1al statements 
of Q1nehQ Group pie for the year ended 
31 March 2012 set out on pages 58 to 105 
The hnanc1al reporbng framework that 
has been apphed 1n the preparation of the 
Group financial statements 1s apphcable 
law and lnternatlonal F1nanc1al Reportlng 
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The 
financial reporhng framework that has been 
applied 1n the preparahon of the parent 
company financtal statements 1s applicable 
law and UK Accounhng Standards (UK 
Generally Accepted Accounhng Practice) 

This report 1s made solely to the Company's 
members, as a body, 1n accordance with 
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken 
so that we might state to the Company's 
members those matters we are required 
to state to them 1n an auditor's report and 
for no other purpose To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume respons1b1hty to anyone other than 
the Company and the Company's members, 
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, 
or for the opinions we have formed 

Respecttve respons1b1hties of Directors 

and auditor 
As explained more fully 1n the Directors' 
respons1b1hbes statement set out on page 
56, the Directors are responsible for the 
preparahon of the hnanc1al statements 
and for being sabshed that they give a true 
and farr view Our respons1b1llty 1s to audit, 
and express an op1n1on on, the hnanc1al 
statements m accordance with applicable 
law and lnternabonal Standards on 
Aud1bng (UK and Ireland) Those standards 
require us to comply with the Aud1bng 
Pracbces Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards 
for Auditors 

Scope of the audit of the 
financial statements 
A descnpbon of the scope of an audit of 
financial statements 1s provided on the 
APB's website at www frc org uk/apb/ 
scope/private cfm 

Op1n1on on financial statements 
In our op1n1on 

The financial statements give a true and 
fair view of the state of the Group's and 
of the parent company's affairs as at 
31 March 2012 and of the Group's proht 
for the year then ended, 
The Group financial statements have 
been properly prepared 1n accordance 
with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, 
The parent company hnancial statements 
have been properly prepared 1n 
accordance with UK Generally Accepted 
Accounbng Practices, 
The financial statements have been 
prepared 1n accordance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 
2006, and, as regards the Group 
financial statements, Arbcle 4 of 
the IAS Regulation 

Op1n1on on other matters prescribed 
by the Companies Act 2006 
In our op1n1on 

The part of the Directors' remuneration 
report to be audited has been properly 
prepared 1n accordance with the 
Companies Act 2006, 
The information given 1n the Directors' 
report for the financial year for which 
the financial statements are prepared 1s 
consistent with the financial statements 

Matters on which we are required 
to report by exception 
We have nothing to report 1n respect 
of the following 

Under the Com pa mes Act 2006 we are 
required to report to you 1f, 1n our op1n1on 

Adequate accounnng records have not 
been kept by the parent company, or 
returns adequate for our audit have not 
been received from branches not v1s1ted 
by us, or 
The parent company financial 
statements and the part of the Directors' 
Remunerahon Report to be audited are 
not 1n agreement with the accounbng 
records and returns, or 
Certain disclosures of Directors' 
remunerabon spectfled by law are 
not made, or 
We have not received all the 1nformabon 
and explanatlons we require for our audit 

Under the llsnng Rules we are required 
to review 

The Directors' statement, set out on 
page 43, 1n relabon to going concern, 
The part of the corporate governance 
statement on pages 36 to 43 relabng 
to the Company's compliance with 
the nine prov1s1ons of the UK Corporate 
Governance code specified for our review, 
Certain elements of the report 
to shareholders by the Board on 
Directors' remuneration 

Mike Maloney 
Senior Statutory Auditor 
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Pie 
Statutory Auditor 
Chartered Accountants 
15 Canada Square 
London 
El4 SGl 

24 May 2012 
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 
for the year ended 31 March 

2012 2011 

Belo"' Before 
acqu1srt1on Acqws1tmn acqu1s1t1on Acqurs1t1on 

amort1sat1on amort1sat1on amort1sat1on amort1sat1on 
and specific and specific and spec1f1c and spec1f1c 

non-recurring non-recurnn~ non-recurring non-recurring 
all figures m £ milhon Note rte ms items Total items items Total 

Revenue 2, 3 1,469 6 1,469 6 1,702 6 1,702 6 
Operating costs excluding deprec1at1on 
and amort1satron (1,273 9J 223 9 (1,0SO OJ (l,Sl6 4J (S8 SJ (l,S74 9J 
Other income 2 S2 s 2 43 43 
EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, 
deprec1at1on and amort1sat1on) 200 9 223 9 424 8 190 5 (S8 5) 132 0 
Deprec1at1on and 1mpa1rment 
of property, plant and equipment 3, 15 (30 6J (l 9J (32 SJ (33 6J (S 9J (39 SJ 
Amort1sat1on and impairment 
of 1ntang1ble assets 14 (9 OJ (20 3J (29 3J (11 S) (26 3J (37 8J 
Group operating profit/{loss) 3 161 3 201 7 363 0 145 4 (90 7) S4 7 
Gain on business comb1nat1ons and 
divestments and disposal 
of investments s 11 6 116 27 27 
Ftnance income 6 69 8 69 8 70 4 70 4 
Finance expense 6 (112 8J (112 8J (1012J (1012J 
Profit/(loss) before tax 4 118 3 213 3 3316 114 6 (88 0) 26 6 
Taxation (expense)/1ncome 7 (23 S) (SO 2) (73 7J (218J 02 (216J 
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders 94 8 1631 257 9 92 8 (87 8) so 
Earnings per share 

Basic 11 14 6p 39 Gp 14 2p 0 8p 
Diluted 11 14 Sp 39 4p 14 Op 0 8p 

• For details of 'spec1f1c non-recurring items' refer to note 4 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
for the year ended 31 March 

all figures m £ mlll1on 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive 1ncome/(expense) 

Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations 
Movement 1n fair value of hedging denvat1ves 

Reclass1f1cat1on of hedging denvat1ves to the income statement 

Movement 1n deferred tax on hedging denvat1ves 

Fair value losses on available-for-sale investments 

Actuana! loss recognised tn defined benefit pension schemes 
Increase 1n deferred tax asset due to actuarial movement 1n pension deficit 

Other comprehensive 1ncome/(expense) for the year, net of tax 

Total comprehensive 1ncome/(expense) for the year attributable to equity holders 

2012 2011 

2S7 9 so 

(19) (19 4) 
(04) (04) 
02 4 1 

01 (4 8) 

(12) 
(118 2) (4 7) 

30 7 13 
(90 7) (23 9) 

167 2 (18 9) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
Issued capital Non-
share redemption Share Hedge Translation Retained controlling 

all figures m £ m11l1on capital reserve premium reserve reserve earmngs Total mterest Total equity 

At 1 Aprol 2011 66 39 9 147 6 02 21 6 2415 4S7 4 01 4S7 s 
Profit for the year 257 9 2S7 9 2S79 
Other comprehensive income/ 
(expense) for the year, net of tax (O 1) (19) (88 7) (90 7) (907) 
Purchase of own shares (12 0) (12 O) (12 0) 
D1v1dends (16 4) (16 4) (164) 
Share-based payments 31 31 31 

At 31 March 2012 66 39 9 147 6 01 19 7 385 4 S99 3 01 S99 4 

At 1 April 2010 66 39 9 147 6 (12 1) 544 237 2 473 6 01 473 7 
Profit for the year 50 so so 
Other comprehensive income/ 
(expense) for the year, net of tax (11) (19 4) (34) (23 9) (23 9) 
Transfers 13 4 (134) 
Purchase of own shares (0 6) (0 6) (0 6) 
Share-based payments 3 3 33 33 
At 31 March 2011 66 399 147 6 02 216 241 s 4S7 4 01 457 s 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
as at 31 March 

all figures m £ mdl1on 

Non-current assets 

Goodwill 
Intangible assets 
Property, plant and equipment 

Other financial assets 
Investments 
Deferred tax asset 

Current assets 
Inventories 
Other financial assets 
Trade and other receivables 
Investments 
Assets classified as held for sale 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Total assets 
Current l1ab1l1t1es 
Trade and other payables 
Current tax 
Prov1s1ons 

Other f1nanc1al hab1l1t1es 

Non-current hab1l1t1es 
Retirement benefit obl1gat1on 
Prov1s1ons 
Other financial l1ab1l1t1es 

Other payables 

Total habd1t1es 

Net assets 
Capital and reserves 
Ordinary shares 
Capital redemption reserve 
Share premium account 
Hedging and translation reserve 
Retained earnings 

capital and reserves attributable to shareholders of the parent company 
Non-controll1ng interest 

Total shareholders' funds 

Note 

13 

14 

15 

24 

16 
17 

18 
24 

20 

19 
21 
24 

22 

23 
24 

30 
23 
24 

22 

28 

2012 

519 3 

718 

246 6 

69 
58 

17 0 
867 4 

312 
24 

4048 
11 
51 

117 8 
562 4 

1,429 8 

(498 7) 
(13 7) 

(3 4) 
(84 9) 

(600 7) 

(31 5) 
(13 2) 

(164 4) 
(20 6) 

(229 7) 
(830 4) 

599 4 

66 
39 9 

147 6 

19 8 
385 4 

599 3 
01 

599 4 

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 24 May 2012 and were signed 
on its behalf by 

Mark Elhott 
Chairman 
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Leo Quinn David Mellors 
Chief Executive Officer Chief F1nanc1al Officer 

2011 

5211 

103 2 

260 9 

82 
59 

33 8 

9331 

45 4 
30 

389 5 
23 
75 

102 5 
550 2 

1,483 3 

(465 6) 
(4 2) 

(204) 
(97 2) 

(587 4) 

(124 6) 
(12 6) 

(277 4) 
(238) 

(438 4) 
(1,025 8) 

457 5 

66 
39 9 

147 6 
218 

241 5 

457 4 
01 

457 5 
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
for the year ended 31 March 

all figures m £ mlll1on Note 2012 2011 

Net cash inflow from operations before restructuring costs 27 2508 287 6 

Net cash outflow relating to UK restructuring (8 9) (318) 

cash inflow from operations 2419 255 8 

Tax paid (23 3) (42 9) 

Interest received 10 03 
Interest paid (39 5) (28 9) 

Net cash inflow from operating act1v1t1es 1801 184 3 

Purchases of 1ntang1ble assets (O 7) (2 4) 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (22 0) (19 7) 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 73 03 
Equity accounted investments and other investment funding 36 
Purchase of subs1d1ary undertakings (09) (15 8) 
Proceeds from sale of interests in subs1d1ary undertakings 112 38 2 
Net cash (outflow}/lnflow from 1nvest1ng act1v1t1es (15) 06 

Repayment of bank borrowings (133 6) (1441) 

Proceeds from bank borrowings 49 
Payment of bank loan arrangement fees (2 4) 
Settlement of forward contracts (16) 

Purchase of own shares (12 0) (O 6) 
D1v1dends paid to shareholders (164) 
Capital element of finance lease rental payments (2 8) (2 8) 

Capital element of finance lease rental receipts 30 30 
Net cash outflow from f1nanc1ng act1v1t1es (163 4) (142 O) 

Increase 1n cash and cash equivalents 15 2 42 9 
Effect of foreign exchange changes on cash and cash equivalents 04 (14) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beg1nn1ng of year 102 2 60 7 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 117 8 102 2 

Comprising 
Cash and cash equivalents 24 117 8 102 5 
Overdrafts 24 (03) 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 117 8 102 2 

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT 
for the year ended 31 March 

all figures m £ m1lhon Note 2012 2011 

Increase 1n cash and cash equivalents 1n the year 15 2 42 9 
Cash flows from repayment of bank loans and other f1nanc1al instruments 135 o 1414 
Change 1n net debt resulting from cash flows 24 150.2 184 3 
Other non-cash movements 1nclud1ng forergn exchange 24 (115) 12 2 
Movement 1n net debt 1n the year 24 138 7 196 5 
Net debt at beg1nn1ng of year 24 (2609) (457 4) 

Net debt at end of year 24 (122 2) (260 9) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Significant accounting policies 
Accounting policies 
The following accounting pol1c1es have been applied consistently to all penods presented 1n dealing with items that are considered 
material 1n relation to the Group's f1nanc1al statements In the income statement, the Group presents acqu1s1t1on amort1sat1on and 
spec1f1c non-recurring items separately In the Judgement of the Directors, for the reader to obtain a proper understanding of the f1nanc1al 
1nformat1on, acqu1s1t1on amort1sat1on and spec1f1c non-recurring items need to be disclosed separately because ofthe1r size and 1nc1dence 
Spec1f1c non-recurring items are referred to 1n note 4 

Basis of preparation 
The Group's f1nanc1al statements, approved by the Directors, have been prepared on a going concern basis as discussed 1n the Directors' 
Report on page 43 and 1n accordance with International F1nanc1al Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ('Adopted IFRS') and the 
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The Company has elected to prepare its parent company f1nanc1al 
statements 1n accordance with UK GAAP, these are presented on pages 103-105 The financial statements have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention, as mod1f1ed by the revaluation of available-for-sale f1nanc1al assets and other relevant f1nanc1al assets and 
l1ab1l1t1es Non-current assets held for sale are held at the lower of carrying amount and farr value less costs to sell The Group's reporting 
currency 1s sterling and unless otherwise stated the f1nanc1al statements are rounded to the nearest £100,000 

Basis of consolidation 
The consolidated f1nanc1al statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and tts subs1d1ary undertakings to 31 March 2012 
The purchase method of accounting has been adopted Those subs1d1ary undertakings acquired or drsposed of 111 the penod are included 1n 
the consolidated income statement from the date control is obtained to the date that control is lost (usually on acqu1s1t1on and disposal 
respectively) A subs1d1ary 1s an entity over which the Group has the power to govern f1nanc1al and operating pohc1es 1n order to obtain 
benefits Potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when determining control 

An associate 1s an undertaking over which the Group exercises s1gn1f1cant influence, usually from 20%-50% of the equity voting rights, tn 
respect of f1nanc1al and operating policy A JO Int venture 1s an undertaking over wh1ch the Group exercises J01nt control Associates and 
JOtnt ventures are accounted for using the equity method from the date of acqu1s1t1on to the date of disposal The Group's investments 1n 
associates and JOlnt ventures are held at cost 1ncludmg goodwill on acqu1s1t1on and any post-acqu1s1t1on changes 1n the Group's share of 
the net assets of the associate less any impairment to the recoverable amount Where an associate or Joint venture has net liab1l1t1es, full 
prov1s1on 1s made for the Group's share of lrab1l1t1es where there 1s a constructive or legal obl1gat1on to provide add1t1onal funding to the 
associate or 101nt venture 

The f1nanc1al statements of subs1d1anes, JOlnt ventures and associates are adjusted where necessary to ensure compliance with Group 
accounting pohc1es 

On consohdat1on, all intra-Group income, expenses and balances are el1m1nated 

Revenue 
Revenue represents the vatue of work performed for customers, and 1s measured net of value added and other sales taxes on the 
following bases 

Service contracts 
The Group's service contract arrangements are accounted for under IAS 18 Revenue Revenue 1s recognised once the Group has obtained 
the nght to cons1derat1on 1n exchange for its performance No profit 1s recognised on contracts until the outcome of the contract can be 
reliably estimated When the outcome of a contract can be rehably estimated, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage 
of completion of the contract act1v1ty at the balance sheet date This 1s normally measured by the proportion of contract costs incurred for 
work performed to date compared with the estimated total contract costs after making suitable allowances for technical and other risks 
related to performance milestones yet to be achieved When 1t is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, 
the expected loss 1s recognised 1mmed1ately as an expense The Group generally does not undertake construction contracts 

Goods sold 
Sales of goods are recognised rn the income statement on delivery of the product or when the s1gmf1cant nsks and rewards of ownership 
have been transferred to the customer and revenue and costs can be reliably measured 

Royalties and intellectual property 
Royalty revenue 1s recognised over the penod to which the royalty relates Intellectual property revenue can be attnbuted either to 
perpetual hcences or to hm1ted lrcences L1m1ted ltcences are granted for a specified period and revenue 1s recognised over the period of 
the hcence Perpetual licences are granted for unhm1ted time frames and revenue 1s recognised when the nsks and rewards of ownership 
are transferred to the customer 
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Segmental 1nformat1on 
Segmental 1nformat1on 1s presented according to the Group's management structure and the markets 1n which 1t operates 
Segmental results represent the contrrbut1on of the different segments to the profit of the Group Corporate expenses are allocated 
to the corresponding segments Unallocated items mainly comprise acqu1s1t1on amort1sat1on, specific non-recurrrng items, net finance 
expense and taxation Specific non-recurring items are referred to 1n note 4 Ehm1nat1ons represent inter-company trading between 
the different segments 

Segmental assets and hab1ht1es 1nformat1on 1s not regularly provided to the chief operating dec1s1on maker 

Research and development expenditure 
Research and development costs incurred on behalf of a customer as part of a specific project are directly chargeable to the customer 
on whose behalf the work 1s undertaken These costs are recognised w1th1n operating costs and revenue 1s recognised 1n respect of the 
R&D services performed Internally funded development expenditure 1s cap1tal1sed 1n the balance sheet where there 1s a clearly defined 
project, the expenditures are separately 1dent1f1able, the project 1s technically and commercially feasible, all costs are recoverable by future 
revenue and the resources are committed to complete the project Such cap1tahsed costs are amortised over the forecast period of sales 
resulting from the development All other research and development costs are expensed to the income statement in the penod 1n which 
they are incurred If the research phase cannot be clearly d1st1ngu1shed from the development phase, the respective project-related costs 
are treated as tf they were incurred 1n the research phase only and expensed 

Financing 
F1nanc1ng represents the f1nanc1al expense on borrowings accounted for using the effective rate method and the financial income earned 
on funds invested Exchange differences on financial assets and l1ab1l1t1es and the income or expense from interest hedging instruments 
that are recognised 1n the income statement are included within finance income and finance expense 

Taxation 
The taxation charge 1s based on the taxable profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of temporary differences 
between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes Current tax and deferred tax are charged or credited to the 
income statement, except where they relate to items charged or credited to equity, in which case the relevant tax 1s charged or credited to 
equity Deferred taxation 1s the tax attributable to the temporary differences that appear when taxation authorities recognise and measure 
assets and hab1l1t1es with rules that differ from those of the consohdated f1nanc1al statements The amount of deferred tax provided 1s 
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and hab1l1t1es, using rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date 

Any changes 1n the tax rates are recognised rn the income statement unless related to items directly recognised 1n equity Deferred tax 
l1ab1l1t1es are recognised on all taxable temporary differences excluding non-deductible goodwill Deferred tax assets are recognised on all 
deductible temporary differences provided that 1t 1s probable that future taxable income will be available against which the asset can be 
ut1hsed Deferred tax assets and hab1ht1es are offset only where there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset and there 1s an 1ntent1on to 
settle balances on a net basis 

Business comb1nat1ons 
Business comb1nat1ons are accounted for using the acqu1s1t1on method as at the acqu1s1t1on date, which 1s the date on which control is 
transferred to the Group The Group measures goodwill as the acqu1s1tron-date fair value of the cons1derat1on transferred, 1ncludrng the 
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, less the net of the acqu1s1t1on-date fair values of the 1dent1fiable assets acquired 
and hab1hties assumed, 1nclud1ng contingent hab1ht1es as required by IFRS 3 

Cons1derat1on transferred includes the fair values of assets transferred, hab1ht1es incurred by the Group to the previous owners of the 
acqu1ree, equity interests issued by the Group to the previous owners of the acquiree, equity interests issued by the Group, contingent 
cons1derat1on and share-based payment awards of the acqu1ree that are replaced 1n the business comb1nat1on Any contingent 
cons1derat1on payable 1s recognised at fair value at the acqu1s1t1on date Subsequent changes to the fair value of contingent consideration 
that 1s not classified as equity are recognised 1n the consolidated 1ncome statement If a business combination relates to the term1nat1on of 
pre-ex1st1ng relat1onsh1ps between the Group and the acqurree, then the lower of the termination amount, as contained 1n the agreement, 
and the value of the off-market element, 1s deducted from the cons1derat1on transferred and recognised 1n other expenses 

Transaction costs that the Group incurs 1n connection with a business comb1nat1on, such as finder's fees, legal fees, due d1hgence fees, 
and other professional fees and consulting fees, are expensed as incurred 

Non-controlling interests are measured either at the non-controlling interest's proportion of the net fair value of the 1dent1f1able assets, 
hab1ht1es and contingent hab1ht1es recognised or at fair value The method used 1s determined on an acqu1s1t1on-by-acqu1s1t1on basis 

Goodwill 
Goodwill on acqu1s1t1ons of subs1d1anes 1s included 1n 1ntang1ble assets Goodwill on acqu1s1t1ons of J01nt ventures and associates 1s included 
1n the carrying value of equity accounted investments Goodw1ll 1s tested annually for 1mpa1rment and earned at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses Ga1ns and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill related to the entity sold 

QfnetJQ Group pie Annual Report and Accounts 2012 63 
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Notes to the f1nanc1al statements continued 

1. Significant accounting policies continued 
Intangible assets 
Intangible assets arising from business comb1nat1ons are recognised at fair value and are amortised over their expected useful lives, 
typically between 1 and 9 years Internally generated 1ntang1ble assets are recorded at cost, 1ndud1ng labour, directly attributable costs 
and any third-party expenses Purchased 1ntang1ble assets are recognised at cost less amort1sat1on Intangible assets are amortised 
over their respective useful hves on a stra1ght-hne basis as follows 

Intellectual property rights 
Development costs 
Other 

Property, plant and equipment 

2-8 years 
1-4 years 
1-9 years 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation Freehold land 1s not depreciated Other tangible non-current 
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful economic lives to their estimated residual value as follows 

Freehold buildings 
Leasehold land and buildings 
Plant and machinery 
Fixtures and fittings 
Computers 
Motor vehicles 

20-25 years 
Shorter of useful economic hfe and the period of the lease 
3-10 years 
5-10 years 
3-5 years 
3-5 years 

Assets under construction are included 1n property, plant and equipment on the basis of expenditure incurred at the balance sheet 
date In the case of assets constructed by the Group, the value includes the cost of own work completed, 1nclud1ng directly attributable 
costs and interest 

The useful hves, depreciation methods and residual values applied to property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually, 
and 1f appropriate, adjusted accordingly 

Impairment of tangible, goodwill, 1ntang1ble and held for sale assets 
At each reporting date the Group assesses whether there 1s an 1nd1cat1on that an asset may be 1mpa1red If the carrying amount of any 
asset exceeds its recoverable amount an 1mpa1rment loss 1s recognised 1mmed1ately m the income statement In add1t1on, goodw1ll 1s 
tested for 1mpa1rment annually irrespective of any 1nd1cat1on of 1mpa1rment If the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount, the 
respective asset or the assets 1n the cash generating unit (CGU) are written down to thetr recoverable amounts The recoverable amount 
of an asset or CGU 1s the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value 1n use The value 1n use 1s the present value of the future cash 
flows expected to be derived from an asset or CGU calculated using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate Impairment losses are expensed 
to the income statement 

Investments 1n debt and equity securities 
Investments held by the Group are classified as either a current asset or as a non-current asset and those classified as available for sale 
are stated at farr value, with any resultant gain or loss, other than 1mpa1rment losses, being recognised directly rn equity When these 
investments are de-recognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly 1n equity 1s recognised 1n the income statement 

The fair value of quoted f1nanc1al instruments 1s their bid price at the balance sheet date The fair value of unquoted equity investments 1s 
based on the pnce of the most recent investment by the Group or a third party, 1f available, or denved from the present value of forecast 
future cash flows 

Inventories 
Inventory and work-in-progress are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Work-in-progress and manufactured finished goods 
are valued at production cost Production cost includes direct production costs and an appropriate proportion of production overheads 
A prov1s1on ts estabhshed when the net realisable value of any inventory item 1s lower than its cost 

Bid costs 
Costs incurred 1n b1dd1ng for work are normally expensed as incurred In the case of large multi-year government contracts the b1dd1ng 
process typically involves a compet1t1ve bid process to determine a preferred bidder and then a further penod to reach financial close with 
the customer In these cases, the costs incurred after announcement of the Group ach1ev1ng preferred bidder status are deferred to the 
balance sheet w1th1n work-in-progress From the point financial close 1s reached, the costs are amortised over the hfe of the contract If an 
opportunity for which the Group was awarded preferred bidder status fails to reach financial close, the costs deferred to that point will be 
expensed 1n the income statement 1mmed1ately, when 1t becomes hkely that f1nanc1al close will not be achieved 

Trade and other receivables 
Trade and other receivables are stated net of prov1s1ons for doubtful debts Amounts recoverable on contracts are included 1n trade and 
other receivables and represent revenue recognised m excess of amounts 1nvo1ced Payments received on account are included 1n trade 
and other payables and represent amounts 1nvo1ced 1n excess of revenue recognised 
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cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and short-term deposits that are readily convertible into cash In the cash flow statement 
overdraft balances are 1nduded 1n cash and equivalents 

Current and non-current hab1l1t1es 
Current hab1l1t1es include amounts due w1th1n the normal operating cycle of the Group Interest-bearing current and non-current hab1ht1es 
are 1nit1ally recognised at fair value and then stated at amortised cost with any difference between the cost and redemption value being 
recognised 1n the income statement over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest rate basis Costs associated with the 
arrangement of bank fac1l1t1es or the issue of loans are held net of the associated habtl1ty presented 1n the balance sheet Cap1tal1sed issue 
costs are released over the estimated hfe of the factl1ty or instrument to which they relate using the effective interest rate method If 1t 
becomes clear that the facility or instrument will be redeemed early, the amort1sat1on of the issue costs will be accelerated 

Prov1s1ons 
A prov1s1on 1s recognised 1n the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obl1gat1on as a result of a past event 
wh1ch can be reliably estimated, and 1t 1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation 
Where appropriate, provisions are determined by d1scount1ng the expected cash flows at the Group's weighted average cost of capital 

F1nanc1al instruments 
F1nanc1al assets and f1nanc1al hab1ht1es are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
prov1s1ons of the instrument The derecogn1t1on of a financial instrument takes place when the Group no longer controls the contractual 
rights that comprise the frnanc1al instrument, when the instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated or exercised 

Derivative financial instruments 
Derivative f1nanc1al instruments are 1n1t1ally recognised and thereafter held at fair value, being the market value for quoted instruments 
or valuation based on models and discounted cash flow calculations for unhsted instruments 

Fair value hedging 
Changes 1n the fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges of currency risk or interest rate risk are recognised 1n the income 
statement The hedged item 1s held at fair value with respect to the hedged nsk with any gain or loss recognised 1n the income statement 

Cash flow hedging 
Changes rn the fair value of derivatives designated as a cash flow hedge that are regarded as highly effective are recognised 1n equity 
The 1neffect1ve portion 1s recognised 1mmed1ately 1n the income statement Where a hedged item results 1n an asset or a hab1hty, gains 
and losses previously recognised 1n equity are included 1n the cost of the asset or l1ab1hty Gains and losses previously recognised 1n equity 
are removed and recognised 1n the income statement at the same time as the hedged transaction 

leased assets 
leases are class1f1ed as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are held by the lessee Assets held under 
finance leases are capitalised and included 1n property, plant and equipment at the lower of the present value of m1n1mum lease payments 
and fair value at the 1ncept1on of the lease Assets are then depreciated over the shorter of their useful economic hves or the lease term 
Obltgat1ons relating to finance leases, net of finance charges arising 1n future periods, are included under f1nanc1a1 l1ab1ht1es 

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a stra1ght-ltne basis over the term of the lease 

Foreign currencies 
Transactions 1n foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and 
hab1ht1es 1n foreign currencies are translated at period-end rates Any resulting exchange differences are taken to the income statement 
Gains and losses on designated forward foreign exchange hedging contracts are matched against the foreign exchange movements on the 
underlying transaction 

The 1nd1v1dual f1nanc1al statements of each Group company are presented 1n its functional currency On consohdat1on, assets and hab1ht1es 
of overseas subs1d1anes, associated undertakings and JOlnt ventures, 1ndud1ng any related goodwill, are translated to sterhng at the rate of 
exchange at the balance sheet date The results and cash flows of overseas subs1d1anes, associated undertakings and Joint ventures are 
translated to sterling using the average rates of exchange during the period Exchange adjustments arising from the re-translation of the 
opening net investment and the results for the penod to the penod·end rate are taken directly to equity and reported 1n the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income 

Post-retirement benefits 
The Group provides both defined contnbut1on and defined benefit pension arrangements The hab1ht1es of the Group ans1ng from defined 
benefit obltgat1ons, and the related current service cost, are determined using the projected unit credit method Valuations for accounting 
purposes are earned out half yearly for the largest plans and on a regular basis for other plans Actuanal advice 1s provided by external 
consultants For the funded defined benefit plans, the excess or deficit of the fair value of plan assets less the present value of the defined 
benefit obhgat1on are recognised as an asset or a hab1hty respectively 
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Notes to the financial statements continued 

1. S1gmficant accounting policies continued 
For defined benefit plans, the actuarial cost charged to the income statement consists of current service cost, interest cost, expected 
return on plan assets and past service cost The finance element of the pension charge 1s shown 1n finance income and expenses and the 
rema1n1ng service cost element 1s charged as a component of employee costs 1n the income statement Actuarial gains and losses are 
recognised 1mmed1ately 1n full through the Statement of Comprehensive Income Contnbut1ons to defined contribution plans are charged 
to the Income Statement as incurred 

Share-based payments 
The Group operates share-based payment arrangements with employees The fair value of equity-settled awards for share-based 
payments 1s determined on grant and expensed straight hne over the period from grant to the date of earliest uncond1t1onal exercise 
The fair value of cash-settled awards for share-based payments 1s determined each period end until they are exercised or lapse The 
value 1s expensed straight hne over the period from grant to the date of earliest uncond1t1onal exercise The charges for both equity 
and cash-settled share-based payments are updated annually for non-market-based vesting cond1t1ons 

Share capital 
Ordinary share capital of the Company 1s recorded as the proceeds received, less issue costs Company shares held by the employee benefit 
trusts are held at the cons1derat1on paid They are classified as own shares w1th1n equity Any gain or loss on the purchase, sale or issue of 
Company shares 1s recorded 1n equity 

Restatement of prior periods for finahsat1on of fair values arising on acqu1s1t1ons 
The fair values of the net assets of acquired businesses are finalised w1th1n 12 months of the acqu1s1t1on date All fair value adjustments are 
recorded with effect from the date of acqu1s1t1on and, consequently, may result 1n the restatement of previously reported financial results 

Recent accounting developments 
The following EU-endorsed amendments, improvements and 1nterpretat1ons of published standards are effective for accounting 
periods beg1nn1ng on or after 1 April 2011 and have been adopted with no material impact on the Group's financial statements 

IAS 24 (revised), Related Party Disclosures The changes introduced by the standard relate marnly to the related party disclosure 
requirements for government-related ent1t1es, and the def1n1t1on of a related party The change has been apphed prospectively 

Amendments to IFRIC 14- Prepayments of a M1n1mum Funding Requirement The amendment to IFRIC 14 removes unintended 
consequences ans1ng from the treatment of prepayments when there 1s a m1n1mum funding requirement (MFR) The amendment 
results 1n prepayments of contributions 1n certain circumstances being recognised as an asset rather than an expense 

Improvements to IFRSs 2010 The improvements are included 1n the list below These consolidated F1nanc1al Statements have been 
prepared under the revised disclosure requirements 

• IFRS 3, Business Comb1nat1ons, 
IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of IFRS, 

• IFRS 7, F1nanc1al instruments Disclosures, 
• IAS 1, Presentation of F1nanc1al Statements, 
• IAS 34, lntenm F1nanc1al Reporting, 
• IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate F1nanc1al Statements, and 
• IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes 

The Directors ant1c1pate that the adoption of the following revised, amended and improved published standards and 1nterpretat1ons, 
which were 1n issue at the date of authorisation of these F1nanc1al Statements, wlll have no material impact on the F1nanc1al Statements 
of the Group when they become apphcable 1n future penods 

• IFRS 7, F1nanc1al Instruments Disclosures, 
• IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of IFRS, subject to EU endorsement, 

IAS 12, Income Taxes, subject to EU endorsement, 
• IAS 1, Presentation of F1nanc1al Statements, subject to EU endorsement, 

IAS 27, Consohdated and Separate F1nanc1al Statements, subject to EU endorsement, 
• IAS 28, Investment 1n associates, subject to EU endorsement, and 
• IAS 32, Financial instruments presentation, subject to EU endorsement 
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The following new and improved published standards were 1n issue at the date of authonsat1on of these F1nanc1al Statements but 
are not yet effective and have not been adopted All are subject to EU endorsement and the impact of adopting these standards 1s 

under assessment 

• IFRS 9, F1nanc1al Instruments, 
• IFRS 10, Consolidated F1nanc1al Statements, 

IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, 

• IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests 1n Other Ent1t1es, 
IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, and 

• IAS 19, Employee Benefits 

Critical accounting estimates and Judgements tn applying accounting policies 
The following commentary 1s intended to h1ghhght those pol1c1es that are cnt1cal to the business based on the level of management 
judgement required 1n their apphcat1on, their complexity and their potential impact on the results and financial positron reported for 
the Group The level of management Judgement required includes assumptions and estimates about future events that are uncertain 
and the actual outcome of which may result 1n a materially different outcome from that ant1c1pated 

Revenue and profit recognrt1on 
The est1mat1on process required to evaluate the potential outcome of contracts and projects requires skill, knowledge and experience 
from a variety of sources w1th1n the business to assess the status of the contract, costs to complete, tnternal and external labour resources 
required and other factors This process 1s earned out continuously throughout the business to ensure that project and contract 
assessments reflect the latest status of such work No profit 1s recognised on a contract until the outcome can be reliably estimated 

Business comb1nat1ons 
Intangible assets recognised on business combrnat1ons have been valued using established methods and models to determine estimated 
value and useful economic hfe, with input, where appropriate, from external valuation consultants Such methods require the use of 
estimates which may produce results that are different from actual future outcomes 

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment This process relies on the use of estimates of the future 
profitab1hty and cash flows of its CGUs which may differ from the actual results dehvered In add1t1on, the Group reviews whether 
1dent1f1ed 1ntang1ble assets have suffered any impairment Further details on the sens1t1v1ty of the carrying value of goodwill to changes 
1n the key assumptions are set out 1n note 13 

Consolldat1on of US subs1d1anes 
As described on page 43, the Group and the US Department of Defense (DoD) have entered into a proxy agreement that regulates the 
ownership, management and operation of the Group's 100% owned subs1d1ary, Q1net1Q North America, Inc and its subs1d1aries Having 
considered the terms of the proxy agreement, the Directors consider that the Group has control over the operating and financial policies 
of Q1net1Q North America and, therefore, consolidates the subs1d1anes rn the consolidated accounts 

Post-retirement benefits 
The Group's defined benefit pension obhgat1ons and net income statement costs are based on key assumptions, 1nclud1ng return on 
plan assets, discount rates, mortality, 1nflat1on and future salary and pension increases Management exerc1ses 1ts best1udgement, 
1n consultation with actuarial advisors, 1n selecting the values for these assumptions that are the most appropriate to the Group Small 
changes 1n these assumptions at the balance sheet date, 1nd1v1dually or collectively, may result tn s1gn1ficant changes 1n the size of the 
def1c1t or the net income statement costs Any change 1n these assumptions would have an impact on the retirement benefit obligation 
recognised Further details on these assumptions are set out 1n note 30 

Research and development expenditure 
Internally-funded development expenditure 1s cap1tahsed when criteria are met and 1s written off over the forecast period of sales resulting 
from the development Management decides on the adequacy of future demand and the potential market for such new products 1n order 
to Justify cap1tahsat1on of internally-funded development expenditure These can be difficult to determine when deahng with rnnovat1ve 
technologies Actual product sales may differ from these estimates 

Tax 
In determ1n1ng the Group's prov1s1ons for income tax and deferred tax, 1t 1s necessary to assess the hkel1hood and t1m1ng of recovery 
of tax losses created, and to consider transactions 1n a small number of key tax JUnsd1ct1ons for which the ultimate tax determination 
1s uncertain To the extent that the final outcome differs from the tax that has been provrded, adjustments will be made to income tax 
and deferred tax prov1s1ons held 1n the period the determ1nat1on 1s made 
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Z. Revenue and other income 
Revenue and other income 1s analysed as follows 

Revenue by category 
For the year ended 31 March 
all figures in£ m11l1on 

Sales of goods 
Services 
Royalties 
Revenue 

Share of JOlnt ventures' and associates' profit after tax 
Other income 
Total other income 

2012 2011 

253 2 365 5 
1,209 4 1,330 0 

70 71 
1,469 6 1,702 6 

01 02 
51 41 

52 43 

The revenue and profit after tax of 101nt ventures and associates 1s £26 lm and £0 2m respectively (2011 
The figures 1n the table above represent the Group share of this profit after tax 

£24 9m and £0 Sm respectively) 

Other income 1s 1n respect of property rentals and the recovery of other related property costs 

Revenue by customer geographic location 
For the year ended 31 March 
all figures in£ m1lhon 
North Amenca 
United Kingdom 
Other 
Total 

Revenue by maJor customer type 
For the year ended 31 March 
atl figures m £ m1lhon 

UK Government 
US Government 
Other 
Total 

2012 

788 7 
570 1 
1108 

1,469 6 

2012 

482 8 
730 5 
256 3 

1,469 6 

Revenue from the UK Government was generated by the UK Services and Global Products operat1ng groups Revenue from the US 
Government was generated by the US Services and Global Products operating groups 
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2011 

949 2 
623 7 
129 7 

1,702 6 

2011 

526 5 
894 3 
2818 

1,702 6 
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3. Segmental analysis 
Operating segments 
For the year ended 31 March 
all figures tn £ m1lhon Note 2012 20112 

Ope rat mg Operating 

UK Services 
US Services 
Global Products 
Total operating segments 

Operating profit before acqu1s1t1on amort1sat1on 
and specific non-recurring 1tems1 

Non-recurnng operating costs before amort1satron, 
deprec1at1on and 1mpa1rment 
Impairment of property 
Amort1sat1on of 1ntang1ble assets arising from acqu1s1t1ons 
Operating profit 
Gain on business comb1nat1ons and divestments 
and disposal of investments 
Net finance expense 
Profit before tax 
Taxation expense 
Profit for the year 

4 

5 
6 

7 

Revenue 

610 1 
534 5 
325 0 

1,469 6 

profit Revenue profit 

63 0 652 7 47 4 
32 1 607 3 45 9 
66 2 442 6 52 1 

1613 1,702 6 145 4 

1613 145 4 

223 9 (58 5) 

(19) (5 9) 
(20 3) (26 3) 
363 0 54 7 

11 6 27 
(43 0) (30 8) 

331 6 266 
(73 7) (216) 
257 9 so 

1 The measure of profit presented to the chief operating decismn maker 1s operating profit stated before amortisation of 1ntang1ble assets arising from 
acquis1t1ons and spec1f1c non-recurring items For deta1ls refer to note 4 

2 
The 2011 figures have been restated to reflect the transfer of businesses from Global Products to UK Services and US Services at the begmnmg of 2012 

No measure of segmental assets and hab1ht1es has been disclosed as this 1nformat1on 1s not regularly provided to the chief operating 
dec1s1on maker 

Depree1at1on and amort1sat1on by business segment 
For the year ended 31 March 2012 

all figures m £million 

Deprec1at1on and 1mpa1rment of property, plant 
and equipment 
Amort1sat1on and 1mpa1rment of purchased or internally 
developed 1ntang1ble assets 

For the year ended 31 March 2011 

all figures in£ million 

Deprec1at1on of property, plant and equipment 
Amort1sat1on of purchased or internally developed 1ntang1ble 
assets 

UK Services 

23 2 

84 

316 

UK Services 

25 4 

10 0 
35 4 

US Services 

30 

03 

33 

US Services 

3 1 

06 
37 

Global 
Products 

44 

03 

47 

Global 
Products 

5 1 

09 
60 

Excludes non-recurnng items not included w1th1n the measure of operating profit reported to the chief operating dee1s1on maker 

Non-current assets (exdud1ng deferred tax) by geographic location 
all figures in£ m1lhon UK Rest of World 

Year ended 31 March 2012 2811 569 3 

UK Rest of World 
Year ended 31 March 2011 305 9 593 4 

Total 

30 6 

90 

39 6 

Total 

33 6 

115 
45 1 

Total 

8504 

Total 

899 3 
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4. Profit/loss before tax 
The following items have been charged 1n arnv1ng at profit/loss before tax 

all figures m £ m1lllon 
Fees payable to the auditor 

Statutory audit 
Audit of the Company's subs1d1anes pursuant to leg1slat1on 
Other services relating to taxation 
Other services 
Total auditor's remuneration 

Deprec1at1on of property, plant and equipment 
Owned assets before 1mpa1rment 
Owned assets 1mpa1rment 
Foreign exchange (ga1n)/loss 
Research and de"elopment expenditure - customer funded contracts 
Research and development expenditure - Group funded 

The following non-recurring items have been (cred1ted)/charged 1n arnv1ng at profit/loss before tax 

all figures m £ mlll1on 

Net restructunng (recovenes)/charges 
Pension past service gain 
Gain on disposal of property 
Contingent payments on acqu1s1t1on treated as remuneration 
Net {ga1n)/loss 1n respect of previously cap1tahsed OTR-programme bid costs 
Non-recurring operating (1ncome)/expense before amort1sat1on, deprec1at1on and 
1mpa1rment 
Impairment of property 
Total goodwill and 1ntang1ble 1mpa1rment and acqu1s1t1on amort1sat1on 
Non-recurring operating (profit)/loss 

Gain on business comb1nat1ons and divestments and disposal of investments 
Gain 1n respect of negative goodwill on acqu1s1t1ons m the penod 

Gain 1n respect of deferred consrderatron on pnor year acqu1s1t1ons 
Gain on business comb1nat1ons and divestments and disposal of investments 

Total non-recurring (1ncome)/expense before tax 

Note 

30 

15 

14 

s 
s 
s 
s 

2012 2011 

08 08 
01 01 

01 
01 01 
10 11 

28 2 33 6 
43 59 

ID 2) 03 
3311 1820 

15 2 13 0 

2012 2011 

(69 4) 28 6 
(1414) 

(9 O) 
61 

(41) 23 8 

(223 9) 58 5 
19 59 

20 3 26 3 
(201 7) 90 7 

(116) (2 1) 
(O 2) 
(04) 

(116) (2 7) 

(213 3) 88 0 

The net restructuring recovery of £69 4m (2011 expense of £28 Gm) primarily relates to the agreement with the UK MOD 1n March 2012 
1nvolv1ng a payment to Q1net1Q of £65 Om that was received after the year end 1n Apnl 2012 The agreement involves the d1scharg1ng of 
MOD from its accumulated l1ab1htres for restructuring costs incurred 1n previous years, together with MOO agreement to changes 1n its 
Special Shareholder rights, and certain other operational issues 
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5 Gain on business combinations and divestments and disposal of investments 
For the year ended 31 March 

all figures in£ m1lhon 

Gain on business divestments 

Gain on disposal of investments 

Gain 1n respect of negative goodwill on acqu1s1t1ons 

Gain m respect of deferred cons1derat1on on prior year acqu1s1t1ons 

2012 

80 
36 

116 

The ga1n on business divestments includes the disposal of Spectra Inc, a business w1th1n the Global Products sector, for cons1derat1on 
before costs of US$20 Sm and a gain on disposal of £4 7m Of the £3 6m gain on disposal of investments, £2 Sm relates to the sale of 
Q1net1Q's investment 1n Nomad Holdings L1m1ted 

2011 

21 

02 
04 
27 

The pnor year gain on business divestments relates to the disposal of S&IS, a non-core security operations and access control business 
w1th1n Q1net1Q's US Services operation, to ManTech International Corporation The total cons1derat1on net of disposal costs was £37 2m 
and resulted 1n a gain on disposal of £2 lm Add1t1onal cash receipts 1n the prior year included £1 Om 1n respect of 2010 divestments 
Total proceeds from the sale of interests 1n subs1d1ary undertakings were £38 2m 

The pnor year gain 1n respect of negative goodwill on acqu1s1t1ons 1n the period relates to the acqu1s1t1on of Sensoptics Ltd 
on 16 December 2010 

The pnor year gain 1n respect of deferred cons1derat1on on pnor year acqu1s1t1ons 1s the result of cond1t1ons for the deferred cons1derat1on 
1n respect of the Cyve1llance Inc acqu1s1t1on not being met 

6. Finance income and expense 
For the year ended 31 March 

all figures in£ m1lhon 2012 2011 

Receivable on bank deposits 13 06 
Finance lease income 09 12 
Expected return on pension scheme assets 67 6 68 6 

Finance income 69 8 704 

Amort1sat1on of recap1tal1sat1on fee 1 (O 6) (18) 
Payable on bank loans and overdrafts (16) (5 9) 
Payable on US dollar pnvate placement debt2 (46 8) (32 6) 
Finance lease expense (0 8) (1 0) 
Unwinding of discount on f1nanc1al l1ab1lit1es (18) (0 4) 
Interest on pension scheme hab1ht1es (612) (59 5) 

Finance expense (112 8) (1012) 
Net finance expense (43 0) (30 8) 
1 In 2011 the Group refinanced its existing credit fac1hty with a new five-year revolving credit facility The un-amort1sed amount of the fees previously 

capitalised in respect of the pre-existing fac1hty was wntten off on termination of that facility and charged to frnance expense 
2 The Group elected to make early repayment of US$177m of private placement debt, which will complete after the year end from surplus cash Net finance 

expense in 2012 1s affected by an accelerated interest charge of £27 4m in respect of these early repayments Net finance expense in 2011 was also 
affected by an accelerated interest charge of £8 Sm m respect of the year-end obl1gat1an to make early repayment of US$13Sm of private placement debt 
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7. Taxation 
2012 2011 

Before Before 
acqws1t1on Acqu1s1t1on acqu1s1t1on Acqms1t1on 

amortisation amort1sat1on amort1sat1on amort1sat1on 
and specific and specific and spec1f1c and spec1f1c 

non-recurring non-recurring non-recurring non-recurring 
all figures m £ m1lhon items items Total items items Total 
Analysis of charge 
Current UK tax expense 13 1 131 
Overseas corporation tax 
Current year 15 5 23 17 8 413 (11) 40 2 
AdJustment for prior year (2 3) (2 3) (08) (0 8) 

Current tax expense/(1ncome) 13 2 lS 4 28 6 40S (11) 394 
Deferred tax 73 34 8 42 1 (20 2) 09 (19 3) 
Deferred tax impact of change 1n rates 14 14 25 25 
Deferred tax 1n respect of pnor years 16 16 (10) (1 O) 
Taxation expense/(1ncome) 23 s so 2 73 7 218 (02) 216 

Factors affecting tax charge 1n year 
Principal factors reducing the Group's current 
year tax charge below the UK statutory rate 
are explained below 
Prof1t/(loss) before tax 118 3 213 3 331 6 114 6 (88 O) 26 6 
Tax on profit/(loss) before tax at 26% 
(2011 28%) 30 7 SSS 86 2 321 (24 7) 74 
Effect of 
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes, 
research and development rehef and non-
taxable items (119) (2 7) (14 6) (33 4) 22 0 (114) 
Ut1hsat1on of previously unrecognised tax 
losses of overseas subs1d1aries (0 3) (0 3) 
Current tax losses for which no deferred tax 
asset was recognrsed (4 3) (4 3) 17 5 17 5 
Deferred tax impact of change 1n rates 14 14 25 2 5 
Deferred tax 1n respect of pnor years 09 09 (10) (1 O) 
Effect of different rates 1n overseas 
JUnsd1ct1ons 67 (2 6) 41 44 25 69 
Taxation expense/(1ncome) 23 5 so 2 73 7 218 (02) 216 
Effective tax rate 199% 222% 190% 812% 

Factors affecting future tax charges 
The effective tax rate continues to be below the statutory rate 1n the UK, primarily as a result of the benefit of research and development 
rehef 1n the UK The effective tax rate 1s expected to remain below the UK statutory rate 1n the medium term, subject to any tax leg1slat1on 
changes and the geographic mix of profits 

The 2012 Budget on 21 March 2012 announced that the UK corporation tax rate will reduce to 22% by 2014 A reduction 1n the rate from 
26% to 25% Ceffect1ve from 1 Apnl 2012) was substantively enacted on 5 July 2011, and a further reduction to 24% (effective from 1 April 
2012) was substantively enacted on 30 March 2012 This will reduce the Group's future tax charge accordingly The deferred tax asset at 31 
March 2012 has been calculated based on the rate of 24% substantively enacted at the balance sheet date It has not yet been possible to 
quantify the full ant1c1pated effect of the announced further 2% rate reduction, although this will further reduce the Group's future tax 
charge and reduce the Group's deferred tax asset accordingly 

At 31 March 2012, the Group had unused tax losses of £200 Om (2011 £188 7m) potentially available for offset against future profits 
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8 Dividends 
An analysis of the d1v1dends paid and proposed 1n respect of the years ended 31March2012 and 2011 is provided below 

Pence Date paid/ 
per share fm payable 

lntenm 2012 0 90 S8 Feb 2012 
Final 2012 (proposed) 2 00 13 0 Sept 2012 
Total for the year ended 31 March 2012 2 90 18 8 

Interim 2011 
Final 2011 160 10 s Sept 2011 
Total for the year ended 31 March 2011 160 10 5 

The Directors propose a final d1v1dend of 2 OOp (2011 160p) The d1v1dend, which 1s subject to shareholder approval, will be paid 
on 7 September 2012 The ex-d1v1dend date 1s 8 August 2012 and the record date ts 10 August 2012 

9. Analysis of employee costs and numbers 
The largest component of operating expenses 1s employee costs The year-end and average monthly number of persons employed 
by the Group, 1nclurl1ng 01rectors, analvserl by business segment, were 

Vear end 31 March Monthly average 
2012 2011 2012 2011 

Number Number Number Number 

UK Services S,157 S,337 5,170 S,709 
US Services 3,940 4,686 4,349 S,02S 
Global Products 1,083 1,185 1,118 1,299 
Total 10,180 11,208 10,637 12,033 
1 Restated to reflect the transfer of the Maritime and Transportation services business from Global Products to US Services and the Force Protection 

business from Global Products to UK Services at the beginning of the 2012 fmane1al year 

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows 

all figures m £ m1ll1on 

Wages and salaries 
Social security costs 

Pension costs 

Share-based payments costs 

Employee costs before UK restructuring costs 

UK restructuring costs 

Total employee costs 

Note 

29 

2012 2011 

S619 63S 7 
415 463 
42 2 47 3 
42 33 

649 8 732 6 
33 5 

649 8 7661 

The 2011 UK restructuring costs relate to the restructuring of the UK business announced 1n May 2010 Qrnet1Q reached agreement with 
the UK MOD 1n March 2012 1nvolv1ng a payment to Q1net1Q of £65 Om that was received after the year end 1n Apnl 2012 The agreement 
involves the d1scharg1ng of MOD from its accumulated l1ab1ht1es for restructuring costs incurred 1n previous years, together with MOD 
agreement to changes 1n its Special Shareholder nghts, and certain other operational issues 

10. Directors and other senior management personnel 
The Dr rectors and other senior management personnel of the Group dunng the year to 31 March 2012 comprise the Board of Directors 
and the Q1net1Q Executive Team Payments to Directors and the Q1net1Q Executive Team are summarised below 

all figures m £ m1Jlron 

Short-term employee remuneration 1nclud1ng benefits 

Post-employment benefits 

Share-based payments costs 

Total 

2012 

68 
02 
19 
89 

2011 

64 
02 
1 7 
83 

Short-term employee remuneration and benefits include salary, bonus, and benefits Post-employment benefits relate to pension amounts 
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11 Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by d1v1d1ng the profit attnbutable to equity shareholders by the werghted average number of ordinary 
shares 1n issue during the year The weighted average number of shares used e)(cludes those shares bought by the Group and held as own 
shares (see note 28) For diluted earnrngs per share the weighted average number of shares 1n issue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all 
potentially d1\ut1ve ordinary shares ans1ng from unvested share-based awards 1nclud1ng share options Underlying basic earnings per share 
figures are presented below, 1n add1t1on to the basrc and diluted earnings per share because the Directors consider this gives a more 
relevant 1nd1cat1on of underlying business performance and reflects the adjustments to basic earnings per share for the impact of specific 
non-recurnng items, amortisation of acquired 1ntang1ble assets and tax thereon 

For the year ended 31 March 2012 2011 

Basic EPS 
Profit attributable to equity shareholders £m1ll1on 2S7 9 so 
Weighted average number of shares M1!11on 6SO s 6S4 6 
Baste EPS Pence 39 6 08 

Diluted EPS 

Profit attributable to equity shareholders £ m1lhon 2S7 9 so 
Weighted average number of shares M1lhon 6SO s 6S4 6 
Effect of dilutive secunt1es M1lhon 40 68 
Diluted number of shares M1lhon 6S4 s 6614 
Diluted EPS Pence 394 08 

Underlying basic EPS 
Profit attributable to equity shareholders £ m1lhon 2S7 9 so 
(Prof1t)/loss after tax 1n respect of acqu1s1t1on amort1sat1on and spec1f1c non-
recurring items £ m1ll1on (1631) 87 8 
Underlying profit after taxation £ m1lhon 948 92 8 
Weighted average number of shares M1ll1on 6SO s 6S4 6 
Underlying basic EPS Pence 14 6 14 2 

Underlying diluted EPS 
Profit attributable to equity shareholders £ m11l1on 2S7 9 so 
(Prof1t)/loss after tax 1n respect of acqu1s1t1on amort1sat1on and specific 
non-recurnng items £ m1ll1on (1631) 87 8 
Underlyrng profit after taxation £m1ll1on 94 8 92 8 
Weighted average number of shares M1ll1on 6SO s 6S4 6 
Effect of d1lut1ve securities M1ll1on 40 68 
Diluted number of shares M1ll1on 6S4 s 6614 
Underlying diluted EPS Pence 14 5 14 0 
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12. Business combinations 
Acqu1s1t1on of subs1d1anes for the year ended 31 March 2012 
The Group has not entered into any business comb1nat1ons for the year ended 31 March 2012 Dunng the year the Group paid £0 9m 1n 
deferred cons1derat1on 1n respect of the pnor year Sensopt1cs limited acqu1s1t1on 

Acqu1s1t1on of subs1d1anes for the year ended 31 March 2011 
On 16 December 2010, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Sensopt1cs limited from its founder management team 
If the acqu1s1t1on had been completed on the first day of the financial year, Group revenue for the year ended 31 March 2011 would have 
been £1, 705 Om and Group profit before tax would have been £27 3m 

Acqu1s1t1ons 1n the year to 31 March 2011 

Acqu1s1t1on Acquis1t1on date 

Sensopt1cs limited 16 December 2010 

Percentage 
share acquired 

" 100% 

cash 
cons1derat1on 

£m1l!Jon 

28 

Contribution post-acqu1s1t1on 
Revenue Operating profit 
£m1lhon £m1lllon 

07 02 

Set out below are the allocations of purchase cons1derat1on, assets and l1ab1ht1es of the acqurs1t1on made 1n the year and the adjustments 
required to the book values of the assets and hab1ht1es 1n order to present the net assets of these businesses at fair value and 1n 
accordance with Group accounting pohetes 

Sensopt1cs L1m1ted 
Acqu1s1t1on 1n the year to 31 March 2011 

all figures in£ mllhon 

Net assets acquired 

Goodwill 

Cons1derat1on sat1sf1ed by 

Cash 

Deferred cons1derat1on 

Total consideration 

Book 
value 

10 

Fair value 
adjustment 

29 

Fair value at 
acquis1t1on 

39 
(0 2) 

37 

28 
09 
37 

Sensopt1cs Limited 1s a des1gner of fibre-optic sensing hardware It was acquired to combine its technology with Q1net1Q's OptaSense• 
signal processing capab1ht1es The OptaSense• solution provrdes cost-effective round-the-dock d1stnbuted acoustic momtonng over 
long distances 

The 1ntang1ble assets acquired as part of the business comb1nat1on relate to the intellectual property embodied w1th1n Sensoptlcs Llm1ted's 
ex1st1ng products and products under development 

Total expected payments are 1n excess of the fair value of net assets acquired Certain potential payments are, however, linked to 
cont1nu1ng employment assumptions for the retained founder management team, which would be forfeited 1n full if they were to leave 
w1th1n the stipulated penod IFRS 3 (revised) requires this type of arrangement to be accounted for as remuneration expense as opposed 
to part of the consideration As a result, the acqu1s1tton resulted 1n negative goodwill of £0 2m, which was recognised as a gain 1n the 
consolidated income statement w1th1n 'ga1n/(loss) on business comb1nat1ons and divestments and disposal of rnvestments' The discounted 
fair value of the deferred contingent purchase pnce payments treated as remuneration was £6 lm which was charged to the consohdated 
income statement w1th1n operating costs (significant non-recurring items) Acqu1s1t1on-related costs, included 1n other operating costs 
excluding depreciation and amort1sat1on, amount to £0 2m 

QlnetiQ Group pie Amual Report and Accounts 20U 75 



F1nanc1al statements 
Notes to the financial statements continued 

13. Goodwill 
all figures m f m1ll1on 2012 2011 

Cost 
At 1 Apnl 566 2 628 0 
Disposals (3 0) (32 O) 
Foreign exchange 10 (29 8) 
At 31 March 564 2 566 2 

lmpa.rment 

At 1 April (451) (SO 2) 
Disposals 03 35 
Foreign exchange (0 1) 16 
At 31 March (44 9) (451) 
Net book value at 31 March 519 3 5211 

Goodwill at 31 March 2012 was allocated across various CGUs, with s1gn1ficant CGUs 1n UK Services (two), Global Products (two) and 
US Services (one) In the prior year two CG Us 1n the US Services business were amalgamated into one to reflect the way 1n which these 
businesses are managed and operated 

Goodw1ll 1s attributable to the excess of cons1derat1on over the fair value of net assets acquired and includes expected synergies, future 
growth prospects and employee knowledge, expertise and security clearances The Group tests goodw1ll 1mpa1rment for each CGU 
annually, or more frequently 1f there are 1nd1cat1ons that goodwill might be 1mparred 

Key assumptions 
The value-in-use calculations use discounted future cash flows based on financial plans approved by the Board covering a two-year period 
Cash flows for periods beyond this period are extrapolated based on the second year of the two-year plan, with a terminal growth-rate 
assumption apphed 

Terminal growth rates 
The spec1f1c plans for each of the CG Us have been extrapolated using a terminal growth rate of 2 0%-3 0% (2011 2 0%-3 0%) Growth rates 
are based on management's estimates which take into cons1derat1on the long-term nature of the industry 1n which the CGUs operate and 
external forecasts as to the likely growth of the industry 1n the longer term 

Discount rates 
The Group's weighted average cost of capital (WACC) was used as a basis 1n determ1mng the discount rate to be applied adjusted for risks 
spec1f1c to the market charactenst1cs of CG Us as appropriate on a pre-tax basis The pre-tax discount rates applied for the two UK Services 
CGUs were 10 5% and 10 6%, for the US Services CGU 1t was 9 7%, and for the Global Products CGUs were 9 5% and 9 7% 

S1gn1ficant CGUs 
Sens1t1v1ty analysis shows that both the discount rate and growth rate assumptions are key variables that have an impact on the outcome 
of the recoverable amount 

W1th1n UK Services the 1nd1v1dual CGUs have s1gn1ficant headroom An increase 1n the WACC rate or a decrease 1n the terminal growth rate 
by 1% would not cause the net operating assets to exceed their recoverable amount The carrying value of goodwill for the UK Services 
CG Us as at 31 March was £27 4m and £2 Sm respectively 

The US Services CGU has headroom, with current assumptions, of £84 4m If the discount rate assumption were increased by 1% the CGU 
would require an 1mpa1rment of £28 Sm Sens1t1v1ty analysis shows that a decrease or increase of 1% 1n the terminal growth rate could 
result 1n an 1mpa1rment of £24 4m or headroom of £265 Gm The carrying value of goodwill for this CGU as at 31 March was £370 7m 

The Technology Solutions CGU 1n the US has s1gn1ficant headroom An increase 1n either the WACC rate or a 1% decrease 1n the terminal 
growth rate would not cause the net operating assets to exceed their recoverable amount The carrying value of goodwill for this CGU as 
at 31 March was £112 Sm 

The Technology Solutions CGU 1n the UK has headroom, under current assumptions, of £18 lm If the discount rate were to increase 
by 1%, or the terminal growth rate decrease by 1%, this would not cause the net operating assets to exceed their recoverable amount 
The carrying value of goodw1II for this CGU as at 31 March was £5 Gm 

The Directors have not 1dent1fied any other hkely changes 1n other s1gn1fic.ant assumptions between 31 March 2012 and the signing of the 
financial statements that would cause the carrying value of the recognised goodwill to exceed its recoverable amount 
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14 Intangible assets 
Year ended 31 March 2012 

Acquired 1ntang1ble assets Other 
Customer Intellectual Brand Development mtang1ble 

all figures m £ m1lhon relationships property names costs assets Total 

Cost 

At 1 Apnl 2011 147 3 55 3 13 9 13 9 36 8 267 2 
Add1t1ons - internally developed 03 03 
Add1t1ons - purchased 04 04 
Disposals (04) (O 4) 
Disposals - recognised on divestments (4 2) (4 2) 
Transfers 0 2 (O 2) 
Foreign exchange 04 (O 1) (O 1) 02 
At 31 March 2012 147 7 SS 2 96 14 4 36 6 263 s 

Amortisation and 1mpa1rment 

At 1 Apnl 2011 79 5 40 9 6 1 10 8 26 7 164 0 
Amortrsat1on charge for year 12 9 57 17 23 42 26 8 
Impairments 2 5 2 5 
Disposals (0 1) (0 1) 
Disposals - recognised on divestments (18) (18) 
Transfers 02 (0 2) 
Forergn exchange 04 (O 1) 03 
At 31 March 2012 92 8 46 s 60 13 3 331 191 7 
Net book value at 31 March 2012 S4 9 87 36 11 3S 718 

Impairment of other 1ntang1ble assets of £2 Sm was incurred 1n the UK Services business segment and relates to certain software assets no 
longer being utilised 

Year ended 31 March 2011 

Acquired 1ntang1ble assets Other 
Customer Intellectual Brand Development intangible 

all frgures m £ m1l11on relat1onshrps property names costs assets Total 

Cost 

At 1 Apnl 2010 160 6 53 5 14 7 134 36 1 278 3 
Add1t1ons - internally developed 03 03 
Add1t1ons - purchased 2 1 2 1 
Add1t1ons - recognised on acqu1s1t1ons 40 40 
Disposals (12) (1 2) 
Disposals - recognised on divestments (6 2) (6 2) 
Transfers 02 01 03 
Foreign exchange (71) (2 2) (08) (0 3) (10 4) 
At 31 March 2011 147 3 SS 3 13 9 13 9 36 8 267 2 

Amortisation and impairment 

At 1 Apnl 2010 705 34 5 42 73 201 136 6 
Amort1sat1on charge for year 16 2 79 22 2 2 93 37 8 
Disposals (12) (12) 
Disposals - recognised on divestments (40) (40) 
Transfers 13 (12) 01 
Foreign exchange (3 2) (15) (03) (0 3) (5 3) 
At 31 March 2011 79 s 40 9 61 10 8 26 7 1640 
Net book value at 31 March 2011 67 8 144 78 31 101 103 2 
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15 Property, plant and equipment 
Year ended 31 March 2012 

Plant, Computers 
Land and machinery and office Assets under 

all figures m £ m1ll1on bu1ld1ngs and vehicles equipment construction Total 
Cost 
At 1 Apnl 2011 30S 8 lSO 1 48 2 131 S17 2 
Add1t1ons OS 2 8 10 17 7 22 0 
Disposals (04) (3 9) (31) (2 O) (9 4) 
Disposals - recognised on divestments (O 1) (10) (0 4) (1 S) 
Transfers 20 S6 28 (10 4) 
Foreign exchange 01 01 
At 31 March 2012 307 8 153 6 48 6 18 4 528 4 

Deprec1at1on 

At 1 Apnl 2011 110 3 112 2 33 8 2S6 3 
Charge for year 10 7 12 0 SS 28 2 
Impairment 19 08 1 6 43 
Disposals (04) (3 S) (2 O) (S9) 
Disposals - recognised on divestments (0 1) (0 6) (O 4) (11) 
Transfers (0 8) 04 04 
At 31 March 2012 1216 1213 38 9 2818 
Net book value at 31 March 2012 186 2 32 3 97 184 246 6 

Impairment of land and buildings of £1 9m, expensed 1n the consohdated income statement as a specific non-recurring item, relates to 
vacant owned properties where there have been no external tenants following vacancies ans1ng 1n the year Plant, machinery and vehicles 
1mpa1rment of £0 Sm and computer equipment impairment of £1 Gm relate to the impairment of assets, 1n the UK Services business 
segment, that are no longer generating revenue 

Year ended 31 March 2011 
Plant, Computers 

Land and machinery and office Assets under 
all figures m £million buildings and vehicles equipment constructmn Total 
Cost 
At 1 Apnl 2010 304 6 151 7 58 8 12 2 527 3 
Add1t1ons 10 28 33 12 7 19 8 
Disposals (19) (7 8) (111) (O 2) (21 O) 
Transfers 36 96 (19) (11 6) (0 3) 
Transfer to assets held for sale (O 9) (SS) (6 4) 
Foreign exchange (06) (O 7) (0 9) (2 2) 
At 31 March 2011 305 8 1501 48 2 13 1 517 2 

Deprec1at1on 

At 1 Apnl 2010 9S 6 107 2 39 0 2418 
Charge for year 118 lS 3 6S 33 6 
Impairment 58 12 70 
Impairment reversal (11) (11) 
Disposals (1 S) (71) (10 9) (19 S) 
Transfers 01 (0 2) (O 1) 
Transfer to assets held for sale (4 O) (40) 
Foreign exchange (04) (04) (O 6) (14) 
At 31 March 2011 110 3 112.2 33 8 256 3 
Net book value at 31 March 2011 195 s 37 9 14 4 131 2609 

Under the terms of the Business Transfer Agreement with the MOD, certain restnct1ons have been placed on freehold land and buildings, 
and certain plant and machinery related to them These restrictions are detailed in note 31 
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16 Non-current investments 
As at 31 March 

2012 2011 
Group net Group net 

Jomt venture share of iomt Jomt venture share of J01nt 
and associates ventures and and associates ventures and 

all figures m £ million financial results associates financial results associates 
Non·current assets 17 05 15 05 
Current assets 87 28 78 25 

104 33 93 30 
Current l1ab1ht1es (5 2) (2 0) (4 7) (18) 
Non·current 11ab1l1t1es (10) (0 3) (04) (01) 

(6 2) (2 3) (5 1) (19) 
Net assets of J01nt ventures and associates 42 10 42 11 
Other non·current investments 48 48 
Total 42 58 42 59 

There were no material transactions with 101nt ventures and associates 

17 Deferred tax 
Deferred tax assets and hab1l1t1es are offset only where there 1s a legally enforceable nght to do so and there 1s an 1ntent1on to settle 
the balances net 

Movements 1n the deferred tax assets and hab1ht1es are shown below 

Year ended 31 March 2012 
Deferred tax asset 

all figures m £ mttl1on 

At 1 Apnl 2011 
Created through income statement 
Created through equity 
Pnor·year ad1ustment 
Foreign exchange 
Transfer to current tax 
Deferred tax impact of change 1n rates 
Gross deferred tax asset at 31 March 2012 
Less l1ab1hty available for offset 

Net deferred tax asset at 31 March 2012 

Deferred tax hab1hty 
all figures m £ m1ll1on 
At 1 Apnl 2011 
Created through the income statement 
Foreign exchange 
Transfer to current tax 

Gross deferred tax hab1hty at 31 March 2012 
Less asset available for offset 

Net deferred tax habdtty at 31 March 2012 

Pension 
llabll1ty 

32 4 
(48 7) 

30 7 

(11) 

13 3 

Accelerated 
capital 

allowances Hedging 

06 01 
32 (O 2) 

01 
(0 5) 

01 
(0 3) 
31 

Short·term 
t1mmg 

differences 
37 6 

(11) 
01 

(2 4) 

34 2 

Amort1sat1on 

(36 9) 

36 
(0 1) 
(0 2) 

(33 6) 

Total 
70 7 

(45 7) 

308 
(16) 
01 

(2 3) 

(14) 

506 
(33 6) 

17 0 

Total 

(36 9) 
36 

(01) 
(0 2) 

(33 6) 

336 

At the balance sheet date the Group had unused tax losses of £200 Om (2011 £188 7m) potentially available for offset against future 
profits No deferred tax asset has been recognised 1n respect of th rs amount because of uncertainty over the t1m1ng of its ut1l1sat1on 
These losses can be earned forward 1ndefin1tely 
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17. Deferred tax continued 
Year ended 31 March 2011 
Deferred tax asset 

all figures in£ m1lhon 

At 1 Apnl 2010 
Created through income statement 

Created through equity 

Pnor-year adjustment 

Foreign exchange 

Transfer to current tax 

Reclass1f1cat1on from deferred tax l1ab1l1ty 

Deferred tax impact of change 1n rates 

Gross deferred tax asset at 31 March 2011 
Less hab1hty available for offset 

Net deferred tax asset at 31 March 2011 

Deferred tax hab1llty 

all figures m £ m1ll1on 

At 1 Apnl 2010 
Acqu1s1t1on 

Created through the income statement 

Pnor-year ad1ustment 
Foreign exchange 

Deferred tax impact of change 1n rates 

Transfer to deferred tax asset 

Gross deferred tax hab1hty at 31 March 2011 
less asset available for offset 

Net deferred tax hab1hty at 31 March 2011 

18. Inventories 
As at 31 March 
all figures m £ m1l11on 

Raw materials 
Work 1n progress 

F1n1shed goods 

19. Current asset investments 
As at 31 March 
all figures m £ m1lhon 

Available for sale investment 

Accelerated 
Pension capital 
liabihty allowances 

412 
(7 6) 

13 

06 
(2 5) 

324 06 

Hedging 

37 
12 

(4 8) 

01 

Accelerated 
capital 

allowances 

(14 7) 

11 o 
(1 7) 

01 
(01) 
(06) 

Short-term 
timing 

differences 

35 4 
45 

(0 8) 
(19) 

04 

37 6 

Amort1sat1on 

(45 8) 
(11) 
42 

35 
22 
01 

(36 9) 

2012 

20 2 
12 

98 
312 

2012 

11 

Total 

80 3 
(19) 
(3 5) 
(08) 
(19) 

04 
06 

(2 5) 

707 
(36 9) 

33 8 

Total 

(60 5) 
(11) 
212 

18 
2 3 

(0 6) 

(36 9) 
36 9 

2011 

25 6 
28 

17 0 
45 4 

2011 

23 

At 31 March 2012 the Group held a 4 9% shareholding 1n pS1v1da L1m1ted (31 March 2011 4 9%), a company hsted on NASDAQ and the 
Australian and Frankfurt Stock Exchanges The investment 1s held at fair value of £1 lm (2011 £2 3m) using the closing share pnce at 
31 March 2012 of AU5$194 per share (31 March 2011 AU5$4 00 per share) 
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20 Trade and other receivables 
As at 31 March 
all figures m £ m1lhon 2012 2011 

Trade receivables 164 5 189 8 
Amounts recoverable under contracts 1416 152 4 
Other receivables 82 9 315 
Prepayments 15 8 15 8 

404 8 389 5 

In determ1n1ng the recoverab1hty of trade receivables, the Group considers any changes 1n the credit quality of the trade receivable from 
the date credit was granted to the reporting date Credit nsk 1s l1m1ted as a result of the high percentage of revenue derived from UK 
and US defence and other government agencies Accordingly, the Directors beheve that no credit provision 1n excess of the allowance for 
doubtful debts 1s required As at 31 March 2012 the Group earned a prov1s1on for doubtful debts of £4 Om (2011 £5 Sm) Other receivables 
increased s1gn1ficantly from 2011 due to 1nclus1on of a £78m receivable from MOD (gross of VAT) 1n respect of the recovery of prior year 
restructuring costs 

Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables 
all fi ures m £ m1lhon 
Up to three months 
Over three months 

Movements on the doubtful debt provision 
all figures m £ m1ll1on 
At 1 April 
Created 
Released 

Utilised 
At 31 March 

2012 

36 5 
41 

40 6 

2012 

58 
37 

(4 2) 
(13) 
40 

2011 

501 
24 

52 5 

2011 

88 
20 

(41) 
(0 9) 

58 

The maximum exposure to credit nsk 1n relation to trade receivables at the reporting date 1s the fair value of trade receivables The Group 
does not hold any collateral as secunty 

21. Assets classified as held for sale 
As at 31 March 
all figures m £ mtlhon 
Property, plant and equipment 
Total assets held for sale 

Vanous properties 1n the UK that are surplus to the Group's requirements are being marketed for sale 

22. Trade and other payables 
As at 31 March 
all figures m £ m1ll1on 

Trade payables 
Other tax and social secunty 
Other payables 

Accruals and deferred income 
Total current trade and other payables 

Payments received on account 
Other payables 
Total non-current trade and other payables 
Total trade and other payables 

2012 2011 

5 1 75 
51 75 

2012 2011 

38 5 37 5 
48 2 34 6 
17 7 24 5 

394 3 369 0 
498 7 465 6 

20 3 23 1 
03 07 

206 23 8 
519 3 489 4 
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Notes to the f1nanc1a1 statements continued 

23. Provisions 
Year ended 31 March 2012 
all figures m f m1l11on 

At 1 Aprrl 2011 
Created 1n year 

Released 1n year 

Unwind of discount 

Ut1hsed 1n year 

At 31 March 2012 

Current l1ab1l1ty 

Non-current l1ab1hty 

At 31 March 2012 

Year ended 31 March 2011 
all figures m f million 

At 1 Aprrl 2010 
Created 1n year 

Released 1n year 

Unwind of discount 

Reclass1ficat1on to other balance sheet accounts 

Utilised 1n year 

At 31 March 2011 

Current l1ab11Lty 

Non-current l1ab1l1ty 

At 31 March 2011 

Restructunng 

10 o 

(10) 

(8 9) 

01 

01 

01 

Restructuring 

96 
35 5 
(3 3) 

(318) 

100 

10 o 

100 
1 

Other provisions comprise environmental, property and other hab1l1ttes and are expected to be ut1hsed within the next five years 
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Other1 Total 

23 o 33 o 
08 08 

(3 5) (4 5) 

10 10 
(4 8) (13 7) 

16 5 16 6 

33 34 
13 2 13 2 

16 5 16 6 

Other1 Total 

14 4 24 0 
115 47 o 
(2 2) (5 S) 

02 02 
11 11 

(2 0) (33 8) 

23 0 33 0 

10 4 20 4 
12 6 12 6 
23 0 33 0 



24. Net debt 
As at 31 March 2012 

all figures m £ m1lhon 

Current finanaal assets/(hab1ht1es} 

US$ pnvate placement notes-5 44% 
USS pnvate placement notes - 7 13% 

US$ pnvate placement notes - 7 62% 

Bank overdraft 
Deferred financing costs 

Bank borrowings 

Denvat1ve f1nanc1al instruments 
Finance lease debtor/(cred1tor) 

Total current financial assets/(11ab1l1t1es) 

Non·current assets/(l1ab1l1t1es) 
US$ pnvate placement notes - 7 13% 
USS pnvate placement notes - 5 50% 

USS pnvate placement notes - 7 62% 
Deferred financing costs 

Bank borrowings 
Denvat1ve f1nanc1al instruments 
Finance lease debtor/(cred1tor) 

Total non-current financial assets/(ltab1ht1es) 

Cash 
Cash equivalents 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

Total net debt as defined by the Group 

Assets 

01 
2 3 

24 

01 
68 

69 
46 2 
716 

117 8 

2012 
L1ab1ht1es 

(15 9) 

(67 3) 

06 
(82 6) 

(01) 
(2 2) 

(84 9) 

(26 6) 
(30 4) 

(102 0) 
10 

(158 0) 

(6 4) 

(164 4) 

Corporate governance 

Net 

(15 9) 
(67 3) 

06 
(82 6) 

01 

(82 5) 

(26 6) 
(30 4) 

(102 O) 
10 

(158 0) 
01 
04 

(157 5) 
46 2 
71 6 

117 8 

(122 2) 

Assets 

30 

30 

82 
82 

58 3 
44 2 

102 5 

Finanaal statements 

2011 
Llab1lit1es Net 

(94 3) (94 3) 

(0 3) (0 3) 
06 06 

(94 0) (94 0) 
(04) (0 4) 
(2 8) 02 

(97 2) (94 2) 

(39 6) (39 6) 
(78 9) (789) 

(152 7) (152 7) 
17 17 

(269 5) (269 5) 

(7 9) 03 
(277 4) (269 2) 

58 3 
44 2 

102 5 

(260 9) 

At 31 March 2012 £5 2m (31 March 2011 £4 Sm) of cash was held by the Group's captive insurance subsidiary 1ncludrng £0 2m 
(2011 £0 3m) which was restricted 1n its use 

AU USS private placement notes have been issued as fixed-rate bonds and have not been converted to floating-rate Further analysis 
of the terms and maturity dates for financial hab1ht1es are set out 1n note 26 In May 2011 the Group re pa rd the US$135m private 
placement originally maturing December 2013 In 2012 the Group elected to make early repayment of USS177m of private placement 
debt, which will complete after the year end 

Reconc1hat1on of net cash flow to movement 1n net debt 
all fi ures in£ m1ll1on 2012 2011 

Increase rn cash 1n the year 15 2 42 9 

Repayment of bank loans 1441 
Proceeds from bank borrowings (49) 

Repayment of USS private placement notes 133 6 
Payment of bank loan arrangement fees 24 

Settlement of forward contracts 16 
Capital element of finance lease payments 28 28 
Capital element of finance lease receipts (3 O) (30) 

Change 1n net debt resulting from cash flows 150 2 1843 
Amortisation of deferred financing costs (0 6) (1 7) 

Finance lease receivables 09 12 
Finance lease payables (0 8) (1 O) 
Foreign exchange and other non-cash movements (11 0) 13 7 

Movement 1n net debt 1n year 138 7 196 5 

Net debt at 31 March 2011 (260 9) (457 4) 

Net debt at 31 March 2012 (122.2) (260 9) 
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Notes to the f1nanc1al statements continued 

24. Net debt continued 
Finance leases 
Group as a lessor 
The m1n1mum lease receivables under finance leases fall as follows 

Present value of minimum 
Minimum lease payments 

all figures m £ million 
Amounts receivable under finance leases 
W1th1n one year 
In the second to fifth years 1nclus1ve 

less unearned finance income 
Present value of m1n1mum lease payments 

2012 

30 
75 

10 5 
(14) 

91 

The Group leases out certa1n bu1ld1ngs under finance leases over a 12-year term that expires m 2015 

Group as a lessee 
The m1n1mum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows 

2011 

30 
10 5 
13 5 
(2 3) 
112 

lease payments 
2012 2011 

23 30 
68 82 
91 112 

91 112 

Present value of minimum 

all figures 1n £ m1lhon 

Amounts payable under finance leases 
W1th1n one year 
In the second to fifth years 1nclus1ve 

Less future finance charges 

Present value of m1n1mum lease payments 

Class\fied as foHows 
F1nanc1al l1ab1l1ty- current 
F1nanc1al l1ab1l1ty - non-current 

M1mmum lease payments 
2012 2011 

28 28 
71 99 
99 12 7 

(1 2) (2 0) 

87 10 7 

lease payments 
2012 2011 

22 28 
64 79 
86 107 

86 10 7 

22 28 
64 79 
86 10 7 

The Group ut1l1ses certain bu1ld1ngs under finance leases Average lease terms are typically between two and ten years (31 March 2011 
between two and ten years) 

25. Operating leases 
Group as a lessor 
The Group receives rental income on certain properties The Group had contracted with tenants for the following future m1n1mum 
lease payments 

all figures m £ milhon 
W1th1n one year 
In the second to fifth years 1nclus1ve 
Greater than five years 

Group as a lessee 
alt figures m £ m1llton 

lease and sub-lease income statement expense - m1mmum lease payments 

The Group had the following total future m1n1mum lease payment commitments 

all figures m £ m1lhon 

W1th1n one year 
In the second to fifth years inclusive 
Greater than five years 

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group on certain office property and plant 
average of three to ten years 
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2012 

71 

23 4 
16 

321 

2012 

221 

2012 

18 9 
67 8 
22 5 

109 2 

Leases are negotiated for an 

2011 

65 
24 0 
01 

30 6 

2011 

22 5 

2011 

15 2 
68 2 
32 2 

115 6 
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26. Financial risk management 
The Group's 1nternat1onal operations and debt f1nanc1ng expose 1t to financial risks that include the effects of changes 1n foreign exchange 
rates, interest rates, credit risks and hqu1d1ty risks 

Treasury and risk management pohc1es, which are set by the Board, specify gu1dehnes on financial risks and the use of f1nanc1al instruments 
to manage nsk The instruments and techniques used to manage exposures include foreign currency derivatives and interest rate 
denvat1ves Group treasury monitors financial nsks and compliance with risk management pol1c1es 

A) Fair values of financial instruments 
The fair value hierarchy 1s as follows 

level 1- quoted prices (unad1usted) tn active markets for 1dent1cal assets or hab1ht1es, 

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices 1nclud1ng those w1th1n level 1 that are observable for the asset or hab1hty, either directly 
(as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices), and 

level 3- Inputs for the assets or hab1hty that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 

The following table presents the Group's assets and hab1ht1es that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2012 

all figures m £ m11l1on Note Level 1 Level 2 
Assets 
Current other investments 19 11 
Current derivative f1nanc1al rnstruments 24 01 
Non-current other 1nvestments 16 
Non-current derivative f1nanc1al instruments 24 0 1 

l1ab1ht1es 
Current derivative financial instruments 24 (O 1) 

Total 11 01 

level 3 

48 

48 

Total 

11 
01 
48 
01 

(01) 

60 

For cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and bank and current borrowings, the fair value of the financial instruments 
approximate to their carrying value as a result of the short maturity periods of these financial instruments For trade and other receivables, 
allowances are made w1th1n the carrying value for credit risk For other financial instruments, the fair value 1s based on market value, 
where available Where market values are not available, the fair values have been calculated by d1scount1ng cash flows to net present value 
using prevailing market-based interest rates translated at the year-end rates, except for unlisted fixed asset investments where fair value 
equals carrying value 
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Notes to the financial statements continued 

26. Financial risk management continued 
All frnanc1al assets and hab1ht1es have a fair value that 1s 1dent1cal to book value at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011 except where 
noted below 

As at 31 March 2012 

Fmanaal 
1Jab1lit1es at Derivatives Total Total 

Available Loans and amortised used as carrying fair 
all figures m f mlllron Note for sale receivables cost hedges value value 

F1nanc1al assets 

Non-current 
Finance leases 24 68 68 72 
Derivative f1nanc1al instruments 01 01 01 
Other investments 16 48 48 48 
Current 

Finance leases 24 2 3 23 30 
Trade and other receivables 20 404 8 404 8 404 8 
Derivative f1nanc1al instruments 01 01 01 
Current asset investments 19 11 11 11 
Cash and cash equivalents 24 117 8 117 8 117 8 

59 531 7 02 537 8 538 9 

F1nanc1al l1ab1l1t1es 

Non-current 

Trade and other payables 22 (20 6) (20 6) (206) 
Bank and other borrowings 24 (158 0) (158 0) (185 7) 
Finance leases 24 (64) (64) (68) 
Current 

Trade and other payables 22 (498 7) (498 7) (4987) 
Denvat1ve f1nanc1al instruments 24 (0 1) (O 1) (01) 
Finance leases 24 (2 2) (2 2) (2 8) 
Bank overdraft, finance cost and 
private placement 24 (82 6) (82 6) (82 6) 

(768 S) (01) (768 6) (797 3) 
Total 59 531 7 (768 5) 01 (2308)' (258 4) 
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As at 31 March 2011 

Fmanc1al 
hab11it1es at Derivatives Total Total 

Available Loans and amortised used as carry mg fair 
all figures m £ mlll1on Note for sale receivables cost hedges value value 

F1nanc1al assets 
Non-current 

Finance leases 24 82 82 92 
Equity accounted investments 16 11 11 11 

Other investments 16 48 48 48 
Current 

Finance leases 24 30 30 30 
Trade and other receivables 20 389 5 389 5 389 5 
Current asset investments 19 23 2 3 23 
Cash and cash equivalents 24 102 5 102 5 102 5 

82 503 2 5114 512 4 

Financial l1ab1l1t1es 

Non-current 
Trade and other payables 22 (238) (23 8) (23 8) 
Bank and other borrowings 24 (269 5) (269 5) (298 5) 
Finance leases 24 (7 9) (7 9) (8 6) 
Current 
Trade and other payables 22 (465 6) (465 6) (465 6) 
Derivative financial instruments 24 (0 4) (04) (04) 
Finance leases 24 (2 8) (2 8) (2 8) 
Bank overdraft, finance cost and 
private placement 24 (940) (94 O) (94 0) 

(863 6) (O 4) (864 O) (893 7) 
Total 82 503 2 (863 6) (0 4) (352 6) (3813) 

QJnedQ Group pk Annual Report and Accounts 2012 fI1 



F1nanc1al statements 
Notes to the financial statements continued 

26. Financial risk management continued 
B) Interest rate risk 
The Group operates an interest rate pohcy designed to opt1m1se interest costs and to reduce volat1hty 1n reported earnings The Group's 
current pohcy 1s to require rates to be fixed for 30-80% of the level of borrowings, which 1s achieved pnmanly through fixed-rate 
borrowings, and through the use of interest rate swaps Where there are s1gn1f1cant changes 1n the level and/or structure of debt, policy 
permits borrowings to be 100% fixed, with regular Board reviews of the appropriateness of this fixed percentage At 31 March 2012 100% 
(2011 99%) of the Group's borrowings were at fixed rates with no adjustment for interest rate swaps 

F1nanc1al assets/(habd1t1es) 
As at 31 March 2012 

all figures m £ m1ll1on 

Sterling 

US dollar 

Euro 

Australian dollar 

Other 

As at 31 March 2011 

all figures m £million 

Sterling 

US dollar 
Euro 

Australian dollar 

Other 

Fixed or 
capped 

91 

91 

Fixed or 
capped 

112 

112 

Fmanc1al asset 

Floatmg 

95 2 
14 9 
02 

55 
20 

117 8 

F1nanc1al asset 

Float mg 

808 

15 1 
1 7 
47 
02 

102 5 

Non-mterest 
bearing 

49 

11 

60 

Non mterest 
bearing 

48 

23 

7.1 

Fixed or 
capped 

(8 6) 
(242 2) 

(2508) 

Fixed or 
capped 

(10 7) 
(365 5) 

(376 2) 

Fmanc1al hab1l1ty 

Floatmg 

Financial llab1l1ty 

Floating 

(O 3) 

(0 3) 

Non-mterest 
bearing 

(O 1) 

(O 1) 

Non-interest 
bearing 

(04) 

(O 4) 

Floating-rate financial assets attract interest based on the relevant national LIBID equivalent Floating-rate financial l1ab1ht1es bear interest 
at the relevant national LIBOR equivalent Trade and other receivables/payables and deferred finance costs are excluded from this analysts 

For the fixed or capped-rate financial assets and hab1l1t1es, the average interest rates (1nclud1ng the relevant marginal cost of borrowing) 
and the average penod for which the rates are fixed are 

2012 2011 
Weighted Weighted 

Fixed or average Weighted Fixed or average Weighted 
capped interest rate average years capped interest rate average years 

fm " to maturity fm " to maturity 
F1nanc1al assets 

Sterling 91 13 4 35 11 2 134 
Financial liab1ht1es 

Sterling (8 6) 121 35 (107) 121 
US dollar (242 2) 72 43 (365 5) 66 
Total financial hab1ht1es (2508) 67 43 (376 2) 67 

Sterling assets and hab1ht1es consist pnmanly of finance leases with the weighted average interest rate reflecting the internal rate 
of return of those leases 

Interest rate nsk management 
The Group pnvate placement borrowings are fixed-rate, while the revolvrng credit facility 1s floating-rate and undrawn as at 31 March 
2012 The notional pnnc1pal amount of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 March 2012 was £ml 
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C) Currency risk 
Transactional currency exposure 
The Group 1s exposed to foreign currency risks arising from sales or purchases by businesses 1n currencies other than their functional 
currency It 1s Group policy that when such a sale or purchase 1s certain, the net foreign exchange exposure ts hedged using forward 
foreign exchange contracts Hedge accounting documentation and effectiveness testing are undertaken for all the Group's transactional 
hedge contracts 

The table below shows the Group's currency exposures, being exposures on currency transactions that give nse to net currency gains 
and losses recognised 1n the income statement Such exposures comprise the monetary assets and hab1htres of the Group that are not 
denominated 1n the functional currency of the operating company involved 

Functional currency of the operating company 

all figures in£ m1lhons 
31 March 2012 - sterling 
31 March 2011- sterling 

US$ 

13 4 
15 5 

Net foreign currency monetary assets/(liab1ht1es) 
Euro AUS$ Other 
17 66 22 

(2 7) 6 4 11 

Total 

23 9 
20 3 

The amounts shown 1n the table take into account the effect of the forward contracts entered into to manage these currency exposures 

The Group enters into forward foreign currency contracts to hedge the currency exposures that arise on sales and purchases denominated 
1n foreign currencies, as the transaction occurs The pnnctpal contract amounts of the outstanding forward currency contracts as at 
31 March 2012 against sterling are net US Dollars sold £6 Sm (US$10 4m) and net Euros sold £10 Om (€12m) 

Translational currency exposure 
The Group has s1gnif1cant investments 1n overseas operations, particularly 1n the United States As a result, the sterling value of the Group's 
balance sheet can be s1gn1f1cantly affected by movement 1n exchange rates The Group seeks to mrtrgate the effect of these translational 
exposures by matching the net investment tn overseas operations with borrowings denominated 1n the1rfunct1onal currencies unless the 
cost of such hedging act1v1ty 1s uneconomic This 1s achieved by borrowing 1n the local currency or, 1n some cases, indirectly through the use 
of forward foreign exchange contracts 

D) Financial credit risk 
The Group 1s exposed to credit-related losses 1n the event of non-performance by counterpart1es to f1nanc1al instruments, but does not 
currently expect any counterpart1es to fa1I to meet their obligations Credit risk 1s m1t1gated by Board-approved pohcy of only selecting 
counterpart1es with a strong investment grade long-term credit rating for cash deposits, normally at least AA- or equivalent In the normal 
course of business, the Group operates notional cash poohng systems, where a legal right of set-off applies 

The maximum credit-risk exposure 1n the event of other parties fa1hng to perform their obligations under f1nanc1al assets, excluding 
trade and other receivables, totals £133 Om (2011 £1219m) The Group held cash and cash equivalents of £117 Sm at 31 March 2012 
(2011 £102 Sm), which represents the maximum credit exposure on these assets The cash and cash equivalents were held with different 
financial 1nst1tut1ons which were rated AA- or better 
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Notes to the f1nanc1al statements continued 

26. Financial risk management continued 
E} L1qu1d1ty risk 
Borrowing fac1l1t1es 
As at 31 March 2012, the Group had a Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) of US$250m and £118m (2011 US$250 and £118m) 
The RCF 1s contracted until 2016 and 1s ut1hsed as shown 1n the table below 

Committed fac1ht1es 31 March 2012 
Freely available cash and cash equivalents 
Available funds 31 March 2012 

Committed fac1ht1es 31 March 2011 
Freely available cash and cash equivalents 
Available funds 31 March 2011 

Gross contractual cash-flows for borrowings and other financial hab1ht1es 

Interest rate 
UBOR plus 

120% 

145% 

Total 
£m 

274 2 

274 2 

Drawn 
£m 

Undrawn 
£m 

274 2 
112 6 

386 8 

274 2 

980 
372 2 

The following are the contractual matunt1es of financial hab1ht1es, 1nclud1ng interest payments The cash flows associated with derivatives 
that are cash flow hedges are expected to have an impact on profit or loss 1n the periods shown 

As at 31 March 2012 
Contractual More than 

all figures in£ m1lhon Book value cash flows 1 year or less 1-2 years 3-5 years 5 years 
Non-derivative financial l1ab1l1t1es 
Trade and other payables (519 3) (519 3) (498 7) (20 6) 
US private placement debt (242 2) (310 9) (95 3) (111) (87 8) (116 7) 
Recap1tal1sat1on fee 16 
Finance leases (8 6) (9 8) (2 8) (2 8) (4 2) 
Derivative financial habd1t1es 
Forward foreign currency contracts -
cash flow hedges (O 1) (01) (O 1) 

(768 6) (840 1) (596 9) (34 5) (92 O) (116 7) 

As at 31 March 2011 
Contractual More than 

all figures 1n £ m1ll1on Book value cash flows 1 year or less 1-2 years 3-5 years 5 years 
Non-derivative financial hab1l1t1es 
Trade and other payables (489 4) (489 4) (465 6) (23 8) 
Bank overdrafts ID 3) (O 3) (0 3) 
US private placement debt (365 5) (494 5) (113 3) (184) (94 6) (268 2) 
Recap1tal1sat1on fee 23 
Finance leases (107) (12 6) (2 8) (2 8) (7 O) 
Derivative financial l1ab1l1t1es 
Forward forergn currency contracts-
cash flow hedges (04) (04) (04) 

(864 O) (997 2) (582 4) {45 O) (1016) (268 2) 
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F) Derivative financial instruments 
As at 31 March 

2012 2011 
all figures m £ m1lhon Assetgams 1.Jabthty losses Net Asset gams Llab1hty losses Net 

Forward foreign currency contracts -
cash flow hedges 02 (0 1) 01 (04) (0 4) 
Derivative assets/(hab1ht1es) at the end 
of the year 02 (0 1) 01 (04) (0 4) 

As at 31 March 
2012 2011 

all figures m £ m1lhon Asset gams 1..Jab1hty losses Net Asset gams L1ab1hty losses Net 

Expected to be recognised 

ln one year or less 01 (O 1) (04) (0 4) 
Between one and two years 01 01 

02 (O 1) 01 (0 4) (0 4) 

G) Maturity of financial hab1ht1es 
As at 31 March 2012 

Fmance teases 
Trade and Bank and derivative 

other borrowmgs financial 
all figures m £ m1lhon payables and loan notes instruments Total 

Due 1n one year or less 498 7 82 6 23 583 6 
Due 1n more than one year but not more than two years 206 (0 6) 20 22 0 
Due 1n more than two years but not more than five years 56 5 44 609 
Due 1n more than five years 102 1 1021 

519 3 240 6 87 7686 

As at 31 March 2011 
Finance leases 

Trade and Bank and derivative 
other borrowings fmanc1al 

all figures m £ m1lhon payables and loan notes instruments Total 

Due 1n one year or less 465 6 94 0 32 562 8 
Due 1n more than one year but not more than two years 23 8 (0 6) 19 251 
Due 1n more than two years but not more than five years 38 5 55 440 
Due 1n more than five years 2316 05 2321 

489 4 363 5 111 8640 
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Notes to the f1nanc1al statements continued 

26. F1nanc1al risk management continued 
H) Sens1t1v1ty analysis 
The Group's sens1t1v1ty to changes 1n foreign exchange rates and interest rates on financial assets and hab1!1t1es as at 31 March 2012 1s set 
out 1n the table below The impact of a weakening 1n sterhng on the Group's financial assets and !1ab1ht1es would be more than offset 1n 
equity and income by its impact on the Group's overseas net assets and earnings respectively Sens1t1v1ty on Group assets other than 
f1nanc1al assets and hab1ht1es 1s not included 1n this analysis 

The amounts generated from the sens1t1v1ty analysis are forward-looking estimates of market rrsk assuming that certain market cond1t1ons 
occur Actual results 1n the future may differ materrally from those projected as a result of developments 1n the global f1nanc1al markets 
that may cause fluctuations 1n 1nterest and exchange rates to vary from the hypothetical amounts disclosed 1n the table below, which 
should not, therefore, be considered to be a pro1ect1on of hkely future events and losses 

The estimated changes for interest rate movements are based on an instantaneous decrease or increase of 1% (100 basis points) 1n 
the specific rate of interest appltcable to each class of financial instruments from the levels effective at 31 March 2012, with all other 
varrables rema1n1ng constant The estimated changes for foreign exchange rates are based on an instantaneous 10% weakening or 
strengthening 1n sterling against all other currencies from the levels applicable at 31 March 2012, with all other variables rema1n1ng 
constant Such analysis 1s for 1llustrat1ve purposes only- in practice market rates rarely change 1n 1solatron The figures shown below 
relate prrmanly to the translational impact on the Group's USS debt This debt 1s held 1n the US so there 1s no transactional impact 
The impact of transactional nsk on the Group's monetary assets/l1ab1l1t1es that are not held 1n the functional currency of the entity 
hold1ng those assets/l1ab1ht1es 1s m1n1mal A 10% weakening 1n sterling would result ma £1 7m increase 1n profit before tax 

As at 31 March 2012 

all figures in£ m1lhon 

Sterling 
US Dollar 
Other 

all figures m £million 

Sterling 
US Dollar 
Other 

As at 31 March 2011 

all figures m £ million 

Sterling 
US Dollar 
Other 

all figures m £ mllhon 

Sterhng 
US Dollar 
Other 
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1 % decrease m interest rates 

Profit 
Equity before tax 

(O 7) 

(0 1) 

1 % increase in interest rates 
Profit 

Eqwty before tax 

10 
01 
01 

1% decrease m interest rates 

Profit 
Equity before tax 

(O 6) 

(0 1) 

1% increase m interest rates 
Profit 

Equity before tax 

08 
02 
01 

10% weakening in sterling 
Profit 

Equity before tax 

(25 3) 

10 
(2 0) 

10% strengthemng m stertmg 

Profit 
Equ1ty before tax 

20 7 
(1 O) 

16 

10% weakening in sterhng 

Equity 

(38 9) 
10 

Profit 
before tax 

(3 0) 

10% strengthening m sterling 

Equity 

318 
(10) 

Profit 
before tax 

22 



27. Cash flows from operations 
For the year ended 31 March 
all figures in£ m1lhon 

Profit after tax for the penod 
Adjustments for 

Taxation expense 

Net finance costs 

Busmess """"'" 

Gain on business comb1nat1ons and divestments and disposal of investments 
Amort1sat1on of purchased or internally developed 1ntang1ble assets 
Amort1sat1on of 1ntang1ble assets ans1ng from acqu1s1t1ons and 1mpa1rments 
Deprec1at1on and 1mpa1rment of property, plant and equipment 
(Ga1n)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Share of post-tax profit of equity accounted ent1t1es 
Share-based payments charge 
(Ga1n)/loss 1n respect of previously capitalised OTR-programme bid costs 
Changes 1n retirement benefit obligations 

Pension curtailment gain 

Pension past service (ga1n)/loss 
Net movement 1n prov1s1ons 

Decrease/(1ncrease) 1n 1nventones 

Decrease 1n receivables 
Increase 1n payables 

Changes 1n working capital 

Cash generated from operations 

Add back cash outflow relating to UK restructunng 

Net cash flow from operations before UK restructuring costs 

Corporate governance Finanoal statements 

2012 2011 

257 9 50 

73 7 216 
430 30 8 

(116) (2 7) 
90 115 

20 3 26 3 
32 5 39 5 
(5 8) 10 
(0 1) (O 2) 
42 33 

(41) 23 8 
(62 4) (13 7) 
(11) {4 9) 

(1414) 03 
(15 8) 90 
198 3 150 6 
121 (5 1) 
12 45 6 

30 3 64 7 
43 6 105 2 

2419 255 8 
89 318 

2508 2876 
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Notes to the f1nanc1al statements continued 

28. Share capital and other reserves 
Shares allotted, called up and fully paid 

Special Share of £1 
Ordinary shares of lp each (equity) (non-equity) 

£ Number 
At 1 Apnl 2010 6,604,764 660,476,373 
Issued 1n the year 

At 31 March 2011 6,604,764 660,476,373 
Issued 1n the year 
At 31 March 2012 6,604,764 660,476,373 

Except as noted below all shares 1n issue at 31 March 2012 rank pan passu 1n all respects 

Rights attaching to the Special Share 

£ 

1 

1 

1 

Number 

1 

1 

1 

Total 
£ Number 

6,604,765 660,476,374 

6,604,765 660,476,374 

6,604,765 660,476,374 

Q1net1Q carries out act1v1t1es which are important to UK defence and secunty interests To protect these interests 1n the context of the 
ongoing commercial relat1onsh1p between the MOD and Qrnet1Q, and to promote and reinforce the Comphance Pnnciples, the MOD holds 
a Specral Share 1n Q1net1Q The Special Share confers certain rrghts on the holder 

a) to require the Group to implement and ma1nta1n the Compliance System (as defined 1n the Articles of Assoc1at1on) so as to make 
at all times effective its and each member of Qmet1Q Controlled Group's appl1cat1on of the Compliance Pnnciples, 1n a manner 
acceptable to the Special Shareholder, 

b) to refer matters to the Board or the Compliance Committee for its cons1derat1on 1n relation to the apphcat1on of the Compliance 
Pnnc1ptes, 

c) to veto any contract, transaction, arrangement or act1v1ty which the Special Shareholder considers 
1) may result 1n circumstances which constitute unacceptable ownership, influence or control over Q1net1Q or any other member 

of the Q1net1Q consolidated Group contrary to the defence or securrty interests of the United Kingdom, or 
11) would not, or does not, ensure the effective appl1cat1on of the Compliance Principles to and/or by all members of the 0Jnet1Q 

Controlled Group or would be or 1s otherwise contrary to the defence or secunty interests of the United Kingdom, 
d) to require the Board to take any action (1nclud1ng, but not limited to, amending the Comphance Pnnc1ples), or rectify any om1ss1on 

1n the application of the Compliance Prrnciples, 1f the Special Shareholder 1s of the op1n1on that such steps are necessary to protect 
the defence or security interests of the United Kingdom, 

e) to exercise any of the powers contained 1n the Articles 1n relation to the Compliance Committee, and 
f) to demand a poll at any of Q1netiQ's meetings (even though 1t may have no voting rrghts except those spec1f1cally set out 1n the 

Articles) 

The Special Shareholder has an option to purchase defined Strategic Assets of the Group 1n certain circumstances The Special Shareholder 
has, inter al1a, the nght to purchase any Strategic Assets which the Group wishes to sell Strategic Assets are normally testing and research 
faciht1es (see note 31 for further details) 

The Special Share may only be issued to, held by and transferred to H M Government (or as 1t directs) At anytime the Special Shareholder 
may require Q1net1Q to redeem the Special Share at par If Q1net1Q 1s wound up the Special Shareholder will be entitled to be repaid the 
capital paid up on the Special Share before other shareholders receive any payment The Special Shareholder has no other nght to share 
1n the capital or profits of QinettQ 

The Special Shareholder must give consent to a general meeting held on short notice 

The Special Share entitles the Special Shareholder to require certain persons who hold (together with any person acting 1n concert with 
them) a material interest rn Q1net1Q to dispose of some or all of their Ordinary Shares m certain prescribed circumstances on the grounds 
of national security or conflict of interest 

The Directors must register any transfer of the Special Share w1th1n seven days 

Changes to the Special Share 
As announced on 30 March 2012, Q1net1Q has obtained MOD consent to changes 1n its Special Shareholder rights, which are subject to 
shareholder approval at the 2012 AGM These changes include the removal of the MO D's nght to veto any transaction or act1v1ty and the 
1ntroduct1on of a less onerous compliance system s1m1tar to those of comparable companies If approved, the nghts detailed 1n paragraphs 
(b) to (e) detailed above will be amended as follows 

b) to refer matters to the Board for its cons1derat1on 1n relation to the appl1cat1on of the Compliance Pnnciples, 
c) to require the Board to obtain the Special Shareholder's consent 

1) 1f at any time when the chairman 1s not a Bnt1sh C1t1zen, 1t 1s proposed to appoint any person to the office of chief executive, 
who 1s not a British C1t1zen, and 

11) 1f at any time when the chief executive 1s not a British C1t1zen. 1t 1s proposed to appoint any person to the office of chairman, 
who 1s not a British C1t1zen 
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d) to require the Board to take action to rectify any om1ss1on 1n the application of the Compliance Pnnc1ples, 1f the Special Shareholder 
1s of the op1n1on that such steps are necessary to protect the defence or security interests of the United Kingdom, 

e) deleted 

Other reserves 
The translation reserve includes the cumulative foreign exchange difference ans1ng on translation since the Group trans1t1oned to IFRS 
Movements on hedge instruments, where the hedge 1s effective, are recorded 1n the hedge reserve until the hedge ceases 

The capital redemption reserve, which was created following the redemption of preference share capital and the bonus issue of shares, 
cannot be distributed 

Own shares 
Own shares represent shares 1n the Company that are held by independent trusts and include treasury shares and shares held by the 
employee share ownership plan Included 1n retained earnings at 31 March 2012 are 12,819,460 shares (2011 5,494,001 shares) 

29 Share-based payments 
The Group operates a number of share-based payment plans for employees The total share-based payment expense 1n the year was 
£4 2m of which £3 7m related to equity settled schemes and £0 Sm related to cash settled schemes (year to 31 March 2011 £3 3m, 
all equity settled schemes) 

2003 Employee share option scheme (2003 ESOS) 
Under the employee share option scheme all employees as at 25 July 2003 received share options which vested when the Group 
completed its IPO and which must be exercised w1th1n ten years of grant The options are settled by shares 

2012 2011 
Weighted Weighted 

average average 
Number exere1se pnce Number exercise price 

Outstanding at start of year 544,640 2 3p 714,840 2 3p 
Exercised during year (40,848) 2 3p (59,570) 2 3p 
Forfeited during year {42,550) 2 3p (110,630) 2 3p 
Outstanding at end of year 461,242 2 3p 544,640 2 3p 

The 2003 ESOS are equity-settled awards, those outstanding at 31March2012 had an average rema1n1ng hfe of 13 years (31 March 2011 
2 3 years) In respect of the share options exercised dunng the year, the average share price on the date of exercise was 125 4p The 
exercise pnce of the outstanding options was 2 3p Of the outstanding awards at the year end 461,242 were exercisable (2011 544,640) 

Q1net1Q Share Option Scheme (QSOS) 
No new options were granted dunng the year under the QSOS All outstanding share options vested and were forfeited during the year 
The exercise pnce of QSOS options was equal to the average market price of the Group's shares at the date of the grant For 2011, the 
vesting of options outstanding at the end of the year depended on the growth of earnings per share (EPS) over the measurement period, 
25% of options would vest 1f underlying EPS growth were 22 5% for the penod and 100% would vest 1f growth were at least 52% No 
options would vest 1f EPS growth were below 22 5% Options would vest on a stra1ght-hne basis 1f EPS growth were between 22 5% and 
52% None of the performance cond1t1ons were met 

2012 2011 
Weighted Weighted 

average average 
Number exercise price Number exercise price 

Outstanding at start of year 3,349,939 198 7p 9,136,756 186 2p 
Forfeited dunng year (3,349,939) 198 7p (5,786,817) 179 lp 
Outstanding at end of year 3,349,939 198 7p 

QSOS grants are equity-settled awards and those outstanding at 31 March 2012 had an average remaining hfe of nil years (2011 0 4 years) 
There were no QSOS awards 1n 2012 (2011 n11) Of the options outstanding at the end of the year nil were exercisable (2011 nil) 

QJnetiQ Group pie Amual Report and Accounts 20U 95 



Financial statements 
Notes to the f1nanc1al statements continued 

29 Share-based payments continued 

Performance Share Plan (PSP) 
In the year, the Group made awards of cond1t1onal shares to certain UK senior executives under the Performance Share Plan The awards 
vest after three years with 50% of the awards subject to total shareholder return condtt1ons and 50% subject to EPS cond1t1ons as detailed 
1n the QSOS TSR and EPS cond1t1ons above 

2012 2011 
Number Number 

of shares of shares 

Outstanding at start of year 3,438,612 3,686,623 
Granted dunng year 1,240,500 943,500 
Forfeited/lapsed dunng year (994,626) (1,191,511) 
Outstanding at end of year 3,684,486 3,438,612 

PSP awards are equity-settled awards and those outstanding at 31 March 2012 had an average remaining hfe of 11 years (2011 1 7 years) 
There 1s no exercise pnce for these PSP awards Monte Carlo modelling was used to fair value the T5R element of the awards at grant date 
Assumptions used 1n the models included 34% (2011 35%) for the average share price volat1hty to the FTSE comparator group and 36% 
(2011 40%) for the average correlation to the comparator group The weighted average fair value of grants made dunng the year was 
£0 88 (2011 fl 01) Of the options outstanding at the end of the year nil were exercisable (2011 nil) 

Restricted Stock Units (RSU) 
In the year the Group granted RSU awards to certain senior US employees under the RSU plan The awards vest over one, two, three and 
four years Of the awards granted before 2012 half are dependent on ach1ev1ng QNA organic profit growth targets and half on a time-based 
cntenon The time-based cntenon requires the employee to have been tn continual service up to the date of vesting QNA organic profit 
growth 1s measured over the most recent f1nanc1al year compared with the previous financial year, with 125% of this element awarded at 
a QNA organic profit-growth rate above 15%, 100% awarded at 12 5%, 75% awarded at 10% and 25% awarded at 5% The 2012 grants are 
entirely dependent on ach1ev1ng QNA organic profit-growth targets 

2012 2011 
Number of Number of 

shares shares 

Outstanding at start of year 7,936,513 7,321,228 
Granted dunng year 1,651,250 4,315,625 
Exercised dunng year (2,478,688) (869,663) 
Forfeited/lapsed dunng year (1,650,549) (2,830,677) 
Outstanding at end of year 5,458,526 7,936,513 

RSUs are equity-settled awards, those outstanding at 31 March 2012 had an average rema1n1ng hfe of 1 3 years (2011 1 5 years) There 
1s no exercise pnce for these R5U awards The weighted average fair value of grants made dunng the year was £1 10 (2011 £1 25) Of the 
awards outstanding at the end of the year 20,724 were exercisable (2011 7,845) 

Value Sharing Plan (VSP) 
In the year, the Group granted VSP awards to certain senior UK employees under the VSP Plan The awards vest over a three-year 
performance period 50% (2011 70%) of the awards are dependent on creating add1t1onal shareholder value, measured as net cash returns 
to investors and the increase 1n PBT over an 8 5% hurdle, 50% (2011 30%) of the awards are dependent on total shareholder return (TSR) 
against a comparator group of FTSE 250 listed companies (less investment trusts) over a three-year performance penod Half the awards 
vest three years from the date of grant, the remaining half of the awards vest four years from the date of grant Further details of the 
vesting cond1t1ons of the scheme are 1n the Remuneration Report on page 47 

2012 2011 
Number of Number of 

shares snares 
Outstanding at start of year 6,287,640 
Granted dunng year 5,361,300 6,287,640 
Forfeited dunng year (543,600) 
Outstanding at end of year 11,105,340 6,287,640 

VSP awards are equity-settled awards, those outstanding at 31 March 2012 had an average rema1n1ng hfe of 1 7 years (2011 2 5 years) 
There 1s no exercise price for these VSP awards Monte Carlo modelling was used to fair value the TSR element of the awards at grant date 
Assumptions used 1n the models included 34% (2011 34%) for the average share pnce volat1hty to the FTSE comparator group and 49% 
(2011 50%) for the average correlation to the comparator group The weighted average fair value of grants made dunng the year was 
£0 72 {2011 £0 95) Of the awards outstanding at the end of the year nil were exercisable (2011 nil) 
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Group Share Incentive Plan (SIP) 
Under the Q1net1Q Share Incentive Plan the Group offers UK employees the opportunity of purchasing up to £125 worth of shares a month 
at the prevailing market rate The Group will make a matching share award of a third of the employee's payment The Group's matching 
shares may be forfeited 1f the employee ceases to be employed by Q1net1Q w1th1n three years of the award of the shares There 1s no 
exercise pnce for these SIP awards 

2012 2011 
Number of Number of 

matching matching 
shares shares 

Outstanding at start of year 1,382,025 1,339,543 
Awarded during year 358,350 511,825 
Exercised during year (331,536) (414,487) 
Forfeited dunng year (89,371) (54,856) 

Outstanding at end of year 1,319,468 1,382,025 

SIP matching shares are equity-settled awards, those outstanding at 31 March 2012 had an average remaining hfe of 1 5 years 
(2011 1 5 years) There 1s no exercise pnce for these SIP awards Of the shares outstanding at the end of the year nil were exercisable 
(2011 ml) 

Group Deferred Annual Bonus Plan (DAB) 
Under the Q1net1Q Deferred Annual Bonus Plan the Group requires certain senior executives to defer part of their annual bonus as shares 
and be entitled to matching awards to a maximum of 11 based on EPS performance The number that will vest 1s dependent on the growth 
of EPS over the measurement period of three years as detailed 1n the QSOS EPS cond1t1ons above No awards will vest 1f EPS growth 1n the 
vesting penod 1s below 22 5% 

2012 2011 
Number of Number of 

matching matching 
shares shares 

Outstanding at start of year 6,859 11,988 
Granted dunng year 480,922 
Exercised dunng year (2,052) 
Forfeited during year (39,099) (3,077) 

Outstanding at end of year 448,682 6,859 

DAB matching shares are equity-settled awards, those outstanding at 31 March 2012 had an average remaining life of 2 2 years (2011 12 
years) There 1s no exercise price for these DAB awards Of the shares outstanding at the end of the year ml were exercisable (2011 nil) 

Cash Alternative Units (CAU) 
In the year, the Group granted CAU awards to certain US employees 

Outstanding at start of year 
Awarded during year 

Forfeited during year 

Outstanding at end of year 

2012 
Number of 

shares 

1,321,000 
(12,000) 

1,309,000 

2011 
Number of 

shares 

CAUs are cash-settled awards which vest over one, two, three and four years from the date of grant The CAUs have no performance 
cntena attached, other than the requirement that the employee remains 1n employment with the Group Those awards outstanding at 
31 March 2012 had an average remaining hfe of 1 8 years There 1s no exercise price for these awards The fair value of the grants at 
31 March 2012 was £1 59 being the Group's closing share pnce on that day The carrying amount of the l1ab1lity of the grants at the balance 
sheet date was £0 Sm No CAUs expired during the year and none were exercisable 

Share-based award pricing - other 
Share-based awards that vest based on non-market performance cond1t1ons, 1nclud1ng certain PSP, RSUs and Deferred Annual Bonus 
awards, have been valued at the share pnce at grant, less attrition For the 2003 Share Option Scheme, there was a pre-bonus issue 
weighted average share pnce of £1 and a weighted average exercise price of £1 based on third-party transactions 1n the Company's shares 
1n the period immediately before the issue of the share options Before the IPO 1n February 2006, there was no active market for the 
Company's shares and expected volat1hty was, therefore, determined using the average volatility for a comparable selection of businesses 
Since the Group had no established pattern of d1v1dend payments at this time, no d1v1dends were assumed 1n this model 
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30. Post-retirement benefits 
The Q1net1Q Pension Scheme 
In the UK the Group operates the Q1net1Q Pension Scheme for the majority of its UK employees The defined benefit (DB) section of 
the scheme provides future service pension benefits to transferring Civil Service employees All Group employees who were members, 
or e11g1ble to be members, of the Principal C1v1I Service Pension Scheme or the UKAEA principal Non-Industrial Superannuation Scheme 
were 1nv1ted to JOln the DB section of the scheme from 1 July 2001, together with all new employees who were previously members of 
schemes which are part of the Public Sector Transfer Club The defined contribution (DC) section of the scheme was set up for employees 
who were not eligible or did not wish to J01n the DB section of the scheme The Company closed the DC section from 31 March 2011 and 
replaced 1t with a Group Personal Pension Plan (GPP), a new defined contnbut1on scheme managed by Zurich All ex1st1ng DC members 
have been automatically transferred to the GPP Plan The DC Section will be wound up by the Trustees 1n due course The expected 
employer cash contnbut1on to the defined benefit scheme for the year ending 31 March 2013 1s £19 7m (2012 £83 2m) There were 
no outstanding contributions at the balance sheet date (March 2011 £ml) 

Tnenn1al funding valuation 
The most recent full actuarial valuation of the defined benefit section of the Qinet1Q Pension Scheme was undertaken as at 30 June 2011 
and resulted 1n an actuarially assessed def1c1t of £74 7m On the basis of this full valuation, the Trustees of the scheme and the Company 
agreed the employer contnbut1on rate of 12 7% from 30 June 2011, past service def1c1t recovery payments of £10 Sm a year for a six-year 
period from 1 Apnl 2012 and an 1mmed1ate one-off contribution of £40m into the scheme As part of a package of measures to provide 
stab1l1ty to the scheme, the Company has also contributed an asset 1n the form of an interest through a Scottish limited partnership (see 
below) 1n a future income stream of approximately £2 Sm per annum, 1ncreas1ng 1n hne with the Consumer Pnce Index, for 20 years 
secured on certain properties owned by the Group 

Finally, subsequent to rat1f1cat1on by a court ruhng, the Company and Trustees also agreed the key prov1s1on that the Trustees will select 
the Consumer Pnce Index rather than the Retail Price Index as the relevant index for the 1ncrease of pensions 1n payment 1n respect of 
service before 1 June 2008 and for the revaluation of preserved benefits Prior to the court ruhng the Retail Price Index had always been 
used as the relevant index This change results 1n a one-off past service credit of £1414m The next scheduled triennial valuation will be 
performed as at 30 June 2014 

Q1net1Q's Pension Funding Partnership Structure 
Following the 30 June 2011 valuation, a package of pension changes has been agreed with the Trustees to provide stab1l1ty to the scheme 
As part of the package of proposals, on 26 March 2012 Q1net1Q established the Q1net1Q PFP Limited Partnership (the 'Partnership') with the 
scheme Under this arrangement, properties to the capitalised value of £32 3m were transferred to the Partnership The transfers were 
effected through a 20-year sale and leaseback agreement The scheme's interest 1n the Partnership entitles 1t to an annual d1stribut1on of 
approximately £2 Sm for 20 years, indexed with reference to CPI These contributions will replace part of the regular contributions made 
under the past def1c1t recovery payments plan The scheme's interest 1n the Partnership will revert back to Q1net1Q L1m1ted 1n 2032 

The Partnersh1p 1s controlled by Q1net1Q and its results are consolidated by the Group Under IAS 19, the interest held by the scheme 
1n the Partnership does not quahfy as a plan asset for the purposes of the Group's consohdated f1nanc1al statements and is therefore not 
included w1th1n the fair value of plan assets As a result, the Group's consolidated financial statements are unchanged by the Partnership 
In add1t1on, the value of the property transferred to the Partnership and leased back to Q1net1Q remains on the balance sheet Q1net1Q 
retains the operational flex1b1hty to substitute properties of equivalent value w1th1n the Partnership and has the option to settle 
outstanding amounts due under the interest before 2032 1f 1t so chooses 

Other UK schemes 
In the UK the Group has a small number of employees for whom benefits are secured through the Prudential Platinum Scheme The net 
pension def1c1ts of this scheme at 31 March 2012 amounted to £ml (31 March 2011 £ml) Q1net1Q also offers employees access to a Group 
Self Invested Personal Pension Plan, but no Company contributions are paid to this arrangement 
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The fair value of the scheme's assets, which are not intended to be realised 1n the short term and may be subject to s1gn1f1cant change 
before they are realised, and the present value of the scheme's hab1ht1es, which are derived from cash flow projections over long periods, 
and thus inherently uncertain, were 

all figures m £ m1ll1on 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Equ1t1es 583 2 5641 714 6 473 7 
Corporate bonds 194 6 158 7 69 5 78 4 
Government bonds 183 5 165 3 69 6 83 2 
Property 82 4 78 0 53 4 
Other 64 2 15 0 88 12 1 

Total market value of assets 1,107 9 9811 915 9 6474 
Present value of scheme llab1ht1es (1,139 4) (1,105 7) (1,063 2) (752 6) 

Net pension l1ab1hty before deferred tax (315) (124 6) (147 3) (105 2) 

Deferred tax asset 13 3 32 4 412 29 4 

Net pension hab1hty (18 2) (92 2) (106 1) (75 8) 

Changes to the fair value of scheme assets 
all figures m £ mllhon 2012 2011 

Opening fair value of scheme assets 9811 915 9 
Expected return on assets 67 6 686 
Actuanal ga1n/(loss) on scheme assets 29 (14 0) 

Contributions by the employer 83 2 36 6 
Contributions by plan part1c1pants 01 02 
Net benefits paid out and transfers (27 0) (26 2) 

Closing fair value of scheme assets 1,107.9 9811 

Changes to the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
all figures m £ mllhon 2012 2011 

Opening defined benefit obl1gat1on 1,105 7 1,063 2 
Current service cost 20 8 22 9 
Interest cost 612 59 5 
Contnbut1ons by plan part1c1pants 01 02 
Actuanal loss/(ga1n) on scheme hab1ht1es 1211 (9 3) 

Curtailment gain (11) (49) 

Past service (ga1n)/cost (1414) 03 
Net benefits pa1d out and transfers (27 0) (26 2) 

Closing defined benefit obhgat1on 1,139 4 1,105 7 

Total income/expense recognised 1n the income statement 
all figures m £ m1ll1on 2012 2011 

Pension costs charged to the income statement 
Current service cost 208 22 9 
Past service (ga1n)/cost (1414) 03 
Interest cost 612 59 5 
Expected return on plan assets (67 6) (68 6) 

Curtailment gain (11) (49) 

Total (1ncome)/expense recognised 1n the income statement (gross of deferred tax) (128 1) 92 

Analysis of amounts recognised 1n statement of comprehensive income 
all figures m £ m1lhon 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Total actuarial loss (gross of deferred tax) (118 2) (4 7) (60 2) (95 7) 

Cumulative total actuarial losses recognised 1n the Statement 
of Recognised Income and Expense (376 3) (2581) (253 4) (193 2) 
History of scheme experience gains and losses 
Experience ga1ns/(losses) on scheme assets 29 (14 OJ 206 6 (212 8) 
Experience ga1ns/(losses) on scheme hab1ht1es 10 8 32 0 (2 9) 371 

Experience gams and tosses exclude the impact of changes m assumptions 
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30. Post-retirement benefits continued 
Assumptions 
The major assumptions (we1ghted to reflect 1nd1v1dual scheme differences) were 

2012 2011 

Rate of increase 1n salanes 36% 
Rate of increase 1n pensions 1n payment 36% 
Discount rate apphed to scheme l1ab1ht1es 48% 
RPI 1nflat1on assumption 34% 
CPI 1nflat1on assumption 2 6% 
Assumed life expectancies 1n years 
Future male pensioners (currently aged 60) 88 
Future female pensioners (currently aged 60) 90 
Future male pensioners (currently aged 40) 90 
Future female pensioners (currently aged 40) 92 

The assumptions used by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which, because of 
the timescale covered, may not necessanly be borne out 1n practice It 1s important to note that these assumptions are long term and, 
1n the case of the discount rate and the 1nflat1on rate, are measured by external market 1nd1cators The mortality assumptions as at 

46% 
36% 
56% 
36% 
27% 

88 
90 
90 
91 

31 March 2012 were 90% of SlPMA for males and 100% of SlPFA for females, based on year of birth making allowance for 1mprovements 
1n mortahty 1n line with CM1_2011 Core Projections and a long-term rate of improvement of 1 2S% per annum The comparative period 
used mortality rates reflecting the tables as published by the Continuous Mortality tnvest1gat1on and previously adopted as standard 
by the actuanal profession These were tables PNMAOOMC (for males) and PNFAOOMC (for females) for members' year of birth 

The balance sheet net pension hab1llty 1s a snapshot view which can be significantly influenced by short-term market factors The 
calculation of the surplus or deficit depends, therefore, on factors which are beyond the control of the Group - pnnc1pally the value 
at the balance sheet date of equity shares 1n which the scheme has invested and long-term interest rates which are used to discount 
future hab1ht1es The funding of the scheme 1s based on long-term trends and assumptions relating to market growth, as advised by 
qual1f1ed actuaries and investment advisors 

Sens1t1v1ty analysis of the principal assumptions used to measure scheme llab1ht1es 
Assumption Change in assumption Impact on scheme liab1ht1es 

Discount rate Increase/decrease by O 1% 
Rate of 1nflat1on Increase/decrease by 0 1% 

Salary increase Increase/decrease by 0 1% 

Rate of mortality Increase by one year 

Scheme assets 

Decrease/increase by £21 lm 

Increase/decrease by £22 2m 
Increase/decrease by £3 Sm 

Increase by £19 3m 

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets 1s based on the expected return rates for each asset class Equity return rates are the 
long-term expected return rates based on the market rates of return for nsk-free investments, typically government bonds, together with 
the historical level of nsk premium associated with equ1t1es, with the resulting rate then being reviewed and benchmarked against a peer 
group of listed companies Expected long-term rates of return on scheme assets (weighted to reflect the 1nd1v1dual scheme actual asset 
allocations) were 

Equ1t1es 

Corporate bonds 

Government bonds 

Property 

Cash 

Weighted average 

Return on scheme assets 
all figures in£ m1ll1on 

Actual return on plan assets 
Expected return on scheme assets 

Actuanal ga1n/(loss) on scheme assets 

Actual gain on scheme assets 

Defined contnbut1on schemes 
Payments to the defined contnbut1on schemes totalled £20 3m (March 2011 
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£24 lm) 

2012 2011 

73% 80% 
43% 55% 
32% 43% 
68% 80% 
32% 43% 
58% 69% 

2012 2011 

67 6 68 6 
29 (14 O) 

70 5 54 6 



Business review Corporate governance Financial statements 

31. Transactions with the MOD 
The MOD continues to own its Special Share 1n Q1net1Q which conveys certain nghts as set out 1n note 28 Transactions between the Group 
and the MOD are disclosed as follows 

Recovery of UK restructuring costs 
Q1net1Q reached agreement with the UK MOD 1n March 2012 1nvolv1ng a payment to Qmet1Q of £65m that was received after the year end 
1n Apnl 2012 The agreement involves the d1scharg1ng of the MOD from its accumulated hab1ht1es for restructuring costs incurred 1n 
previous years, together with MOD agreement to changes m its Special Shareholder nghts, and certain other operational issues 

Freehold land and bu1ld1ngs and surplus properties 
Under the terms of the Group's acqu1s1t1on of part of the business and certain assets of DERA from the MOD on 1 July 2001, the MOD 
retained certain nghts 1n respect of the freehold land and buildings transferred 

1) Restnct1ons on transfer of title 
The title deeds of those properties with strategic assets (see below) include a clause that prevents their transfer without the approval 
of the MOD The MOD also has the nght to purchase any strategic assets 1n certain circumstances 

11} Property clawback agreement 
The MOD retains an interest 1n future profits on disposal following a 'tngger event' A 'tngger event' includes the granting of planning 
perm1ss1on for development and/or change of use, and the d1spos1t1on of any of the acquired land and bu1ld1ngs Dunng the 12 years 
from 1 July 2001, following a 'tngger event', the MOD 1s entitled to clawback a proportion of the gatn on each 1nd1V1dual property 
transaction 1n excess of a 30% gain on a July 2001 professional valuation The proportion of the excess gain due to the MOD 1s based 
on a sliding scale that reduces over time from 50% to 9% and at 31 March 2012 stood at 16% (2011 16%) The July 2001 valuation 
was approximately 16% greater 1n aggregate than the cons1derat1on paid for the land and bu1ld1ngs on 1 July 2001 

Compliance Regime 
The Compliance Committee monitors the effective apphcat1on of the Comphance Regime required by the MOD to ma1nta1n the pos1t1on 
of Qmet1Q as a supplier of independent and 1mpart1al sc1ent1fic/techn1cal advice to the MOD and ensures that the required standards 
are met 1n tnals 1nvolv1ng human volunteers 

Strategic assets 
Under the Pnnc1pal Agreement with the MOD, the Q1net1Q controlled Group 1s not permitted without the wntten consent of the MOD, to 

1) dispose of or destroy all or any part of a strategic asset, or 
11) voluntanly undertake any closure of, or cease to provide a strategic capability by means of, all or any part of a strategic asset 

The net book value of assets 1dent1f1ed as being strategic assets as at 31 March 2012 was £1 Sm (31 March 2011 £3 Sm) 

Long-Term Partnering Agreement 
On 27 February 2003 Q1net1Q L1m1ted entered rnto a Long-Term Partnenng Agreement to provide the Test and Evaluation (T&E) fac1ht1es 
and training support services to the MOD This 1s a 25-year contract with a total revenue value of up to £5 6bn, dependent on the level 
of usage by the MOD, under which Q1net1Q Limited 1s committed to prov1d1ng the T&E services with 1ncreas1ng effic1enc1es through cost 
saving and 1nnovat1ve service dehvery 

32. Contingent habiht1es and assets 
Subs1d1ary undertakings w1th1n the Group have given unsecured guarantees of £55 lm at 31 March 2012 (31 March 2011 £56 7m) 
1n the ordinary course of business 

The Group 1s aware of claims and potential claims by, or on behalf of, current and former employees, 1nclud1ng former employees of the 
MOD and DERA and contractors, 1n respect of intellectual property, employment nghts and mdustnal illness and injury, which involve 
or may involve legal proceedings against the Group The Directors are of the op1n1on, having regard to legal advice received, and the 
Group's insurance arrangements and prov1s1ons earned 1n the balance sheet, that 1t 1s unhkely that these matters will, 1n aggregate, have 
a material effect on the Group's financial pos1t1on, results of operations and hqu1d1ty 

The Group has not recognised contingent amounts receivable relating to the Chertsey property which was disposed of dunng 2004 
or the Fort Halstead property disposed of 1n September 2005 Add1t1onal consideration, subJect to clawback to the MOD pursuant to 
the arrangements referred to 1n note 31, 1s potentially due on the purchasers obta1n1ng add1t1onal planning consents, with the quantum 
dependent on the scope of the consent achieved 

The Group has also not recognised contingent amounts receivable relating to property 1mpa1rments 1n pnor years that may potentially 
be recovered from the MOD Recovery 1s subject to future negot1at1ons It 1s not considered practicable to calculate the value of this 
contingent asset 

QnetlQ Group pk Annual Report and Accounts 20U 101 



F1nanc1al statements 
Notes to the financial statements continued 

33. Capital commitments 
The Group had the following capital commitments for which no prov1s1on has been made 

all figures m £ milhon 2012 2011 

Contracted 141 43 

Capital commitments at 31 March 2012 1nclude £13m (2011 £3 9m) 1n relation to property, plant and equipment that will be wholly­
funded by a third-party customer under long-term contract arrangements 

34 Subsidiaries 
The companies listed below are those which were part of the Group at 31 March 2012 and which, 1n the opinion of the Directors, 
s1gn1ficantly affected the Group's results and net assets dunng the year The Directors consider that those companies not hsted are not 
s1gn1f1cant 1n relation to the Group as a whole A comprehensive hst of all subs1d1anes will be disclosed as an appendix to the Group's 
annual return 

Name of company Principal area of operation Country of incorporation 
Subs1d1anes1' .3 

Q1net1Q Holdings limited UK England & Wales 
Q1net1Q l1m1ted UK England & Wales 
Q1net1Q Overseas Holdings limited UK England & Wales 
Q1netiQ North America, Inc USA USA 
Q1net1Q US Holdings, Inc USA USA 
Analex Corporation USA USA 
Apogen Technologies, Inc USA USA 
Foster-Miller, Inc USA USA 
Westar Aerospace & Defence Group, Inc USA USA 
1 Accounting reference date 1s 31 March All principal subs1d1ary undertakings listed above have financial year ends of 31 March and 100% of the ordinary 

shares are owned by the Group 
2 Qmet1Q Holdings limited 1s a direct subsidiary of Qinet1Q Group pie All other subs1d1anes are held indirectly by other subs1d1aries of Qinet1Q Group pie 
3 All com pa mes except for hold mg companies are operating companies engaged m the Group's principal act1v1t1es as described on page 53 
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET 
as at 31 March 

a1J figures m £ m1lhon 

Fixed assets 
Investments 1n subs1d1ary undertaking 

Current assets 
Debtors 

Current hab1l1t1es 

Creditors amounts falling due w1th1n one year 

Net current assets 
Net assets 

Capital and reserves 
Equity share capital 
Capital redemption reserve 

Share premium account 

Profit and loss account 
Capital and reserves attributable to shareholders 

There are no other recognised gains and losses 

Business mnew Corporate governance 

Note 

2 

3 

4 

6 

6 

6 

6 

Rnanoal statements 

2012 

447 6 
447 6 

(118 3) 
(118 3) 

329 3 

66 
39 9 

147 6 
135 2 
329 3 

2011 

112 0 
112 0 

306 3 
3063 

(79 2) 

2271 

3391 

66 
399 

147 6 
145 0 
339 1 

The f1nanc1al statements of Q1net1Q Group pie (company number 4586941) were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised 
for issue on 24 May 2012 and were signed on its behalf by 

Mark Elliott 
Chairman 

Leo Quinn 
Chief Executive Officer 

David Mellors 
Chief F1nanc1al Officer 
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Accounting policies 
The following accounting pohc1es have been apphed consistently 1n deahng with items which are considered material 1n relation to the 
Company's f1nanc1al statements 

Basis of preparation 
The f1nanc1al statements have been prepared under the htstonca1 cost convention and 1n accordance with applicable UK accounting 
standards As permitted by section 408(4) of the Companies Act 2006, a separate profit and loss account dealing with the results of 
the Company has not been presented 

Investments 
In the Company's f1nanc1al statements, investments 1n subs1d1ary undertakings are stated at cost less any impairment 1n value 

Share-based payments 
The fair value of equity-settled awards for share-based payments 1s determined on grant and expensed straight line over the period 
from grant to the date of earliest uncond1t1onal exercise The fair value of cash-settled awards for share-based payments 1s determined 
at each period end until they are exercised or lapse The value 1s expensed straight line over the period from grant to the date of earliest 
uncond1t1onal exercise The charges for both equity and cash-settled share-based payments are updated annually for non-market-based 
vest1ng cond1t1ons Further details of the Group's share-based payment charge 1s disclosed 1n note 29 of the Group f1nanc1al statements 
The cost of share-based payments 1s charged to subs1d1ary undertakings 

2. Investment in subsidiary undertaking 
As at 31 March 
all figures m £ million 

Subs1d1ary undertaking-100% of ordinary share capital of Q1net1Q Holdings limited 

Capital contributions ans1ng from share-based payments to employees of subs1d1aries 

2012 

424 3 
23 3 

4476 

2011 

92 4 
19 6 

112 0 

A list of all pnnc1pal subs1d1ary undertakings of Q1net1Q Group pie 1s disclosed tn note 34 to the Group financial statements The increase 1n 
investment 1n the year relates to the cap1tal1sat1on of a loan with a Group subs1d1ary 

3. Debtors 
As at 31 March 
all figures m £ m1llton 

Amounts owed by Group undertakings 

4 Creditors 
As at 31 March 
all figures in£ mLlhon 

Amounts owed to Group undertakings 

5. Share capital 
The Company's share capital 1s disclosed 1n note 28 to the Group financial statements 
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306 3 

2012 2011 

118 3 79 2 
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F1nanc1al statements 
Notes to the Company financial statements continued 

6. Reserves 
Capital 

Issued share redemption Share Profit Total 
all figures m £ m1ll1on capital reserve premium and toss equity 

At 1 Apnl 2011 66 399 147 6 1450 3391 

Profit 14 8 14 8 

Purchase of own shares (119) (119) 

D1v1dend pard (16 4) (164) 

Share-based payments 37 37 

At 31 March 2012 66 39 9 147 6 135 2 329 3 

At 1 April 2010 66 39 9 147 6 127 5 3216 

Profit 14 8 14 8 
Purchase of own shares (0 6) (0 6) 

Share-based payments 33 33 

At 31 March 2011 66 39 9 147 6 145 0 3391 

The capital redemption reserve 1s not dlstnbutable and was created following redemption of Preference Share capital 

7 Share-based payments 
The Company's share-based payment arrangements are set out 1n note 29 to the Group f1nanc1al statements 

8. Other information 
Directors' emoluments, excluding Company pension contnbut1ons, were £3 Om (2011 £2 7m) These emoluments were all in relation 
to services provided on behalf of the Q1net1Q Group with no amount spec1f1cally relating to their work for the Company Details of the 
Directors' emoluments, share schemes and entitlements under money purchase pension schemes are disclosed 1n the Remuneration 
Report 

The remuneration of the Company's auditors for the year to 31 March 2012 was £15,000 (2011 £15,000), which was all for statutory 
audit services No other services were provided by the auditors to the Company 
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FIVE-YEAR RECORD FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 MARCH (UNAUDITED) 

all frgures inf mllhon 2012 2011~ 2010 

UK Services £m 610 1 652 7 693 9 
US Services £m 534 s 607 3 628 0 
Global Products £m 325 0 442 6 303 s 
Revenue £m 1,469 6 1,702 6 1,625 4 

UK Services £m 63 0 47 4 59 1 
US Services £m 32 1 45 9 52 6 
Global Products £m 66 2 52 1 86 
Underlying operating profit1 £m 1613 145 4 120 3 

2011 20103 
2009

2 20082 

Q1net1Q North America £m 800 1 765 6 540 2 
EMEA £m 818 8 842 3 820 1 
Ventures £m 65 94 57 
Revenue £m 1,625 4 1,617 3 1,366 0 

Q1net1Q North America £m 67 7 830 62 1 
EMEA £m 611 84 2 800 
Ventures £m (8 S) (15 6) (15 1) 
Underlying operating prof1t1 £m 120 3 1516 127 0 

Underlying operating marg1n1 % 110 85 74 94 93 
Underlying profit before tax1 £m 118 3 114 6 85 7 130 2 109 0 
Prof1t/(loss) before tax £m 3316 26 6 (661) 1140 514 
Prof1t/(loss) after tax £m 257 9 so (63 3) 93 6 47 4 
Underlying basic EPS1 (pence) Pence 14 6 14 2 111 15 9 134 
Basic EPS (pence) Pence 39 6 08 (9 7) 14 3 72 
Diluted EPS (pence) Pence 39 4 08 (9 7) 14 3 72 
D1v1dend per share Pence 2 90 160 158 4 75 4 25 
Underlying net cash from operations 
(post capex)1 

£m 235 4 265 8 169 2 175 2 138 3 
Net debt £m 122 2 260 9 457 4 537 9 379 9 
Average number of employees 10,637 12,033 13,604 13,882 13,470 
Orders £m 1,226 3 1,559 7 1,400 9 1,596 0 1,277 1 
1 Underlying measures are stated before amort1sat1on of mtang1bles arising from acqu1s1t1ons and spec1f1c non-recurnng items Defrmt1ons of underlying 

measures of performance are tn the glossary on page 107 Underlying ftnanc1al measures are presented because the Board beheves these provide a better 
representation of the Group's long-term performance trend 

2 Operating profit and operatmg margins for 2009 and 2008 have been restated to show the net finance element of the IAS 19 pension cost in the finance 
income and expense lines This was previously reported tn other operating costs 

3 
The Group's management structure changed with effect from 1 Apnl 2010 Comparatives for the new structure have been provided for 2010 Segmental 
data for 2008 to 2010 has been retained on the old structure as reported in previous financial statements 

• The 2011 figures have been restated to reflect the transfer of businesses from Global Products to UK Services and US Services at the beginning of the 2012 
financial year 
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GLOSSARY 

ABI Assoc1at1on of Bnt1sh Insurers 

AGM Annual General Meetmg 

Book to bill ratio Ratio of funded orders received m the year to 
revenue for the year, ad1usted to exclude revenue 
from the 2S·year LTPA contract 

BPS Basis pomts 
BSI British Standards lnst1tut1on 

CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate 

C41SR Command, control, commumcat1ons, computers, 
mtelhgence, surveillance and reconnaissance 

COTS Commerc1al off·the·shelf 

CR Corporate Respons1b1hty 

DAB Deferred Annual Bonus 
DERA Defence Evaluation and Research Agency, the 

ma1onty of which was transferred into QrnebQ 
In 2001 

DHS US Department of Homeland Secunty 
DoD US Department of Defense 
DTR MOD's Defence Training Rat1onahsat1on programme 

EBJTDA Earnings before interest, tax, deprec1atron 
and amort1sat1on 

EMEA Europe, Middle East and Australasia 

EPS Earnings per share 

Funded backlog The expected future value of revenue from 
contractually committed and funded customer 
orders (excluding £3 6bn value of the remaining 
16 years of the LTPA contract) 

Geanng ratio This 1s the ratio of net debt to adjusted EBITDA m 
accordance with the Group's cred1t-fac1hty ratios 
EBITDA 1s adjusted to exclude charges for share­
based payments Net debt 1s ad1usted to reflect the 
same exchange rates as used for EBITDA and to 
reflect other requirements of the debt-holders 
covenant calculations 

GWh G1ga-Watt hours 

IAS International Accounting Standards 

IDIQ Indefinite Dehvery/lndef1n1te Quantity 

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards 

IPO tmt1al PubhC Offering 

KPI Key Performance Indicator 

UBID London inter-bank bid rate 
UBOR London inter-bank offered rate 

LSE London Stock Exchange 

LTPA Long-Term Partnenng Agreement- 25-year contract 
estabhshed in 2003 to manage the MOD's test and 
evaluation ranges 

MOD UK M1mstry of Defence 

NASA National Aeronautics and Space Administration 
{USA) 

Busmess nMeW Corporate governance Rnanaal statements 

OHSAS Occupational Health and Safety Advisory Services 

Organic Growth The level of year-on-year growth, expressed as 
a percentage, calculated at constant foreign 
exchange rates, adjusting comparatives to 
incorporate the results of acquired ent1t1es 
but excluding the results for any disposats or 
discontinued operations for the same duration 
of ownership as the current penod 

PST Profit before tax 

PSP Performance Share Plan 

QNA Qinet1Q North Amenca 

QSOS Qinet1Q Share Option Scheme 

R&D Research and development 

ROCE Return on Capital Employed 

RSU Restricted Stock Unit 

Speafic non- Net restructuring charges/recoveries, pension 
recurnng items and curtailment gams, pension past service gains, 

acqu1s1t1an contingent payments on acq1..11s1t1on treated as 
amort1sat1on remuneration, net gain/loss m respect of previously 

cap1tahsed CTR-programme bid costs, impairment of 
property, 1mpa1rment of intangible assets, 
ga1n/(loss) on business combinations and 
divestments, gain/(loss) on drsposal of investments, 
and tax thereon 

TSR Total Shareholder Return 

UK Corporate Guidelines of the Financial Reporting Council to 
Governance Code address the principal aspects of corporate governance 

UK GAAP UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 

Underlymg basic Basic earnings per share as adiusted to exclude 
earnings per share 'specific non-recurnng items and acqu1s1t1on 

amort1sat1on' 

Underlying effective The tax charge for the year excluding the tax impact 
tax rate of 'spec1f1c non recurring items and acqu1s1t1on 

amort1sat1on' expressed as a percentage of 
underlying profit before tax 

Underlying net cash Net cash mflow from operations before 
from operations restructuring costs less net cash outflow on 

(post capex) purchase/sale of intangible assets and property, 
plant and equrpment 

Underlymg operatmg The ratio of underlymg net cash from operations 
cash conversion (post capex) to underlying operating profit excludrng 

share of post-tax result of equity-accounted iornt 
ventures and assoc1ates 

Underlymg operatmg Underlying operatmg profit expressed as a 
margm percentage of revenue 

Underlying operating Operating profit as ad1usted to exclude 'spec1f1c 
profit non-recurring items and acqu1s1t1on amortisation' 

Underlymg profit Profit before tax as ad1usted to exclude 'spec1f1c 
before tax non-recurring items and acqu1s1t1on amortisation' 

Unfunded Orders Typically long-term contracts awarded by the 
US government which the customer funds 
incrementally over the hfe of the contract 
The Group does not recognise such awards into 
the reported backlog until funding is confirmed 

VSP Value Sharing Plan 
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

Analysis of Share Register at 31 March 2012 

Number of % of total %ofshare 
holdmgs holdings Shares held capital 

By size of holding 1-1,000 5,527 7154% 1,641,299 0 25% 
1,001-5,000 1,425 18 44% 3,432,332 052% 
5,001-10,000 288 373% 2,119,196 032% 
10,001-100,000 276 357% 9,450,957 143% 
Over 100,000 210 272% 643,832,589 9748% 
Total 7,726 10000% 660,476,373 10000% 

By type of holder lnd1v1duals 6,758 8748% 8,943,506 136% 
Banks and nominees 908 1175% 642,944,258 9735% 
Others 60 077% 8,588,609 129% 
Total 7,726 10000% 660,476,373 10000% 

Share adm1n1strat1on 
The Company's registrar 1s Equ1n1t1 If you have any quenes regarding your shareholding, tncluding d1v1dend payments and change of address 
notifications, please contact Equ1n1tl, either 1n wntlng at the address shown on the next page, by telephone on 0871384 2021* or onhne 
at https.//help sharev1ew.co.uk - from here, 1f you need further assistance, you will be able to email Equ1mtl securely Equ1mtl also offers 
Sharev1ew, a free of charge service enabling you to access and ma1nta1n your shareholding onhne Through Sharev1ew, you can register 
for electronic communications, see details of balance movements and complete certain amendments onhne, such as changes to d1v1dend 
mandate instructions To take advantage of Sharev1ew, register onhne at www sharev1ew co uk. click on Register and follow the steps 

•Lines are open 8 30am to S 30pm, Monday to Friday, excluding Bank Holidays Calls to 0871 numbers are charged at Sp per minute from a BT landhne 
Other telephony provider costs may vary 

Direct d1V1dend payments 
If you would like to have your d1v1dend paid directly mto a UK bank or bu1ld1ng society account, please contact Equ1n1t1 or complete the 
d1v1dend mandate attached to your d1v1dend cheque The associated tax voucher will still be sent to your registered address 

If you live outside the UK, Equ1n1t1 offers a global payments service which 1s available in certain countries and could enable you to receive 
your d1v1dends direct into your bank account 1n your local currency Further details can be obtained direct from Equ1nit1 or onhne at 
www sharev1ew co uk 

Consolidated tax vouchers 
Starting from the September 2012 proposed d1v1dend payment, shareholders who have dividends paid direct into a bank or building society 
account will receive a Consohdated Tax Voucher (CTV) A CTV 1s a tax voucher which details all d1v1dends paid for the year Under this 
process, a shareholder's d1v1dend 1s paid direct to their bank account each time a d1v1dend 1s paid and once a year they receive a tax voucher 
deta1hng all d1v1dends paid for that year Shareholders who would prefer to continue rece1v1ng tax vouchers with each d1v1dend payment can 
write to Equ1n1t1 Registrars to request this 

Electronic commun1canons 
Q1net1Q has taken full advantage of changes brought about by the Companies Act 2006 which recognises the growing importance of 
electronic communications and allows companies to provide documentation and communications to shareholders via their websites 
(except to those who have specifically elected to receive a paper copy) The wider use of electronic communications enables fast receipt of 
documents, reduces the Company's printing, paper and postal costs and reduces the Company's environmental impact Shareholders can 
register for electronic communications at www sharev1ew co uk and may also cast their vote for the 2012 AGM onhne quickly and easily 
using the Sharevote service by v1s1t1ng WWW sharevote co uk 

ShareG1ft 
The Orr Mackintosh Foundation operates a charity donation scheme for shareholders with small numbers of shares which may be uneconomic 
to sell Details of the scheme are available from ShareG1ft {registered charity no 1052686) at www shareg1ft org or by telephone on 020 7930 3737 

Warning to shareholders- unsohated calls or correspondence 
Many companies have become aware that their shareholders have received unsohc1ted telephone calls or correspondence concerning 
investment matters These are typically from overseas·based 'brokers' who target UK shareholders, offering to sell them what often turn 
out to be worthless or high nsk shares 1n US or UK investments These 'brokers' can be very persistent and extremely persuasive 

If you receive any unsohc1ted investment advice 

Check that they are properly authonsed by the Financial Services Authonty by v1s1hng www f:;a gov uk/fsareg1ster, 
• Report the matter to the FSA by calling 084S 6061234, 
• If the calls persist, hang up 

Please note that, 1f you deal With an unauthonsed firm, you will not be eligible to receive payment under the Financial Services 
Compensation Scheme 
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Financial calendar 

26 July 2012 

26 July 2012 

10 August 2012 

7 September 2012 

30 September 2012 

21 November 2012 

February 2013 

31 March 2013 

May2013 

Corporate website 
The Company's website 1s www Q1nenQ com The Q1nenQ 
Annual Report 2012 can be viewed at www QinenQ com/Investors 
together with further useful shareholder tnformation and 
1nformabon on the Company, its performance, the Annual General 
Meeting and latest presentations 

From the website, you can access the following 

Latest shareholder information 
Latest share pnce 
F1nanc1al calendar 
RNS news feeds 
Corporate governance 

Shareholder services 
Register onhne 

• Sharev1ew 
• Common questions 

Archive information 
Results and trading updates 

• Company reports 
• Company presentations 

Feedback 
• Your feedback 
• Investor contacts 

Corporate respons1b1l1ty 
• Read more about our corporate respons1b1hty policy 

at www Q1net1Q com/er 

Investor relations app 
The Q1net1QAnnual Report 2012 can also be viewed on our investor 
relanons app for the 1Pad, downloadable from the App Store 

Designed by luminous co uk 

Printed by Park CommumcatJons 

People photography by Jame Airey & Andrew Molyneux 

p8 Gahleo- ESA- s Corva1a 

pll case studies- us Army 

Busmess review Corporate governance 

Interim management statement 

Annual General Meeting 

Final 2012 d1v1dend record date 

Final 2012 d1v1dend payment date 

Interim hnanc1al period end 

lntenm results announcement 

Anandal statements 

Interim management statement (prov1s1onal date) 

F1nanc1al year end 

Preliminary results announcement 

Company information 
Registered office 
Cody Technology Park 
lvely Road 
Farnborough 
Hampshire 
GU14 OLX 

Tel +44 (0) 8700 100 942 

Company Registration Number 4586941 

Auditor 
KPMG Audit Pie 
Chartered Accountants 
15 Canada Square 
London 
El4 SGL 

Registrar 
Equrn1t1 
Aspect House 
Spencer Road 
lancing 
West Sussex 
BN99 GOA 

Advisers 
Corporate brokers 
JP Morgan Cazenave 
10 Aldermanbury 
London 
EC2V 7RF 

UBS Investment Ban'k 
1 Finsbury Avenue 
London 
EC2M 2PP 

Principal legal advisor 
Ashurst LLP 
Broadwalk House 
5 Appold Street 
London 
EC2A2HA 
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